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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIEM

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Shi Qi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 6 April 2016)

Ms. Xu Chendi (appointed on 6 April 2016)

Mr. Qiu Yonghao (appointed on 6 April 2016)

Mr. Huang Te-Wei

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Wong Tak Leung (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Kwok Yiu Kai (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Feng (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Mr. Han Lei (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Mr. Wu Ih Chen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (appointed on 27 April 2016)
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Mr. Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Professor Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

COMMITTEES

Executive Committee

Ms. Shi Qi* (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Ms. Xu Chendi (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Qiu Yonghao (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Huang Te-Wei

Mr. Chan Oi Fat

Mr. Pai Chih-Kang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Audit Committee

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin* (appointed on 27 April 2016)
Ms. Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Mr. Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Professor Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)
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Remuneration Committee

Ms. Zhang Lijuan* (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (appointed on 27 April 2016)
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Mr. Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Professor Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Nomination Committee

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat*

Ms. Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (appointed on 27 April 2016)
Mr. Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Professor Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Compliance Committee

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin* (appointed on 27 April 2016)
Ms. Xu Chendi (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Huang Te-Wei

Mr. Chan Oi Fat

Mr. Krassovski Victor (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Pai Chih-Kang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

*  Committee Chairman/Chairlady

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Huang Te-Wei
Chan Oi Fat

FINANCIAL CONTROLLER
Chan Oi Fat

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Oi Fat

AUDITORS
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIEM

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW ADVISOR
SHINEWING Risk Services Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 GT
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Flat 28, 23rd Floor, Metro Centre |
21 Lam Hing Street

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F,,

Two Chinachem Exchange Square,
338 King's Road, North Point
Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.tayang.com
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
EE L

Shi Qi
Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Ms. Shi Qi, aged 37, appointed as Chairlady, Chief Executive
Officer and an executive Director in April 2016, has obtained a
Master degree of Business Administration from Centenary College,
New Jersey, majoring in Finance in May 2009. Ms. Shi has more
than 9 years of experiences in corporate reorganization, corporate
and project financing, investments in real estate, securities and
non-securities assets and risk management. In 2009, she founded
Seven Ocean Investments Limited (“Seven Ocean”), and under the
leadership of Ms. Shi, Seven Ocean has developed from a small
scale financing company to a company that principally engages in
providing financing and corporate solutions and consultancy
services, and large scale medical and healthcare development
projects. In 2015, Ms. Shi invested in the development of Central
Maine Healthcare Institute, which delivers quality healthcare
services in Auburn, Maine (USA). Ms. Shi will also be responsible for
the on-going management and daily operation of the Central
Maine Healthcare Institute. Ms. Shi has also invested in the
construction of the Central Leisure Park* (F R {KEAE)
Tongzhou Xincheng* GBM #1#k), Beijing, a public mfrastructure
covering an area of approximately 42.62 hectares and providing
sports, entertainment, medical and healthcare related services. Ms.
Shi was responsible for financing, devising the conceptual design
and the implementation plan and monitoring and managing the
progress of the construction. Ms. Shi will also be responsible for the
project’s subsequent operation and maintenance for 30 years. Ms.
Shi, the sole director and the ultimate beneficial owner of the
controlling shareholder of the Company, is deemed to be
interested in 436,540,400 Shares (representing approximately
50.11% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report) held by the controlling shareholder.
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
SEEN

Xu Chendi

Executive Director

Ms. Xu Chendi, aged 30, appointed as an executive Director in
April 2016, graduated with first class honour from University College
London, United Kingdom of science (economics) majoring in
Economics and Statistics in 2007 and subsequently obtained a
Master degree in Philosophy, majoring in Real Estate Finance, from
University of Cambridge, United Kingdom in 2008. She has
approximately 8 years of experience in real estate, lodging and
leisure investment and China investment at various international
investment banks. She worked at UBS AG, Hong Kong from July
2011 to September 2014 and she worked at Macquarie Group from
August 2008 to June 2011. She was mainly responsible for advising
clients on corporate finance transactions, both fund raising activities
in Hong Kong and overseas, initial public offering projects, and
merger and acquisition transactions. She also advised on share
placements and bond issuances and made recommendations on
valuations on listed companies and corporate finance
opportunities.

Qiu Yonghao

Executive Director

Mr. Qiu Yonghao, aged 36, appointed as an executive Director in
April 2016, completed an Executive Development Program for
Master in Business Administration for Chinese entrepreneurs (FFE
PELEEEE — THEEBLREIE) from Guanghua
School of Management of Peking University (dt R AR K FEE RS
BT) in September 2013. He has more than 9 years of experience in
corporate management and has been a General Manager, Director
or Chairman of companies that engage in real estate investments
and securities investments. Mr. Qiu is a Director of Beijing Qihai
Investment Limited* Jt R/ EFRAF) (“Beijing Qihai”), a
company in which Ms. Shi Qi is also one of the senior management.
Beijing Qihai engages in equity investment, financing, financial
advisory and other professional services. It operates in a range of
industries including real estate, healthcare, energy and resources.
Mr. Qiu is mainly responsible for evaluating investment
opportunities for Beijing Qihai.
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
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Huang Te-Wei

Executive Director

Mr. Huang Te-Wei, aged 36, appointed as an executive Director in
February 2006. He is the head of Control Department and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s compliance and internal
control matters. From 2008 onwards, Mr. Huang was also
responsible for the supervision of the daily operation of the Group's
factories in PRC and strategic planning. He also appointed as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in February 2011 while resigned
in April 2016. Mr. Huang graduated from the Industrial
Administration stream, Department of Business Administration,
National Taiwan University and has completed his military service in
Taiwan. Mr. Huang is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Huang is interested in 1,330,000 Shares (representing
approximately 0.15% as at the date of the annual report).

Gao Feng

Non-executive Director

Mr. Gao Feng, aged 36, appointed as a non-executive Director in
April 2016, has around 8 years of experience in corporate
management. He has been the General Manager of Beijing
Zhongmei Zhengchen Construction Limited Company* (3t AR 1E
REFZAERAT), which mainly engages in real estate and
construction since 2012. He was the General Manager of Beijing
Kaiyun Zhifeng Trades Limited Company* t Rl 7 I TEHR
2 a]) from 2009 to 2012.

Han Lei

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Han Lei, aged 46, appointed as a non-executive Director in
April 2016, has more than 20 years of entertainment and performing
experience in the music industry and had received numerous
awards in the industry. Mr. Han has participated in CCTV Spring
Festival Evening Galas, charity performances, cultural and tourism
promotion performances, etc. Other than his entertainment career,
he also actively participates in various political associations and
social campaigns. He was a member of the Tenth All-China Youth
Federation (FE#E 2B FFH S ®). He was appointed as the
“Celebrity of Health” (5% A) by the preceding Kang Yi Wang*
(FE5#48) and the image ambassador in “Yao Yang” public pension
project (BB[5&EE A3 H) conducted by Red Cross Society of
China.

TAYANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
SEEN

Zhang Lijuan

Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. Zhang Lijuan, aged 63, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in April 2016, is the Executive Vice President and
the Secretary General of Chinese Association of Geriatric Research
(PRI ZFIREZEEZHFTE). She has over 10 years of experience in
the healthcare and medical industry. She was the Vice President
and the Executive Vice Secretary General of China National Health
Association (B R f& B4 1) from August 2005 to May 2010.

Yeung Chi Tat

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, aged 47, appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in May 2007. He holds a bachelor degree in
business administration from the University of Hong Kong and a
master degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the founding
deputy president and council member of The Hong Kong
Independent Non-executive Director Association, the president of
the Hong Kong headquarter of the International Financial
Management Association, the Greater China Development
Working Committee member of the Association of Hong Kong
Accountants and a Vice-president of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Wine and Spirits. He is currently the financial controller
and company secretary of Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited (Stock
Code: 828), an Independent Non-Executive Director of ANTA
Sports Products Limited (Stock Code: 2020), Boer Power Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1685) and Sitoy Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1023), all of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He was an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Billion Industrial Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 2299) and KFM Kingdom Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3816), both of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange in Hong Kong, from March 2011 to May 2014 and from
September 2015 to February 2016, respectively. Mr. Yeung had
previously worked at a major international accounting firm for over
ten years. He possesses experience in auditing, corporate
restructuring and corporate financial services. Mr. Yeung is
interested in 146,000 Shares (representing approximately 0.02% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
annual report).
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE
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Pak Wai Keung, Martin

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, aged 53, appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in April 2016, is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
He has over 25 years of experience in finance, accounting and
corporate governance affairs. Mr. Pak had held positions as the
Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary at various listed
companies in Hong Kong. From March 2007 to March 2012, Mr. Pak
was the Chief Financial Officer and the Company Secretary of Man
Sang International Limited, a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 938) and since June 2013, Mr. Pak
has been the Company Secretary of China Kingstone Mining
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1380) (“China Kingstone”). Mr. Pak had also
been an independent non-executive director of China Kingstone
from April 2013 to May 2013.

* English name for identification purposes only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
SREEANBGN

Chan Oi Fat PR & 8%
Financial Controller and Company Secretary HBREFLTWE

Mr. Chan Oi Fat, aged 38, joined the Group in January, 2008 as the  FRE A » 3855 R -ETNFE— AMAARE
financial controller and the company secretary of the Company. Mr. BT AR RIM M EABEFR A RIME - FREAE
Chan is mainly responsible for the financial and accounting ZEABEAEEMBLEERENMESRE - MA
management and secretarial affairs of the Group. Prior to joining  AR&EERA] - FREAE A —HBEER S 7T AZEEE
the Group, Mr. Chan was an audit manager in an international - RELHEAEB T AFNRES T MZEK
accounting firm. Mr. Chan has over 15 years of experience in B - MEABERNEBRMALE  WIHFEGT R
professional accounting and auditing experience. Mr. Chan &1 8 - F AR FLTMATEE -
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a bachelor in

accountancy. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants.
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CHAIRLADY'S STATEMENT
RS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ta Yang Group Holdings
Limited, | herewith present all shareholders the annual report of the
Group for the year ended 31 July 2016.

The past financial year has continued to present a number of
challenges to the Group, sluggish economic environment in Europe
and weak consumption sentiment in the U.S. during the period.
Consequently, most of the customers continued to adopt a highly
cautious approach towards restocking inventory which caused the
Group's revenue persisted to shrink during the year. To maintain
the competitiveness, the Group managed to control the operating
expenses at reasonable stable level and to dispose of non-core
business as part of streamlining efforts and this led to an
improvement in Group's performance.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

By the end of the financial year, the Group's revenue decreased by
9.3% to HK$386.5 million (2015: HK$426.2 million). The Group's loss
for the year was HK$72.3 million (2015: HK$159.4 million), while loss
per share for the year was HK?.12 cents (2015: HK20.08 cents).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Consumers Electronic Devices

Consumer electronic devices ("CED") peripheral products and
keypads for computers businesses continued to be our core
businesses. During the year, the largest segment — CED peripheral
products and the computers and notebooks segments have
recorded a material decrease. The pressure of economic downturn
caused many consumers maintained wait-and-see attitude in the
market and most of our customers to reduce their inventory. In
addition, the impact from the consolidation of production plant
and the layoff plan in past years began to emerge and this caused
the result of the year has improved during the year. We will
continue to conducting operational review in coming year to
optimize the use of resources of CED segment.

Medical and Healthcare Business

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the group has acquired a
multi-purpose leisure project consisting of hotels, convention
center, villas, bungalows and other ancillary facilities located at
Sanya Yalong Bay National Resort District, Hainan, PRC at a
consideration of RMB357,488,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$421,836,000). We have formulated plans to re-develop the
properties into a high-end healthcare holiday resort, aiming at
providing a one-stop shop for medical and healthcare related
services with world-class technologies. We will also introduce
timeshare concept for part of the hotel units, operating them as

20 TAYANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CHAIRLADY'S STATEMENT
RS

high-end serviced apartments. The adjacent international exhibition
center will be leveraged across many healthcare related
applications, such as hosting medical and healthcare forums and
conferences and members’ social events. We expect the project
will generate profits from high-end residential sales, leasing and
healthcare services in the foreseeable future.

OUTLOOK

According to the latest economic indicators, the U.S. economy is
forecasted to grow mildly in the coming year, but will continue to
hamper economies in countries which had initiated QE, such as
Eurozone and Japan, under the gloom of impending interest rate
hike by the U.S. Federal Reserve. Furthermore, the strengthening
U.S. Dollar will continue to plague the economies of emerging
markets. In addition, the looming Brexit will also bring uncertainty
to global economy.

While for the PRC economy, the GDP growth rate in China will
experience a continued slowdown in the coming years. Moreover,
with the recent plunge in China’s Foreign Exchange Reserve and
increased volatility in Renminbi, the Group remains cautious on the
operating environment in China and maintain its solid and
pragmatic style of management and focus on strengthening our
financial position preparing for deployment of new growth
strategies at the right timing.

Despite of the challenging global environment, | am confident that
our strong and dynamic management team will lead the Group to
an even brighter future, and will take on each challenge and seize it
as an opportunity to grow the Group's business.

As part of our commitment to diversifying and strengthening our
business base, we will continue to develop our medical and
healthcare business. In the immediate future, we will continue to
pursue opportunities for investment in this business for the purpose
of integrating it into a one-stop shop for medical and healthcare
related services with world-class technologies.

APPRECIATION

As the new chairlady of the Group, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my appreciation to all the loyal employees
for their dedication and diligence over the past year. At last but not
least, | would also like to give my sincerest thanks to all of our
business partners, customers and shareholders for their unflagging
support.

Shi Qi
Chairlady, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

E5OEKEE

MARKET REVIEW

During the financial year, worldwide conditions were remained
uncertain. On the one hand, economy of U.S. continued to rebound
slowly but gradually, prompting the Federal Reserve to raise
interest rates for the first time since 2006. On the other hand, high
unemployment rate in Western Europe remained untamed, forcing
the European Central Bank to move into negative interest territory
to rescue the weak economies. This led to a severe volatility on
global economies which in return weaken the consumer sentiment
on electronic products and ultimately deteriorated the performance
of the Group’s customers. Apart from that, China has transited to
the “New Normal” state — i.e. Gross Domestic Product (“GDP")
growth rate of 7%, the lowest in 25 years. The China’s official PMI
(Purchasing Managers’ Index) measure was rapidly falling since
dipping below 50 in July 2015. These clearly showed the difficult
operating environment faced by all manufacturers in China.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Company’s Overall Performance

With the continuous market contraction on conventional electronic
products, most of our customers were facing downwards pressure
on sales orders during the year. This has inevitably affected their
sales performance as well as the Group's. The revenue for the
financial year ended 31 July 2016, decreased by 9.3% as compared
to last year. The primary source of income of the Group still derived
from sales of consumer electronic devices (“CED") peripheral
products and computers, and its percentage to total revenue were
45.3% and 15.2% respectively.

According to latest market research, the global computers
shipments have lost some momentum and have been resulting in a
continuous decrease for the year. Therefore, the Group has
suffered a strong hit from the sluggish market, resulting in reduced
revenue in keypads of notebook and computers segment.

To cope with the shrink of keypads products market, the Group has
continued exploring the market of non-keypad products.

With the nature of more environmental friendly and fancy design,
the daily living products made of silicone rubber become more
common. This trend also extended to those peripheral products of
CED. During the year, the Group was placing more effort towards
the introduction of application of silicone material and
demonstrated the ability to meet the customers’ specific
requirement. The success in expansion in customer base caused
the proportion of non-keypad sales continue to increase. With the
increase of awareness in the application of silicone materials, it is
believed it will become the new driving force to growth of revenue.
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

E5OE K EE

The operating environment in the PRC was still tough during the
year. Fortunately, the production costs have been decreasing
following the continuous depreciation of the RMB starting from
August last year. Together with the tight cost controls measure and
improvement in operational efficiency, the gross profit margins
recorded an obvious improvement for the consecutive year.

OUTLOOK

U.S. economy is forecasted to grow mildly in the coming year, but
will continue to hamper economies in countries which had initiated
QE, such as the Eurozone and Japan, under the gloom of
impending interest rate hike by the U.S. Federal Reserve. The
looming Brexit and political turmoil would also cast uncertainty to
the already gloomy economy. On the other hand, the GDP growth
rate in China will experience a continued slowdown in the coming
years, although the government of China is likely to take measures
to maintain growth. The Group foresees the business operating
environment will face constant fluctuation. At the same time,
although the recent depreciation of RMB can slightly release the
pressure of increasing cost, it brings more uncertainties to many
manufacturers in the PRC. The management will remain cautious of
the Group's outlook.

As the use of silicone rubber are becoming more and more
common in daily life, the Group will continue to put more efforts on
research and development to improve product quality, develop
application ability of raw material and broaden its product mix. This
proactive strategy will enable the Group to convert to a silicone
rubber producer from a keypad producer, which can have a
broader mix in customer portfolio.

With the Group’s long term business strategies to explore other
business opportunities and diversify the income stream of the
Group into different areas, the Group has acquired hotel properties
located at Sanya Yalong Bay, Hainan Province, PRC which will be
developed into a high-ended healthcare holiday resort, providing a
one-stop shop for medical and healthcare-related services with
world class technologies. We believed that it is an attractive
investment opportunity for the Group to enter into the medical and
healthcare business, which has a substantial growth potential.

Looking ahead, the global economy is not only full of uncertainties
but also opportunities. The Group adopts prudent and positive
attitude in keeping track with market change closely in order to
manage its future development and to seek for attractive business
opportunities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Revenue represents gross revenue generated from the sales of our
products, net of sales tax and other similar taxes. Our revenue is
affected by the volume of total products sold and the product mix
because our product lines have different selling prices.

The consolidated revenue for the year ended 31 July 2016 was
decreased by approximately 9.3% to HK$386.5 million (2015:
HK$426.2 million) while our loss attributable to equity shareholders
was HK$71.3 million (2015: HK$156.3 million).

Basic loss per share of the Company was HK9.12 cents (2015:
HK20.08 cents) per share based on the weighted average number
of 781,747,000 shares of the Company (“Shares”) (2015: 778,546,000
Shares) in issue during the year.

SALES BY PRODUCT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Consumer electronic devices peripheral products

Revenue for the consumer electronic devices peripheral products
decreased by approximately 21.4% to HK$175.1 million in 2016
from HK$222.6 million in 2015.

The global economy remained sluggish because of sovereign debt
crisis in Eurozone and Brexit. Besides, continuous interest rate hikes
in U.S. is predicted. The recent disappointing PRC economic
indicators also showed the unclear prospects in the PRC economy.
All these are weakening to consumer sentiment. At the same time,
intense competition and market consolidation still persisted in the
industry. As a result, the sales of keypads for the consumer
electronic devices dropped during the year.

Keypads for computers and notebooks

Revenue for the sales of keypads for computers and notebooks
decreased by approximately 33.2% to HK$58.8 million in 2016 from
HK$88.1 million in 2015. The worldwide PC shipments recorded a
further contraction during the year especially for the performance
of traditional notebooks and computers. Therefore, it caused the
Group to suffer a strong hit from the sluggish market for the
consecutive years.

Lifestyle products

Revenue for sales of lifestyle products decreased by approximately
1.4% to HK$37.8 million in 2016 from HK$38.3 million in 2015. With
market competition still keen in lifestyle products, the revenue has
decreased slightly during the year. The Group will continue to put
more effort to explore the market and work with our customers to
develop more unique products to protect and elevate their position
in the market.

Mobile phone peripheral products

Revenue for the sales of mobile phone peripheral products
increased by approximately 26.6% to HK$9.9 million in 2016 from
HK$7.9 million in 2015. The smartphones with touch-screen panels
has received mainstream attention in the market from consumers,
so the demand for the conventional mobile phones with keypads
was gradually phased out. However, the Group has succeed to
explore the mobile phone market of non-keypad products. This
caused the revenue in this segment to rebound during the year.

Automotive peripheral products

Revenue for the sales of automotive peripheral products decreased
by approximately 8.9% to HK$31.5 million in 2016 from HK$34.6
million in 2015. Under the gloom of impending interest rate hike by
the U.S. Federal which weaken the consumer sentiment on the
automotive market. This led the sales orders for automotive
peripheral products decreased accordingly.
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Chemical products

Revenue for sales of chemical products was HK$43.4 million in 2016.
With the close relationship with our suppliers which specialised in
application of chemicals, the Group succeeded to develop the
business of sales of chemical products.

Although the contribution was not significant to the Group, the
Group will put more resources on this market to broaden the
product mix.

Cost of Sales

Cost structure

The overall cost of sales decreased by approximately 15.5% from
HK$376.1 million in 2015 to HK$317.8 million in 2016.

The operating environment is still very tough for all PRC based
manufacturers. The Group had to face the increasing production
cost. Besides, despite of the drop in the revenue, the fixed
overhead cannot be eliminated which cause the average cost of
sales to increase materially. On the other hand, the depreciation of
RMB decelerated the growth rate of the production cost. Together
with effort of tight cost control and operational efficiency, the rate
of decrease in cost of sales is much higher than that of revenue.

Gross Profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year increased by
approximately 37.1% to HK$68.7 million in 2016 from HK$50.1
million in 2015. Despite of the contraction of revenue, the Group
managed to improve gross profit by consolidation of production
process and cost control together with the depreciation of RMB.

Other Operating Income

Other operating income increased by approximately 25.6% to
HK$19.5 million in 2016 from HK$15.5 million in 2015. The increase
was primarily due to gain on disposal of certain subsidiaries which
are not related to the core business and the increase in rental
income because of the increased premises for lease.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
37.8% to HK$27.9 million in 2016 from HK$44.8 million in 2015.
When counted as a percentage of revenue, the total amount was
7.2% (2015: 10.5%). The decrease was due to the decline in sales
volume and the depreciation of RMB.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased slightly by approximately 0.7%
to HK$104.7 million in 2016 from HK$103.9 million in 2015. Despite
of the cost control measures and the result of operation efficiency
improvement, the reason for the increase in amount was due to
additional cost incurred to explore the investment opportunity in
other business areas together with the acquisition of the hotel
properties in Hainan Province which aimed at the development of
medical and healthcare business.
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Loss attributable to Shareholders

Loss attributable to shareholder for the year ended 31 July 2016
was HK$72.3 million (2015: HK$159.4 million). The net loss margin
of our Group decreased from 37.4% for the year ended 31 July 2015
to 18.7% for the year ended 31 July 2016.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Our Directors expect that dividends will be paid as interim and/or
final dividends. We currently intend to pay annual cash dividends of
not less than 30% of our Group’s audited consolidated profits after
taxation to our shareholders for the applicable year. However, the
determination to pay such dividends will be made at the discretion
of our Board and will be based upon our operating results, cash
flows, financial positions, capital requirements and other relevant
circumstances that the Board deems relevant. The payment of
dividends may be limited by legal restrictions and by agreements
that we may enter into in the future. Our Directors are of the views
that our dividend policy will not affect the sufficiency of our working
capital in the coming years.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY
POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management
and investment on uncommitted funds. The net proceeds from the
international offering (as defined in the Prospectus) have mainly
been placed on short-term deposits with authorised financial
institutions in Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group's receipts were mainly denominated in
US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and RMB. Payments were mainly
made in US dollars and RMB.

In respect of the US dollar, the management regards that the
foreign exchange risk for Hong Kong dollar to US dollar is not
material because (i) Hong Kong dollar remains pegged to the US
dollar and (ii) most of the Group's purchases are denominated in
US dollars, which are to be settled by sales receipts in US dollars.

In respect of the RMB, as the Group's production plants are located
in the PRC, most of our labour costs, manufacturing overheads,
selling and administrative expenses were denominated in RMB.
Therefore, the appreciation of RMB will adversely affect the Group's
profitability.

During the year, the Group has entered into some RMB/USD
structured forward contracts to partly hedge the risk exposure. The
Group will continue to closely monitor foreign exchange exposure
for RMB and consider hedging significant exposure should the
need arises.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year, the Group's source of fund was cash generated
from net proceeds of the international offering and operating
activities.

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY
Net cash inflow (outflow) BamACRL) F58
Current ratio BN

Quick ratio R LE R

BeRnERMERE

FR-AEENESRREIELSBEBREENFRE
REFRENKERDNES -

As at As at
31 July 2016 31 July 2015
R-B—AE  R-T-8%F
+tA=+—H +tA=+—8

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET

154,094 103,556
54,781 (97,502)

2.5 2.7

2.3 2.3

With our strong financial background upon Listing on the Stock
Exchange, we expect we will have sufficient cash to cover future
capital expenditure requirements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of any
subsidiaries and associated companies for the year ended 31 July
2016.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised from the international offering received by
the Company was approximately HK$635 million.

RS RIARE
ARRKREERENESHBRBEFIBRY
635,000,000 7T ©

The usage of net proceeds until 31 July 2016 are as follows: HE"ZT-—XRFLtHA=1+—H AEREFED
TETDIAE :
Planned Utilised
Particular amount amount
HER T8I AR EEARK
HK$ million HK$ million
BEATT BEBT
Expansion of production facilities for silicone  ¥&F R B RAEER
rubber based products 468 (344)
Upgrade and expansion of upstream RF AR B AR
production facilities 56 -
Strengthening research and IERGE )
development capabilities 39 (39
Implementation of resources planning system #1174 RRE R4 22 (1)
General working capital —REEED 50 (50)
Total “aEt 635 (434)

The remaining net proceeds have been deposited on short-term
basis in licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND
CHARGES ON ASSETS

Capital commitments contracted by the Group but not yet
provided for in the consolidated financial statements as at 31 July
2016 were approximately HK$379.6 million (2015: HK$6.1 million),
which was mainly related to the acquisition of land use right in
Indonesia and acquisition of properties and expansion of
production capacity in the PRC. Such capital commitments will be
financed by the internal sources of funding, share placing and bank
borrowings.

As at 31 July 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.
As at 31 July 2016, certain properties of the Group of HK$7.9 million

(2015: HK$8.1 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

PRSI BHRREF RN B R B AR R
TEHBIERREITER -

BERiE RAERREEEN

RZB-—REFLA=+—0 TEEDTHEX
AR B M SRR B R B AR SEH) 75 379,600,000
B (ZZE—HR%F : 6,100,000/87T) - = EHYFHE
ENfE Ly At R BB 5 M IE T A at
B BRAENAERUARNTER KR - ROEE
MERTTHRE BT ©

N_E—RFLA=1+T—H TEEWEEKRL

R-ZEBE—-—RNRE+A=+—R0 KXEEEME
7,900,000% 7T ( — & — A 4F : 8,100,000/% 7T ) &9
ETMEE TER  EAAEEMERTHEN
AR -

AARBEREBRAT 9
T NETH



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As the Group is committed to expand our production capacity and
develop high value-added products, such as mobile phone
keypads, experienced workers, engineers and professionals are the
most important assets to the Group. We offer on-the-job training
and encourage staff to attend continuous professional training in
order to update their skills and knowledge.

We offer competitive remuneration package, including quality staff
quarters, trainings, medical, insurance coverage and retirement
benefits, to all employees in Hong Kong and in the PRC. As at 31
July 2016, the Group has 1,370 permanent and temporary
employees (2015: 1,995). The total salaries and related costs for the
year ended 31 July 2016 amounted to approximately HK$154.6
million (2015: HK$196.5 million).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Shareholders
and other
stakeholders

iR 3R B ElAth
&

Board
of Directors

=g

Audit Executive Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
EREEE HITEEE REZEEE

External
Auditor
SMNIERZ BURT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company strives to attain and maintain high standards of
corporate governance best suited to the needs and interests of the
Group as it believes that effective corporate governance practices
is a fundamental to enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board sets
appropriate policies and implements corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of the Group's
business.
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The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the ”

Listing Rules”) which sets out principles of good corporate

governance and two levels of recommendations:

Code Provisions, with which issuers are expected to comply
or give considered reasons for any deviation; and

Recommended Best Practices, for guidance only, save that
issuers are encouraged to comply or give reasons for
deviation.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of
the CG Code throughout the year ended 31 July 2016, except:

()

(i)

the code provision A.2.1 which requires the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. However, Ms. Shi Qi is
acting as both the chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”)
and the Chief Executive Office (the “"CEQO").

The Board believes that vesting the roles of both the
Chairlady and the CEO in the same person has the benefit of
ensuring consistent leadership within the Group and enables
more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for the
Group. The Board further believes that the balance of power
and authority for the present arrangement will not be
impaired since the responsibilities of the Chairlady and the
CEO have been clearly established and set out in writing. It is
also adequately ensured by the current Board which
comprises the experienced and high caliber individuals with
sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive
Directors.

the code provision C.1.2 which requires the management of
the Company to provide all members of the Board with
monthly updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

ARRERMCBEABARIMERARES L
mARAD ([ EmRA) K+ mprE 2 (R EER
STRD (TRESFRI) - RFTARFEREARNR
B B o {8 R 3R

o STTHMENX : EHARFEVEEST 1Y
E 1A B <7 RIS RO 1B 0 1 R B 2B Y
e

EEsERSR RAEES EEBLETA
B 00 LA S8 57 3 A7 s B <7 RIS A 1B
TEHR BB ROMREE -

ARBRBE-_T-—R"ELA=T—HLEFER
BT ESTRIRER SRR

() MESTAMESCA2 GRS - BIRE X ETT
Bz AeRTESBETEAR AL
EE - AT - emATEEESEETE( T
7 D) Rt eE ([1TREE]) 2 At

EXZgHE AR BALRBEEEZRE
RATERBE W EBAL TR R A EE E B
BY TEYURAREMAEAER 28
BRES - BN ﬁ%@*WEEEH%ZEEEFT\
SREBRELENME ZBHFE
RIFERITREH 2BE iﬁaiﬁxa%ﬁ
EREY - BEZESTERKLREZTOA
T(Eqﬂﬁ%EZ/\%Mé‘&ﬁi;E#ﬂ TEE)
AR - BB ARER B BB BE i R ]
21 .
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During the year, the management of the Company did not
provide monthly updates to all members of the Board as
required by the code provision C.1.2, as all the executive
Directors were involved in the daily operation of the Group
and were fully aware of the performance, position and
prospects of the Company, and the management has
provided to all Directors (including non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors) quarterly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects in sufficient
detail prior to the regular board meetings of the Company.

In addition, the management of the Company has provided
all members of the Board, in a timely manner, updates on any
material changes to the performance, position and prospects
of the Company and sufficient background or explanatory
information for matters brought before the Board.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its “Code of Ethics and Securities
Transaction” to regulate the Directors and relevant employees of
the Group in dealing securities of the Company on terms no less
exacting than those set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers stated in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules (the "Model Code"”). The Model Code also
provides guidelines and procedures on handling conflict of interest
of Directors.

In response to the specific enquiry by the Company, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code and its Code of Ethics and
Securities Transaction throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
comprises four executive Directors, two non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The function of
the Board is to guide the management to ensure the interests of
the shareholders of the Company are safeguarded.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse board to enhance the quality of its performance. In
compliance with the requirement set out in code provision A.5.6 of
the CG Code, the Company adopted a board diversity policy (the
"Board Diversity Policy”) on 30 August 2013 which aims to set out
the approach to achieving diversity for the Board.

The policy statement of the Board Diversity Policy is that the
Company recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses a
balance of skills, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the Company.
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The Company maintains that Board appointment should be based
on merit that complements and expands the skills, experience and
expertise of the Board as a whole, taking into account gender, age,
professional experience and qualifications, cultural and educational
background, and any other factors that the Board might consider
relevant and applicable from time to time towards achieving a
diverse Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company is responsible for
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of new
directors of the Company from time to time to ensure that it has a
balanced composition of skills, experience and expertise
appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of the Company,
with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board
as a whole is also responsible for reviewing the succession plan for
the directors of the Company, in particular, the Chairman/the
Chairlady and the CEO.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time.

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to
time, taking into account the scope and nature of operations of the
Company, to ensure that the size of the Board is adequate to
provide a diversity of views and facilitate effective decision making.
The Directors come from diverse background with varied expertise
in finance, legal industry and business fields. The biographical
details of the Directors and the relationships among them are set
out in the “Directors’ Profile” on pages 12 to 16 of this annual
report and the Company'’s website. The Company has maintained
on the Company’s website and on the website of the Stock
Exchange an updated list of its Directors identifying their roles and
functions and whether they are Independent non-executive
Directors. Independent non-executive Directors are identified as
such in all corporate communications that disclose the names of
Directors.

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ Profile”, none of the
Directors has any financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationships among members of the Board.
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The position, appointment date and re-election date of the current BT EFeR B - SEQ L EE [ BN
Board members are as follows: T
Date of first Date of last
appointment  re-election as
Name of Director Position to the Board Director
BREZER RIL—
EEENE BREES
EERE Bifs WEH ESHEE
Shi Qi Chairlady/Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director 06/04/2016 -
ke TR TREE BITES
Xu Chendi Executive Director 06/04/2016 -
AR WITEE
Qiu Yonghao Executive Director 06/04/2016 -
157,93 WITES
Huang Te-Wei Executive Director 23/02/2006 12/12/2013
=B WITES
Gao Feng Non-Executive Director 06/04/2016 -
=g FERMITES
Han Lei Non-Executive Director 06/04/2016 -
§EEE HERITESF
Zhang Lijuan Independent Non-Executive Director 27/04/2016 -
RIB BIUFHITES
Pak Wai Keung, Martin  Independent Non-Executive Director 27/04/2016 -
SR BIIEHTES
Yeung Chi Tat Independent Non-Executive Director 16/05/2007 11/12/2015

HEE B IEITES

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all
Directors (including executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly,
at the annual general meeting to be held on 15 December 2016,
Mr. Huang Te-Wei shall retire from offices by rotation and offer
himself for re-election.

Ms. Shi Qi, Ms. Xu Chendi, Mr. Qiu Yonghao, Mr. Gao Feng, Mr.
Han Lei, Ms. Zhang Lijuan and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, being
newly appointed Directors, will hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and be subject to re-election at such
meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Furthermore, all Directors (including non-executive Directors) were
appointed for a specific term. Formal letters of appointment or
service contracts setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment were in place.
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Ms. Shi Qi, Ms. Xu Chendi and Mr. Qiu Yonghao were appointed as
Executive Directors in 2016. They have entered into service
contracts with the Company on é April 2016 for a period of three
years commencing from 6 April 2016 and subject to a termination
by giving not less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Huang Te-Wei was appointed as Executive Director in 2006 and
has renewed his service contract with the Company for a period of
three years commencing from 16 May 2016 and subject to a
termination by giving not less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Gao Feng and Mr. Han Lei were appointed as non-executive
Directors in 2016. They have entered into formal appointment
letters on 6 April 2016 for a period of three years commencing from
6 April 2016 and subject to a termination by giving not less than
one month's prior written notice.

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat has entered into a formal appointment letter for
appointing him as an independent non-executive Director for a
term of three years in 2007. His appointment letter has been
renewed again on 16 May 2014 for a period of three years
commencing from 16 May 2014 and subject to a termination by
giving not less than one month'’s prior written notice.

Ms. Zhang Lijuan and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin have entered into
formal appointment letters for appointing them as independent
non-executive Directors on 27 April 2016 for a term of three years
commencing from 27 April 2016 which were subject to a termination
by giving not less than one month'’s prior written notice.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. All executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors bring a variety
of experience and expertise to the Company.

All independent non-executive Directors have fulfilled all the
criteria for independence as stated in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

R L - FFREZEMEOREARN - T —
FEZEIRWTES - REFCR T FOA
NEERRBFIREEH  B=F—"FOA

AR AB=F YAEAHHAPR=ZEAN

EEEEBAMBAL -

BREBREER_TERNFEZIANTES K
EEK REEERBEH AT ﬁiﬁﬂ
TARBEFABM=F HAEBELTIR=(E
ARMELEEBAMMELL

DELRERBREEN T RNFEZERIENR
TEE- ﬂQEEEEEA:: —NEFEHANBEZIER

ZEE BT ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬁﬂtﬁﬁﬂfﬁ
I B A B AR —{E A ELEEBAmA L o
R-ZEZLF  BEERLCHRZTERABIUIF
HITESRF L DERZES  AH=F - EZ

FEER-ZNMFEA+EBEEE 8=
Z-MERATARBREFRH=F WAFEH
POR—EANEEEERAMAL

RIDBRENBARBREEER —T—RFMA
ZTHHRIEREESE %Ef&wﬁﬁiitiﬂ
TEF BT RFOHA-tTEREFA/H=
FoWAAERTOR—EANELEEEBAM
Ak e

EEgmRBEREME MBRESHABEER
SEMEEEHRBORETENR N0
ERRBABERE,HEPIRH ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂi
= FRTEERBIUFNTESTHREREAR
mRSEER R FEFIHE -

FIBBYIFMITESC A LMARRE 313G
52 BB SR -

RARBERERAT 44



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

;LI/_/\-/-\—\

1FE 3= /D#&m

The Board holds at least four regular meetings a year which are

normally scheduled in the fourth quarter of the preceding year. The

Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-level

decision on a particular matter is required. During the financial year
ended 31 July 2016, the Board held four regular meetings in
October 2015, January, March and July 2016. The attendance

records of the Directors to these regular board meetings are set

out below:

Executive Directors

Shi Qi (appointed on 6 April 2016)

Xu Chendi (appointed on 6 April 2016)

Qiu Yonghao (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Huang Te-Wei

Huang Sheng-Shun (resigned on 27 April 2016)
Wong Tak Leung (resigned on 27 April 2016)
Kwok Yiu Kai (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Non-executive Directors

Gao Feng (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Han Lei (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Wu Ih Chen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016)
Pak Wai Keung, Martin

(appointed on 27 April 2016)
Yeung Chi Tat
Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)
Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016)
Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Number of regular meetings held during the year

é%ﬁlfﬁﬂ’ CRITIGEM S - —RENA
—EENFBREERNME EFENENREER
FRFLEFERBEREHEZ -BE_T—X
FLA=T—BLYVBFE EFER_F—H

FTARZZE—REF—A - ZAKEABTER
THEE - TRETEENRSEFTTERND
fE A8
Number of
meetings attended/
Number of
regular meetings
held during
appointment period
HEREEEHR
BITEHERAE
HITE
pE (B f;?*/_\iﬂﬂ/_\ﬁﬁ%%f{) 1/
.FHE (K:;ﬁfﬁiﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁééﬁ) 1/
B 3/4
=R (R _T-—R"EFOA -+ HEHT) 3/3
FER(MPIE-RFOEAZ+HHEE) 3/3
FRE(R T RFEAZ++HHEE) 2/3
FHITEE
BE(R-_FE—XFNANEBEZT) 0/1
Ba(RZE—A"FEANBEZE) 0/1
REFNRE-—REOAZ+LHEHT) 3/3
BUFHITESE
RIVE(RZE—RFEAZTHRAEEZT) 1/
HER(VR-Z2—RFEHAZTHAEZEZT) 1/
HE5E 4/4
# (R ZE-REOA -+ HEHME) 3/3
BN (RZZE—RFOAZ++HEE) 2/3
BESE(R_E—RXEFOA -+t HEHT) 2/3
FRARITERHSH LB 4

All minutes of the meetings, record in sufficient detail the matters

considered and decisions reached, are kept by the Company

Secretary and are opened for inspection by Directors at any time.

The meetings are structured to allow open discussion. All Directors
participate in discussing the strategy, operational and financial

performance and internal control of the Group.
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman/the Chairlady to
prepare the agenda of the meeting and each Director may request
to include any matters in the agenda. At least 14 days’ notice is
given to the Directors for the regular meetings by the Company. All
substantive agenda items have comprehensive briefing papers
which are distributed by the Company Secretary to Directors at
least 3 days before the Board meetings so as to ensure that the
Directors may receive accurate, timely and clear information to
make informed decisions regarding the matters discussed in the
meetings.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible for
ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed and
providing the Board opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in
a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will not dealt
with the matter by way of written resolution or by a Board
committee (except if that Board committee was specifically
established for such purpose) but by a physical board meeting. The
independent non-executive Director with no material interest in the
matter will attend the meeting to deal with the matter as
appropriate subject to the Listing Rules and/or the Company'’s
articles of association, as appropriate, any Director who or whose
associates have any material interest in any proposed Board
resolutions shall not vote (nor be counted in the quorum) on the
relevant Board resolutions.

In addition to the four regular Board meetings held during the
financial year ended 31 July 2016, the Chairlady held one meeting
with Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) in July 2016 without the presence of Executive
Directors.

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management of
the Company'’s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing
long term shareholder’s value, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests. The Board has the following main duties:

° determine all the corporate matters;

o be responsible for the management, direction and supervision
of the businesses of the Group; and

o be responsible to ensure the effectiveness on Group's
financial reporting and compliance.
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The Board has matters reserved for its decisions and these include:
o the Group's long-term strategy and business plan;

° major capital projects, acquisitions or divestments;

J funding decision of the Group;

o internal control, risk management and compliance; and

° annual and interim financial results and shareholder
communications.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies and
management of the Group's businesses to the executive Directors,
senior management and certain specific responsibilities to the
Board committees.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances. While allowing management
substantial autonomy to run and develop the business, the Board
plays a key role in structuring and monitoring the reporting systems
and internal controls. The composition, functions of each Board
committee and their major role and function are described below.
The final decision still rests with the Board unless otherwise provide
for in the terms of reference of relevant committees.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
skills and business experience to the Group. They also bring
independent judgment on the issues of strategy, performance and
risk through their contribution to the Board meetings and to the
Board's committee meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, two
of them have appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company, based on such confirmations, considers, Ms. Zhang
Lijuan, Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin to be
independent.
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The independence of each Director is reviewed annually by the
Nomination Committee based on the definition of independence
defined in the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee is satisfied
as to the independence of Ms. Zhang Lijuan, Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and
Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, all of whom have fulfilled all the criteria
for independence as stated in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The management supplied the Board with appropriate and
sufficient explanation and information through financial reports,
business and operational reports and budget statements, in a
timely manner, to enable them to make informed decisions.

The management also provided the Board with quarterly updates
giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Company's performance, position and prospects in sufficient
details to enable the Board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Directors are also provided with names and contact details of
the Company'’s senior management and the Company Secretary to
facilitate Director access to senior management and the Company
Secretary.

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company Secretary from time to time
updates and provides written training materials to the Directors,
and organises seminars on the latest development of the Listing
Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’
duties and responsibilities. The Directors may request the
Company, pursuant to the policy for Directors to seek independent
professional advice, to provide independent professional advice at
the expense of the Company to discharge their duties to the
Company.

During the year ended 31 July 2016, the Company has organised
three training sessions on the following topics for the Directors and

the management of the Company to attend:

1. Role, function and responsibility of Directors in listed
company and Corporate Governance Code;

2. Risk Management; and

3. Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting.
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The Company Secretary maintains records of training attended by
the Directors. The training attended by the Directors and the
Company Secretary during the year ended 31 July 2016 are as
follows:

Directors
BE
Executive Directors HITEE
Shi Qi ke
Xu Chendi =gt
Qiu Yonghao BB KR
Huang Te-Wei el
Non-Executive Directors FBITEE
Gao Feng =&
Han Lei B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHTEE
Zhang Lijuan R I18
Yeung Chi Tat BEE
Pak Wai Keung, Martin SREE:Y
Company Secretary LA BE
Chan Qi Fat PRE

Note:

a. Corporate governance

b. Regulatory

c. Corporate strategy and business

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and the senior management of the
Company for the year 2016/2017. The insurance covers them
against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred arising out
of the corporate activities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
the Chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”) and the Chief
Executive Officer (the "CEQ") should segregated in order to
reinforce their independence and accountability. Up to the date of
this report, the roles of the Chairlady of the Board (the “Chairlady”)
and the CEO were not separate and Ms. Shi Qi currently performs
these two roles.
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The Board believes that vesting the roles of both the Chairlady and
the CEO in the same individual has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and enables more effective
and efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
further believes that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately
ensured by the current Board which comprises experienced and
high calibre individuals with sufficient number thereof being
independent non-executive Directors.

Moreover, there are clear demarcations of responsibility and
authority between the Chairman/Chairlady and the CEO which also
ensure an appropriate balance of power, increased accountability
and greater capacity of the Board for independent decision-
making.

The responsibilities of the Chairman/Chairlady include:

1. ensuring all Directors are properly briefed on matters to be
discussed at Board meetings;

2. ensuring all Directors receive adequate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner;

3. providing leadership for the Board,;

4. ensuring that the Board works effectively, performs its
responsibilities and discusses all key issues in a timely manner;

5. ensuring that, with the assistance of the Company Secretary,
settles and approves the agenda for Board meetings taking
into account any matters proposed by the other Directors for
inclusion in the agenda;

6. taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are in place. Assisted
by the Company Secretary, the Chairman/Chairlady oversees
the implementation of the practices and procedures on
Corporate Governance;

7. giving each Director an opportunity to express his/her
different views at Board meetings and to voice their concerns;
encouraging all Directors to fully contribute to the Board's
affairs and ensuring that the Board acts in the best interests
of the Company; allowing sufficient time for discussion of
issues and ensuring that Board decisions fairly reflect Board
consensus;

8.  at least annually holding meetings with the Non-executive
Directors without the Executive Directors present;
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9. ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and

10. promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in
particular and ensuring constructive relations between
Executive and Non-executive Directors.

The responsibilities of the CEO include:

1. providing leadership for the management;

2. implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s
strategy;

3. overseeing the realization by the Company of the objectives

set by the Board;

4. providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to
enable the Board to monitor the performance of
management;

5. leading the management of the Company’s relationships with

its stakeholders;

6. putting in place programs for management development and
succession;

7. with the Financial Controller, establishing and maintaining
proper internal controls and risk management systems as well

as disclosure controls and procedures; and

8.  discharging such duties and authority as may be delegated in
writing to him by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
currently delegated specific functions to five Board committees.
They are the Audit Committee (“"AC"), Remuneration Committee
("RC"), Nomination Committee ("NC"), Compliance Committee
("CC") and Executive Committee ("EC"). As at the date of this
annual report, the composition of each committees are as follows:

EFEERT
EXERAMAAAEEZBSTREEME - A
BHEERNTRY - EFZRGREEREER

g([E&ZBe)) F¥MEES(FMEZE

AJ) REZEE([RRLBE)) ARZEE
([EHRZBEDRWITREE(THITREE]) -
RAFHRAY  ZEZESAKIT ¢

Committee membership

ZEEHE
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Compliance Executive

Name Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
"E ENZEE REZEE ¥HMZEE ARZEE HTREE
Shi Qi iz C
Xu Chendi #Ri M M
Qiu Yonghao il 9 M
Huang Te-Wei BEE M M
Zhang Lijuan Eb=! M M C
Yeung Chi Tat BEE M C M
Pak Wai Keung, Martin SIEE C M M C
Chan Oi Fat BEH M M
Krassovski Victor FIAE M

Notes: Bzt

C Chairman/Chairlady of the relevant Board committees C HHEEZESTR

M Member of the relevant Board committees M  HREEZESKE

The written terms of reference of AC, NC and RC are available on HEiZZE € - RELZESNFNEZETHNEAR

the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

AC was established on 16 May 2007 and currently comprises three
members. All are independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Pak Wai Keung, Martin (Chairman), Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and Ms.
Zhang Lijuan. The external auditor and the Financial Controller also
attended meetings of AC by invitation.

The committee’s responsibilities include the following:

o reports to the Board and holds regular meetings to assist the
Board in discharging its responsibilities for effective financial
reporting controls, internal controls and risk management.

o monitors the integrity of the Company'’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts and half-year report and reviews
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.

o reviews, makes recommendations and reports to the Board
on findings relating to the financial statements, reports and
accounts, systems of internal control and compliance issues.
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o oversees the Company's relationship with the external e
auditor, reviews auditor’s letter of engagement and makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and

reappointment of external auditor.

J reviews and monitors the external auditor’s independence o
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards.

J reviews external auditor’'s management letter and any o
material queries raised by the auditor to the management

and the management’s response.

ERARNRREIIEZBENEEE  BHX
BN RIEE  WHERE REBINERH
fhMEEEELER -

AR 5 PR 2 B 2R B M BRSNS R BB 1 08
THENREEZEFEREEBNAR

2= BRSNS AZ BRED B E IR B O BR 1 B A LR
MEREROMNEMERER  URERE
EEL e mfE -

Further details on the work of the committee for the year 2015/2016 ZE&€WR_T— AT T — X FFETIEMNE

could be found under “Audit Committee Report” of this annual

report.

—HHBUARAFER [BREEERE] 6
B -

Currently, the members of RC are Ms. Zhang Lijuan (Chairlady), Mr. B Al HiNZE €M EB AR IBL L (EE) - 15

Yeung Chi Tat and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin. All of whom are

independent non-executive Directors.

SEEERARBRELE  2HERBULIFNTE

o

=
The committee met once during the year in October 2015. The ZE8@FANR_ZT—RAFTART—XNZE ' K
8

attendance records are set out below:

Name

A

Zhang Lijuan (Chairlady)

(appointed on 27 April 2016)
Pak Wai Keung, Martin

(appointed on 27 April 2016)
Yeung Chi Tat
Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)
Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016)
Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Number of meeting held during the year
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RSN

No. of meeting

attended/

No. of meeting

held during

appointment period

HERE, ZEHR

BITEBRE

RIVB(FE) 0/0
(RZZE—ARFUNA=-++tHEZT)

HER(R-ZZE—"FNA-+EREEZE) 0/0

T E 11

HW (R ZZE—REMAZ++RHEHE) 11

BHE (RZE—"FW0A Z++tHET) 1/1

S (R _E—R"FOA -+t BEHT) 0/1

FRNRITERRE 1
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The responsibilities of the committee include the following:

o recommend to the Board the Group's remuneration policy for
the Executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company;

o consider and advise on the terms of any contract to be

offered to a Director; and

o monitor the remuneration package of the Executive Directors
and senior management and make recommendations thereto.

Further information of the committee’s activities is contained in
“Remuneration Committee Report” of this annual report.

Currently, NC comprises three members, all of whom are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi Tat
(Chairman), Ms. Zhang Lijuan and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin.

The key objective of the committee is to ensure the Board
comprises individuals with a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company's business so as to enhance Board effectiveness.

The committee met once during the year in October 2015, the
attendance of the committee members are shown in the following
table:

ZEENBEBRRNUTEE:

s HARBAUARRRMTEERSRER
EOHMBRaEETSEhES

o EEREFRHMETMAE DGR RLIR
HER R

s EREWNTEELSIATEENFHMAES R
FRULVEH 23S -

ZEEmRBMNE - PRBERAFRZ [FHH
ZEEHE] -

BAl G REZEEH=2KEENK - 2B RE
THNTES  RERGTERE(ER) KN
BRERARBREL -

ZEEZEERE ARREESOENERE -
EREFAADARBEEL 2 {LHBH TR
B - R EE RS -

ZEEFAR-E-AFTART—REH
KRB TNEBERBMHLFLE

S

Number of meeting

attended/

Number of meeting

held during

Name appointment period

HERYEEHR

i BITEBREY

Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) HEE(FE) 1

Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016) RIB(RZZE—R"ENA-++REZE) 0/0

Pak Wai Keung, Martin BER(R-Z—RFOA-+-HEEET) 0/0
(appointed on 27 April 2016)

Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016) WK ZE—AR"FEA=—+EHET) 11

Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016) B (R—T—"FENA=-++tHBET) 171

Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016) BB (R -2 —REMNA -+t BEHE) 0/1

Number of meeting held during the year FRBITERRE 1
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The criteria for appointment of a new director are set out below:

possess core competencies that meet the needs of the
Company;

be able to commit time and carry out duties and
responsibilities; and

the independence in case of an independent non-executive
Director.

The committee leads the process and makes recommendation of
the appointment of new Director to the Board as follows:

evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspective on the Board and determine the role
and desirable competencies for a particular appointment in
consultation with the management;

review the portfolio of the potential candidate to assess
suitability; and

made recommendation to the Board.

Significant matters discussed by the committee are summarised as
follows:

To consider the re-election of the retiring Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting having regard to his/her
contribution and performance;

To access the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

To review the structure, size and composition of the Board.

CC currently comprises Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (Chairman), Ms.
Xu Chendi, Mr. Huang Te-Wei, Mr. Chan Oi Fat and Mr. Krassovski
Victor in which Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin is an independent non-
executive Director and Ms. Xu Chendi and Mr. Huang Te-Wei are
executive Directors.
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The committee met four times during the year, the attendance
records are set out below:

ZEENAFERTHRGH  KEHECHN

HEnT

Number of meetings

attended/
Number of meetings
held during
Name appointment period
HERE EEHR
HE BITEBRE
Pak Wai Keung, Martin (Chairman) SIEE:AEY=)) 11
(appointed on 27 April 2016) (RZZ—R"ENAZ+LtREZE)
Xu Chendi FRER-ZE-—R"FONAZTEtHEEZE) 171
(appointed on 27 April 2016)
Huang Te-Wei =R 3/4
Chan Oi Fat PR 3 4/4
Krassovski Victor MBS (RZE-—XR"EFNA=-TEtHEZE) 171
(appointed on 27 April 2016)
Yeung Chi Tat BEEMRIZE-—RENAZ T AT 3/3
(resigned on 27 April 2016)
Pai Chih-Kang BER(RZZ—RENA T AEHE) 3/3
(resigned on 27 April 2016)
Number of meetings held during the year FARITERRE 4

The major activities undertaken by the committee were overseeing
the financial, legal, statutory and the Listing Rules requirements,
internal control and corporate governance practices of the Group.
The committee reported their discussion and recommendation to
the Board periodically.

The overall responsibility of the committee is to ensure that the
Group complies with all the relevant rules, laws and regulations and
the Listing Rules.

EC was established on 3 September 2007 with specific written
terms of reference. The committee currently comprises five
members, by whom four of them are executive Directors, namely
Ms. Shi Qi, Ms. Xu Chendi, Mr. Qiu Yonghao and Mr. Huang Te-
Wei, together with Mr. Chan Oi Fat, the Company Secretary and
Financial Controller of the Company.

The committee is responsible for the day-to-day management of
the Group's businesses, the overall financial performance of the
Group in fulfillment of strategy, plans and budgets and the Group
capital expenditures as defined in the terms of reference.

The committee reports these topics to the Board their conclusions
and recommendations.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the Company'’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 July 2016.
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
accounts and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment for the Company’s performance, position and
prospects. The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited ("SHINEWING")
acknowledged their reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s report

Messrs.

on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 July
2016 as set out in pages 90 to 91 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 July 2016, SHINEWING was appointed as
the Group's auditor until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The remuneration paid/payable to SHINEWING
in respect of their audit and non-audit services were as follows:

FREREE

ERZARREFRCENALARE T~
FLASt-ALEENEANBRE - EFR
RESHREMERA RARDANEE - SR

MEIsiE 2 ¥ %W&i@ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ EEWTH
MEEMAIRES AR RREL LR NBREEY

R EFHERTEENERTHAREE -

EKFM(ER) G EBHAERAE ([EXH
FMDERENAFREOENEFFEEE —Z
—ANFELA=ZtT-RLEFESAMBRRNOKE
B ¥ & Fh P By R SR B AT

HE_ZT—RFLtA=1+—HLFE  EX+bH
BRI ATEENZEAN  THEEERFASF
REGERBIE - B RIEBARB AT B
SRR E BT

2016

—E—RF

HK$’'000

F&xT

Audit services Fi IR 1,060
Non-audit services FEEFT RIS

Other advisory services H b BRI AR TS 305

Total @5t 1,365

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 July
2016 were audited by SHINEWING. The Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that SHINEWING be nominated for
appointment as the auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Oi Fat, plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within
the Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company's affairs. He reports to the Board through the Chairman/
the Chairlady and the CEO. All Directors may access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary. He regularly updates the
Board on governance and regulatory matters. He also facilitates
induction and professional development of Directors.
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The Board is fully involved in selection, appointment and dismissal
of the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the
procedures of the Board meetings are observed and providing the
Board opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the
procedures of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 July 2016, the Company Secretary has
undertaken 28 hours of relevant professional training in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, details refer to “Continuing
Professional Development” set out on pages 45 to 46 of this annual
report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
shareholders of the Company. The Company uses annual general
meeting ("AGM") as one of the principal channels for
communicating with the shareholders. The Company ensures that
shareholders’ views are communicated to the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint
proxies to attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if
they are unable to attend the meetings. The process of the
Company's general meeting are monitored and reviewed on a
regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made to ensure
that shareholders’ needs are best served.

At the general meeting, each substantially separate issue has been
considered by a separate resolution, including the election of
individual Directors. The Chairman of the Board, chairmen of the
respective board committees and the external auditor usually
attend annual general meetings to inter-face with and answer
questions from the shareholders.
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The last annual general meeting of the Company was held on 11
December 2015 (“2015 AGM") at Rooms 1 and 2, United
Conference Centre, 10/F., United Centre, 95 Queensway, Admiralty,
Hong Kong. The Directors, including the Chairman of the Board,
the Chairmen of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees, and representative of the external auditor of the
Company, SHINEWING, attended, in person or via telephone, the
2015 AGM. The attendance records of the Directors to the 2015

AGM are set out below:

Directors

=

Executive Directors
Shi Qi (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Xu Chendi (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Qiu Yonghao (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Huang Te-Wei
Huang Sheng-Shun
(resigned on 27 April 2016)
Wong Tak Leung
(resigned on 27 April 2016)
Kwok Yiu Kai
(resigned on 27 April 2016)

Non-Executive Directors

Gao Feng (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Han Lei (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Wu Ih Chen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Pak Wai Keung, Martin

(appointed on 27 April 2016)
Yeung Chi Tat
Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)
Jou Yow-Jen

(resigned on 27 April 2016)
Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Number of meeting held during the year
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Notice to shareholders for the 2015 AGM was sent to shareholders
more than 20 clear business days prior to the 2015 AGM. The
chairman of the meeting exercised his power under the Company's
Articles of Association to put each proposed resolution to vote by
way of a poll. The Company adopted poll voting for all resolutions
put to vote at the meeting. The procedures for voting by poll at the
2015 AGM were contained in the circular of the Company to the
shareholders, which was dispatched together with the 2015 annual
report, and were further explained at the 2015 AGM prior to the
polls being taken. Separate resolutions were proposed at the 2015
AGM on each substantive issue and the percentage of votes cast in
favor of such resolutions as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 December 2015 are set out below:

—IFRERAFRAECREBEEIRE
*ﬁﬁ%%ﬁik@%ﬁ%ﬁ@:+m%%%%
HETERE KSEETERARAMERA
BIFTRE TR - IR EREMRERUEEH
AERR - ARBIRIBEARG KA ARFRE
%&?Eftﬁ%%oﬁ@:%fﬁﬁkﬁﬂﬁ
KALM&mEﬁERmEﬁ EW%F$
AR R BB - BRI ﬁiiﬁ
—HEFTRRE - ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁﬁ_e AERE
BERGETRZAMURE - R_Z—AFR
REFAEL SEAEFHUEBAZERIR
2 MEXNBEARZENZRIMENEI (R
ARRBPAE-ZE—RAF+-_A+—HAREF
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Percentage
of Votes cast
Resolutions proposed at the 2015 AGM in favor
BRHNER
REZB-—IFRRAFASRENABRR FrG BB 2t
1. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the reports of 100%
directors and the auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 July 2015.
HERERARAEBE_ S —AF AT - RALFENLERGEVBEREALESTgME N
ZEEN RS -
2. () Tore-elect Mr. Wu Ih Chen as a director of the Company. 100%
BERTHTERRNRRESF -
(i) Tore-elect Mr. Hsieh Yu as a director of the Company. 100%
ERBREERTRAESE -
(iiiy  Tore-elect Mr. Yeung Chi Tat as a director of the Company. 100%
ERGEERERADAESE -
3. To authorize the board of directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Directors. 99.9996%
BREANFIEEGETEENME
4. To re-appoint auditor and authorize the board of directors to fix their remuneration. 100%
ENEEREMT X REEFSETHENS
5. To approve granting the general mandate to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with the 99.9996%
Company's shares.
HERTES —RIEARCE - B1TREERRFRD -
6. To approve granting the general mandate to the Directors to repurchase the Company's 100%
shares.
HER TEE —RIFEABRIAQF RS
7. To authorize the Directors to extend the general mandate to issue new shares by adding the 100%

number of shares repurchased.

REEEFENMAMBRARN B BABTHRD N —RIXE -

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2015 AGM were passed.
The Company’s Branch Share Registrars were appointed as
scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast at that meeting.
The results of the voting by poll were published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the Board through the
Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the Board for
handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
Flat 28, 23/F., Metro Centre I,

21 Lam Hing Street,

Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Email: alfred@tayanggroup.com
Tel No.: (852) 3678-5088

Fax No.: (852) 3678-5099

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general
meetings. Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary sent to
the aforesaid address, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Furthermore, shareholders of the Company may propose a person

for election as a Director of the Company. The procedures of which
are available at the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year, there is no significant change to the Company’s
Avrticles of Association.
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As at 31 July 2016

Authorised Capital : HK$2,000,000,000 divided into
20,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.1
each

Issued and fully-paid . HK$78,472,800 divided into

784,728,000 Shares of HK$0.1 each

The following table summarised the existing shareholding structure
of the Company as at 31 July 2016:

R-EB-—XRFEtA=+-—H

SEERE A :2,000,000,000/87C ° 2 &
20,000,000,000 P& & P el &
0.18 TG,

DEITRERE 7847280087 DB
784,728,000 f% F AL I 1E
0.18 TG,

TERBINARRAFTR —T—REFLA=1T—HNHE
BRI

% of issued

No. of capital of

Category Shares  the Company
AR

EERITRA

Rl gvig < 4=] o=
(Note)

(Bi=E)

Controlling shareholders & Directors T BRRENES 438,016,400 55.82%
Public N 346,711,600 44.18%
Total “RET 784,728,000 100.00%

Note: The issued capital of the Company as at 31 July 2016 is 784,728,000
Shares.

Other corporate information is set out in the “"Corporate
Information” section set out on pages 6 to 9 of this annual report.

SHARE INTERESTS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 July 2016, the interests of the Senior Management of the
Company in the Shares, underlying shares of the Company were as
follows:

Hiat - AARRZZE—RNFLA=Z+—HRHEBTRA
/5784,728,000 &A% 17 ©

EARERERAERRECEORN [AFE
£ — 1 -

EREEBZEROER

RoB—AFELA=+—R ARTBRELE
WA R BABBIRI ST -

Approximate

Equity percentage of

derivatives issued share

Interests (Share Total capital of

Name of Senior Management in Shares Options) interests the Company

hA 2]
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with shareholders of the Company
and investors. The Board also recognises that effective
communication with investors is the key to establish investor
confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the Group is
committed to maintaining high degree of transparency to ensure
the investors and the shareholders are receiving accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group via the
publication of annual reports, interim reports, press announcements
("Corporate Communication”), and also the Company’s website at
www.tayang.com.

Corporate Communications issued by the Company and are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
have been provided to the shareholders in both English and
Chinese versions to facilitate their understanding. A section entitled
"Investor Relations” is available on the Company’s website which
provides contact details to allow shareholders to contact the
Company easily.

Enquiries from institutional investors and analysts on the Group’s
strategy, operations, management and plans are welcome.

Our investor relations activities include:

J Attend telephone enquiries from analysts and fund managers;
J update of the Company’s website regularly;

J hold annual general meeting;

J disclose information on a timely basis via the Company’s and

Stock Exchange's websites.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to reducing carbon emission and saving
resources. We have started monitoring our carbon emission with
references made according to the EPD (Environmental Protection
Department) Guidelines, GHG (Greenhouse Gas) Protocol and ISO
14064 standard. During the year under review, we implemented
several measures to reduce greenhouse gas emission and save
energy, including installing video conference facilities to reduce
business travelling and replacing copiers and printers with energy
saving models.
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We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations that are relevant to the Group.
The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, with the support and assistance of our company
secretarial department and external legal professionals.

The Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance as well as their subsidiary legislation, codes and
guidelines are the principal sources of our compliance obligations.
Laws in other jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong Kong
operations, and both in Hong Kong and elsewhere, we rely on the
assistance of external law firms and professional advisers to manage
our legal and compliance risks.

We communicate information on relevant new laws or changes in
laws and regulations to our staff to ensure compliance, and also
regularly remind our staff of their compliance obligations.

To support environmental protection, the Group continues to
pursue a proactive policy in environmental protection and have
implemented a series of environmental protection practices, details
of which are as follows:

J Dongguan Ta Yang factory and Huzhou factory obtained ISO
4001 certification;

o Installed a discharge and sedimentation tank in our plants to
treat domestic sewage before discharging to the sewage
drains in the neighborhood,;

o Transformed equipments as well as improved or replaced
electric facilities, such as lighting facilities, to achieve power
and energy saving and minimise emission of carbon; and

o Installed ventilating ducts to collect exhausted gases
generated during production processes, then purify the
exhausted gases by professional facility before emitting to
the atmosphere.

In addition, the Group emphasizes on production safety. The safety
measures implemented include setting safety tips and guidelines
on occupational safety such as procedures for handling emergency.
In order to promote the safety awareness, the Group organises
induction training and occupational safety training for our staff in
PRC. The Group has regularly checked the equipment to ensure
the staff is working at a safe working environment.
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We implement paper recycling policy in our Hong Kong and the
PRC offices. Staffs are also encouraged to practice energy saving
habits, such as setting their computers to sleep mode when not in
use, controlling the temperature of air conditions and using emails
instead of paper for internal and external communications.

During the year, the Group successfully reduced the usage of
energy, water and paper.

The Group implemented comprehensive mechanisms to ensure
that high standard of ethical business practices are adopted when
our employees dealing with suppliers and service providers. Our
Staff Handbook and Whistle-blowing Policy stated our policies in
avoiding conflict of interest and the whistle-blowing channels. We
are an equal opportunity employer. We embrace anti-discrimination
practices that protect potential and existing employees from being
disadvantaged or excluded on the basis of gender, age, family
status, sexual orientation, disability, race or religion. We strictly
comply with local laws and regulations concerning health and safety
at work.

The Group places emphasis on retaining talent staff by providing
annual bonus in Chinese Lunar Year. There are corporate
orientation programs to enable the PRC staff to have a better
understanding on the Group's culture.

The Group organises a training programs from time to time
especially for the staff in PRC which mainly focus on the production
management areas. These programs gave them an excellent
opportunity to strengthen their understanding of the functional
areas within the factory in the PRC and strategic direction of the
Group so as to improve and enhance the efficiency of the Group.

In addition, the Company provides financial subsidies to employees
to enhance their technical skills, business skills and personal
strengths by attending seminars organised by various professional
bodies.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Group's internal control systems
and reviewing its effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.
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Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring
the reliability of financial information used for business and
publication. Qualified management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an ongoing
basis.

The Company has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
("SHINEWING Risk"”) to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s material effectiveness of the
Company’s material internal control system in various material
aspects including financial, operational and compliance controls.
Audits were carried out on all significant business units of the
Group. The internal control report was submitted and reviewed by
the Audit Committee (the “Internal Control Report”). In addition,
summary of findings and recommendations are discussed at the
Audit Committee meeting with a view to improve the Group's
operations.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of
the Company'’s internal control procedures and was satisfied that
the Company’s internal control processes are adequate to meet the
needs of the Company in its current business environment.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, Control
Department was established to provide day-to-day management of
the compliance and control of the Group in order to eliminate risks
of failure of operational systems and the achievement of the
Company's objectives. The Control Department is currently headed
by Mr. Huang Te-Wei, the executive Director of the Company, and
it reports directly to the Board.

Control Department holds meetings regularly and works closely
with SHINEWING Risk to monitor the internal control systems within
the Group in order to provide reasonable assurance as to the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, integrity and reliability of
financial information and to safeguard and maintain accountability
of its assets. Additionally, the various divisions’ head of the
Company met with the head of Control Department each month to
ensure sound internal control system is in place and maintained. To
enhance knowledge of relevant staffs of the Group, training will be
provided to them regarding relevant rules and applicable laws as
and when appropriate.

Based on the Internal Control Report, the Board is of the view that
the internal controls of the Group are adequate and complied with
the code provisions on internal control as set out in the Listing
Rules.
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The Group manages risk under an overall strategy determined by $E.$ETJ§§$A#IEE’]¥M§€E EIRER o @
the Board. The framework of the risk management comprises of the ~ REIBZREH T 5| EB T EHAMK ¢
following key elements:

. identify and assess all the risks; . IRV P A R

e  formulate the risk management strategies; . i E E R B ISR

o design and implement risk management and plan; . RETWERRGEIE MR
. monitor and report the risk management performance; and . BRI ERERERRE &

. continuous improve risk management and risk mitigation e BENERAREERERRG N ELTE -
action plans.

The major risk factors identified and assessed by the Group are ~ AEEKHMTFEHETERBAEAZERIIMT

listed as follows:

Risk Factors Impact Mitigation Measures
EkEE =7 TR LB BY e
Strategic
E
Global economic instability The Group's products could be The Company aimed to spread its
and market volatility curtailed which resulted in the risk of  activities geographically to benefit
ZIREBEIB LTS8 2 the operating performance and from opportunities in order to minimise
financial stability of the Group the risk of political and economic
REE R AMER  EMEUAREEY  instability
EERE LIRS AR RRAFW B REEEEB D METRM
AR ER TR - EfREBUS &
BB E R
Decrease in demand for silicon The Group's productions capacity Externally, the Group continuous its
rubber keypads for mobile would be over the demand level which  effort to explore new market. Internally,
phones, computers and will affect the Group's sales revenue the Group is in the process of
notebooks because of the AEEESBAFTIOKTHZE restructuring in order to keep our size
immense popularity of REE W to be flexible to deal with any sudden
smartphones and tablet economical challenges
computers AN REBEBBOIREH TS - Y
B F R TR B - AN AEEERERRIE  SHREAE)
?*% B R FREEAHYE b JRE AT (] 22 40 EL 2R ) A8 B PR BE
REET SR
Increasing competition Significant product innovations, The Group continuously enhance its
FRF A technical advances or the research and development and
intensification of competition could regularly added new products to
adversely affect the Group sustain the growth of its business
BAEmMA - B HSES S B IR B RRE DR A 2 E AR R E W
YRR EBER AT E IAMERF TR =

64 TAYANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Ltﬂlkkhm¥&€§

Risk Factors

NS ES

Integration of acquisition

KBRS

Operational Risk
EERMR

Seasonality
FEE

Product liabilities
EmEE

Raw material

R

Customer

5P

Impact

E/
2

We may not be successful acquired
business and not reach the full synergy
effects

REEN TR IEETS - AMEA
EERANBREM R

Seasonality may adversely affect the
operating results of the Company'’s
business

TEIMATRE I AR R B E RIS E A
ERATATE

Product liabilities claims could
adversely affect our Company's
business
EmETRENHARRNEFENX
TH g

Growth in cost and expense in raw
materials changes may adversely
influence the future results of the
Company

FEMER AR A RS e e
HARRNBARREEZER TN E

Loss of customers could adversely
affect our business

P mA RSP R ER T H

By 488
=

Mitigation Measures

LA L B B 4 e

] The management adopted risk
assessment includes macro and
project specific risks analysis
encompassing due diligence,
financial modeling and sensitivity
analysis on key investment
assumptions and variables
EIRERNER S - BREAER
HRERAST /@%ﬁﬁﬁ%%g
BRI 2R ERE N

RN BRAE ST

. The management is monitoring
the progress of strategic plan
and modifying the plan from time

to time
EREERERMA DML
WA EHE 2 EH ]

The Company aimed to diversify the
product mix to minimise the seasonal
risk
ARFMBERSEMMEEEZ T
S 2 RUE = E M A

The Company has arranged insurance
to cover product liability

ARABDHEREERBRR

The Company aims to maintain
longterms business relationships with
suppliers to acquire raw material
RAF B SRR ERERRAED
BF - AESRME

The Company keep in close touch with
our customers and markets and focus
effort on delivery high quality products
to them

RAFEER RH5HEEETHIE
BOREFREHEEER
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Risk Factors

B B &=

Financial Risk

Exchange rate fluctuation

P R Ep

Financing and liquidity
constraints

BEMRBE SR

Legal and Compliance

EPRERER

Law and regulations

TEB AR B

To deter wrongdoing and to promote standards of good corporate

Impact
%

Exchange rate fluctuation can have
harmful impact on company

EXRRBEHARBERNTREE

Lack of financial capacity could affect
the Group's ability to conduct its
business and maintain its capital
investment or dividend payments
BIRRE N TR AIBE R EREEHEITE
BRgFHERNRESRER S HEE

The Group may suffer as a results of
its failure to comply with all applicable
laws and regulations

REB S GREREETRABERED R
ROIMERZEER

REILETE

Mitigation Measures

R AEK L P Y 4 e

The Company has a hedging policy
for certain currency exchange rate
risks from time to time

RARI PR FE TEEEXRRIT L
HBR

The Company adopts prudent
financing treasury policy and strict
cash management policy to maintain
stable cash position

KRR BERIEES B E B TS BUR SR 2
WIS EIREBER - LERBRNES
RS

The Control Department assists in
identifying, monitoring and providing
support to identify and manage legal
risks across the legal and seek
external legal advisers as and when
appropriate

EEEDPIR BN AR - B R AR SR LA
BRIREBRBMEARNEZERRE - AR
A& BN R RIEEINEERER

TR RIFOEERERKF

practices, the Company has adopted a whistle blowing policy at a
Board meeting held on 24 March 2011. The policy aims at
encouraging and enabling employees of the Group at all levels and
others to report violations or suspected violations and to raise
serious concerns about possible improprieties in matters of
financial reporting or other matters of the Group.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

In general, the daily management and administration functions of
the Group have been delegated to the management except for
certain matters specifically reserved to the Board for decision.
Those matters include the setting of the overall strategic direction
and long term objectives of the Company, approval of annual
business plan, material acquisitions and disposals of assets,
investments, connected transactions and capital projects, key
human resources issue, preliminary interim and final results
announcements, determination of interim and final dividends,
appointment of Directors and annual assessment of internal control
system.

Hong Kong, 21 October 2016
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This report provides the details of work undertaken by the
Remuneration Committee (“RC") during the year.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the year, the Directors who served on RC were Ms. Zhang
Lijuan (Chairlady), Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and Mr. Pak Wai Keung,
Martin. All of them are independent non-executive Directors.

ACTIVITIES OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

During the year, RC met once and the major business of the
meeting included the following activities:

o conduct the annual review of 2016/2017 salary for all Directors
and Senior Management; and

° consider and review the service contracts and the
appointment letters of Directors, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary, bonus, share options and pensions. Salary adjustments are
made where RC takes into account performance of the individual,
contribution, responsibilities, and reference to comparable listed
companies in Hong Kong.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors are reviewed annually
with reference to the salary research survey, comparable companies
and market condition.

Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account factors
such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual's
performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate talented eligible staff,
including the Directors, the Company has adopted a Share Option
Scheme. The scheme enables the eligible persons to obtain an
ownership interest in the Company and thus will motivate them to
optimise their continuing contributions to the Group.

ARERHEAFMHEZES(HFMEE S NF
MPTETT TIRRFS -

FHERERR

FALEFMEZEEXNENEZTRRNBR (X
) BEERERBREBREL - 2HBRBEYL
FEHITE=S -

FHEREER
N FHEEGRTREH MY LANG
TEFEOEUTEE

e HHMAEFLRABEERABR-F
—RN/ZE-LFENFEETFERAN
K

s HENEFHEFNRFAOLRZREEZ X
AEFSRDELES -

B I 3R

WITEENHMERELRTH S 64 BRER
BRE - HFHZBEEELFCRER - FZE
BERIALTHOIERR  EEEBE Y20
BB EE LT AR -

FRTEENFHEFIE2EHFMEAE
A BB AR TSR ERE

BRERHDIN RITEZEREBHEERERK
BIEAL - MEARBFANTISRN - DEREA
RIRFREME °

RRBCERMBBRERT BIARS] - B8 LABA
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B RAEEBRMEE
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The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of TRFHPRITESERSRERBFMNESHILE -

Executive Directors and senior management.

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details
) B BB KB
Basic Salary To reflect the market value of Cash payment o Reviewed annually
EX%e each individual BE T BFERE
kMg ATHTSER D Monthly o Compare against
&G H selected comparable
companies
BUETER A A LR A AL
. Market trend
M58 m
Discretionary Bonus To motivate employees to o Cash Payment J Individual performance
BYIEIEAT deliver the high levels of REMH HAKRE
performance of the Company e Annual o Market condition
and individual performance BF RE 29
goals J The Group performance
SEEE ARRREGERKTER relative to corporate
KA LERBEARE R targets
AEEBENEEB RN
=4
Share Option To motivate the participants o Share Option o Eligible participants are
fEhriE MBS EE ERHE awarded in accordance
To attract and retain the with the Share Option
employees Scheme
el kB EEE BERSEERIZERE
SRS ER
Pension To provide appropriate and o Cash contribution o MPF scheme
RKe competitive post retirement RE N BEE A
benefits o Monthly
REEE REFRFNHRKER A

7

68 TAYANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

WL EgRE

The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’
remuneration (in percentage terms) for the year ended 31 July
2016:

Salary,
allowances &
English Name XS Fees other benefits
Fé 28
e REMER
% %
Huang Sheng-Shun® EBRO - 91.09
Huang Te-Wei HER - 90.69
Wong Tak Leung"” BERO - 90.36
Kwok Yiu Kai” BN - 90.15
Wu lh Chen REFO 100 -
Kirk Yang" R - -
Hsieh Yu! Ho 100 -
Jou Yow-Jen ERiA 100 -
Yeung Chi Tat BEE 100 -
Shi Qi? ikl - 91.64
Xu Chendi® =] - 91.62
Qiu Yonghao? ily; -] - -
Gao Feng? S - -
Han Lei? #E0 _ -
Zhang Lijuan® REY - -
Pak Wai Keung, Martin® HERO 100 -
Notes:

(1) Resigned as Directors on 27 April 2016.
(2)  Appointed as Directors on 6 April 2016.
(3)  Appointed as Directors on 27 April 2016.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 July 2016:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
e EE (Bx)

Nil-1,000,000 #%-1,000,000

Details of the amount of Directors’ remuneration during the year
ended 31 July 2016 are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and details of the Share Option Schemes are
set out in Report of the Directors and Note 43 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Members of the Remuneration Committee
Zhang Lijuan (Chairlady)

Yeung Chi Tat

Pak Wai Keung, Martin

Hong Kong, 21 October 2016

TREIHE-Z-RFLtA=+-HILFEE
SR ABEDLERT)

Retirement

scheme  Share-based
Bonus  contributions payments Total

g DRHA
A ot BIAERK ERNAH @zt
% % % %
7.59 1.3 - 100
741 1.90 - 100
747 217 - 100
7.51 234 - 100
- 100
- - - 100
- - - 100
- - 100
7.6 0.69 - 100
7.56 082 - 100
- - - 100

Hrat -

M RZFE-ARFOAZ-THHEELES-

(2) E(‘fg—/\ﬁlﬂlﬂx—\ﬁiééﬁﬁéﬁ °©
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BREEERERE-_T—AFtA=t+—AL
EERFHBEM OB :

Number of
Individuals

A

1
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This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee
("AC") and the work it has undertaken by them during the year.

MEMBERSHIP OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Currently, the Directors who served on AC were Mr. Pak Wai Keung,
Martin (Chairman), Mr. Yeung Chi Tat and Ms. Zhang Lijuan. All of

them are independent non-executive Directors.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

During the year, AC met three times in October 2015, March and
July 2016. The Financial Controller and the external auditor

g DRBE

o

ARERHEAERZES ([FXE
R NPT TIERRHS

ERERERA

BAT HEBEZZESNESEAARBRELE(E
) HBEERERKRNBR LT - 2MABILIE
HITE=E -

EREHELE

FA - BRZEGN-_ZF—LF+H  —T—RK
FZAREARITZRER - YRR RINEZ

\

attended the meetings by invitation. The attendance records are ~ HFIERHFE % o HELEMT

set out below:

Number of

meetings attended/

Number of

meetings held

during

Name appointment period

HERYEEHR

A HITFRRE

Pak Wai Keung, Martin HE®R(VRZZE—"FNAZ+EREZEE) 1/
(appointed on 27 April 2016)

Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016) RIVB(RZTE—REMAZ++REZE) 11

Yeung Chi Tat HEE 3/3

Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016) (R ZTE—REEA - HEME) 2/2

Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016) B (R —REMAZ++BET) 2/2

Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016) BREB(R_ZE—RFEAZ++HBEE) 172

Number of meetings held during the year FABTERAH 3

SUMMARY OF MAJOR WORKS DONE DURING FARBRHEETIFEHE

THE YEAR

During the year, the major works done by AC were summarised as 7 * B ZEETRMWFEZITEMMOT -

follows:

e reviewed with the management and the external auditors on ¢  TERXEFGH AR - HEEE RINEZ
the interim results and annual results and related %(Eﬂi%@aq:‘ﬁﬁ%ﬁ CRFEEUREBRA
announcement including the related disclosures, integrity of & PRAEEREEE  UBHREREE
financial reporting and the accounting policies and adopted BRH e B R AN SR BB & ST BUR
by the Group prior to the submission to the Board's approval;

e discussed with management on significant judgments ¢ HEBENREEANEBGEMBRED

affecting Group's consolidated financial statements;

o considered and pre-approved the re-appointment of auditors

and their audit fee accordingly;
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o reviewed and discussed the internal control report including
the status of implementing recommendations on previous
report;

o reviewed, assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the

Company's internal control;

o reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit process;
and

o reviewed and discussed the audit plan for 2015/2016.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

AC has reviewed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and the financial reporting
matters including a review of the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 July 2016.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, AC engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Regulatory
Limited ("SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct the internal control review
of the Group's operation and made recommendation to Board
accordingly. Based on the report issued by SHINEWING Risk, AC
considered that the key areas of the Company's internal control
systems are reasonably implemented and the Company has
compiled with the requirements of the CG code as set out in the
Listing Rules in respect of internal control. There were no matters
concerns to be brought to the attention to the Board.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

AC reviewed the independence of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
and recommended their re-appointment as auditor of the Group
for the financial year 2016/2017 in the forthcoming AGM.

Members of Audit Committee

Pak Wai Keung, Martin (Chairman)
Zhang Lijuan

Yeung Chi Tat

Hong Kong, 21 October 2016
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
July 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
design and manufacture of silicone rubber input devices which are
mainly used in lifestyle products and 4Cs (i) Consumer (consumer
electronic devices), (ii) Computers (keypads for computers and
notebooks), (iii) Communications (mobile phone peripheral
products), and (iv) Cars (automotive peripheral products). Particulars
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 50 to the
consolidated financial statements. The nature of the principal
activities of the Group has not changed during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 92 of
this annual report and in the accompanying notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Board has not recommended the distribution of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 July 2016 (31 July 2015: nil). Details
are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business during the year, a discussion
on the Group's future business development, an analysis of the
Group's performance during the year and the material factors
underlying its results and financial position are included in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 28 to 34
of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found throughout this annual
report, particularly in “Risk management” section on pages 64 to
66 of the Corporate Governance Report.

Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2016 can also be found
in Note 57 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year is provided
in the “Financial Review"” section on pages 28 to 31 and “Five Years
Financial Summary” on page 210 of this annual report.

In addition, discussions on the Group's environmental policies and
related matters are contained in “Corporate Social Responsibility”
section on pages 60 to 62 of the Corporate Governance Report.

72 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BEEMARZEEFERERBE_Z R FLH
=+ —BLFENERZERMEERE -

FERE

RAGNMEBEBRABIREER - ARG EEWE
DREIMEBEBR AR MREYBHAEE M
HZERETTHRERERNMIC: (VEERCH
ETTEE) (BN (EESDERILS)
(i) BN (FHAEEESR) » R(v))AE(FEF
BEM) - BEARFTMBARNFBHNES
BIERAMFTES) e T REBMEZBEBNMD
I fm ) o

ERRDIK

REBNERERARRBNDIKD BIE R ANFRE
92 EMViR R BER MR A MG MR HBEM ML

EEE T TREREHE T —RFLtH=1+—8H
FFENRARE(ZE—AFLtA=1T—8:
&) o FHIEHNRE MBI RMFES -

R¥OER

BRAREBFAERB 2T EEN  NEBARKE
BERZT®  ANEBEFARBZANLELE
BRMBIRRBE C ERRARHENAFRE22L8E
JMEERENREDN] —F - AEEMEZ
Al RERE R RN EE M 2 AL E FRAFR - LA
REGEEAREFAZ6AIEREIR |—H -

BT A"FURFERECHEZELRARALZ

EZFRRZFBTEARGAE M B RRMES -

AAEBFRARRETZANHR A FRE 28E
JNEBEEE |~ N E210B[ AFHBHE ] -

EAN - BEANER B 2 BRIF TR M AR R F I8 2 7 e
REEBRMEROERAI PEHSRE | -



REBER T QETFHE DIRECTH IS

EEEWmE

B

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Lyton Maison Limited is the controlling shareholders of the
Company as at the year ended 31 July 2016 and also the ultimate
holding company of the Company. The ultimate controlling party of
the Group is Ms. Shi Qi, the Chairlady of the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer and an executive Director of the Company. She is
the sole director and the ultimate beneficial owner of Lyton Maison
Limited.

As at 31 July 2016, Lyton Maison Limited directly held
approximately 55.63% of the then issued share capital of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$13,558,000 on
additions to property, plant and equipment mainly for the
expansion and enhancement of its production capability.

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 210. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES AND RESERVES

As at 31 July 2016, the Company'’s reserve available for distribution
amounted to HK$40,956,000 (2015: HK$308,254,000).

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year and the
distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 July 2016 are set out
in Note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for approximately 43.6% of the total revenue of the Group and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 11.3% of the total
revenue.

B
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The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted for
approximately 26.4% and 46.3% of the Group's total purchase for
the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital) has any interest in any of
the Group's five largest suppliers and customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Shi Qi (Chairlady and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 6 April 2016)

Ms. Xu Chendi (appointed on 6 April 2016)

Mr. Qiu Yonghao (appointed on 6 April 2016)

Mr. Huang Te-Wei

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Wong Tak Leung (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Kwok Yiu Kai (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Feng (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Mr. Han Lei (appointed on 6 April 2016)
Mr. Wu |h Chen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Lijuan (appointed on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin (appointed on 27 April 2016)
Mr. Kirk Yang (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Mr. Hsieh Yu (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Professor Jou Yow-Jen (resigned on 27 April 2016)

Pursuant to Article 86(3) of the Company's Articles of Association,
Ms. Shi Qi, Ms. Xu Chendi, Mr. Qiu Yonghao, Mr. Gao Feng, Mr.
Han Lei, Ms. Zhang Lijuan and Mr. Pak Wai Keung, Martin, being
newly appointed Directors, will hold their office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the Company's Articles of Association,
Mr. Huang Te-Wei will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’
CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her independence
to Rule 3.13 of The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rule”) and as at the date of this report still considers that
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at 31 July 2016, none of the Directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, and decided by
the Board, as authorised by shareholders in the annual general
meeting, having regard to the Company’s operating results,
individual performance, experience, responsibility, workload and
comparable market securities. No Director is involved in deciding
their own remuneration.

The Company has adopted a Pre-IPO share option scheme and a
Post-IPO share option scheme as an incentive to the Directors and
eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out under the
heading “Share Option Schemes”.

Details of the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in Remuneration Report
under the heading “Remuneration Policy”.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and the
five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year under
review are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BWIAFRTEEHERE

ARBEWREBIIFNTESE B RBEBRA
RBAERAR (B ER ETHRRA( £
BRADE3BGEREB LR LN FERRE
RAHREBRH  NRBMDRRE2EBLIFRNTE
=REELM -

EERBEH

RZFB-REFLA=+—H0 BEHNERERR
BFERE FEEEENEFERQRTTAEMAAR
RETAR—FRRMNEFECEERERIN ML
IERARFE S 4

B & By 3R

ARREEFNMEMFHE B @2 WER
BRABRBFAG LNEE AEFTERAR
AR ERE  EART K& B TFE
At migESMETE - EFHMESERE
REMEH)BIE -

ARRCHEMERAFEEMBRESEIRER
AABERBEREAIEAYEZRAERESR
MEE) - BRI EIFBERN (BT & ) —4 -

BERESRASERREEENTNBCRFIEH
TR BN R & f%ﬁ@w‘lﬂl%l —#e

EFRILBEEHFHA LM E

REEFE FRARREENAEELERS

HIA LTSRN A M MR 18 -
RNAFEEERBERAR 75

—T—NFER



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

Directors’ Interests

As at 31 July 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the "SFO")) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or
otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") contained in the
Listing Rules, were as follows:

(a) Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares in the
Company

EFREERTRARHER

EEES

RIB-—REFLA=+—H EBFRARFE
ETBRABRARRHETAREEE(ERR
R BB ([ER RG] FEXVEL
Bty - RN REZFTEEETRARAIRE
MR 2GR EAFENELMA
R MAR  RRBELTRAAESE LT RRE

BETES

RIS A ([RETA ) AXE

AR R RBRFEBRERARIT

(a) REDRAROGREBARGHTRE

Shi Qi Interest of a controlled 436,540,400
iidz corporation
RiEh AR

Huang Te-Wei Beneficial Owner 1,330,000
BER EXBEEA
Yeung Chi Tat Beneficial Owner 146,000
BEE EXBEEA

Notes:

1. Based on 784,728,000 Shares in issue as at 31 July 2016.

2. Lyton Maison Limited, a limited company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, solely owned by Ms. Shi Qi, is interested
in 436,540,400 Shares.
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436,540,400 55.63% 2
1,330,000 0.17%
146,000 0.02%
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

EEWBR MR

Huang Te-wei 16.05.2007 08.06.2008-15.05.2017 230,000 -
EEH 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 300,000 -

11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 260,000 -
Yeung Chi Tat 24.12.2009 24.06.2010-23.12.2019 100,000 -
BEE 11.01.2011 11.07.2011-10.01.2021 46,000 -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2016, none of the Directors
and the Chief Executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

2.20 - 230,000 0 0.00%
096 300,000 - 0 0.00%
1.05 260,000 - 0 0.00%

0 0.00%
096 100,000 - 0 0.00%
1.05 46,000 - 0 0.00%

0 0.00%
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company maintains two share option schemes, namely the
Pre-IPO share option scheme and the Post-IPO share option
scheme for the purpose of recognising the contribution of certain
executive Directors and employees of the Group and retaining
them for the continual operation and development of the Group.
Both schemes were approved by the written resolutions of the sole
shareholder passed on 16 May 2007 and had a life of 10 years from
its adoption.

Under the Share Option Schemes, the Board may, at its discretion,
offer any employee (including any Executive Director) of the Group,
options to subscribe for Shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated in the two schemes.

The Pre-IPO Share Option

The major terms of the Pre-IPO share option scheme adopted on
16 May 2007 (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were summarised
as follows :

(a) Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognise the contribution made by the executive Directors
and the employees of the Company prior to the listing of
Shares on Stock Exchange.

(b) Participants of the Scheme
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Company
may grant options to any full-time or part-time employee of
the Company and/or any its subsidiaries, including any
executive Director or any of its subsidiaries but excluding any
non-executive Director of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

(c) Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Scheme
The total number of Shares in respect of the Scheme may be
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 9,070,000
Shares.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

RS

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period must not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of options

An option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is exercisable at the subscription price of HK$2.20 per Share
(subject to adjustment and vesting period). If a grantee does
not cease to be Participant from the date of grant of options
(i.e. 16 May 2007) to him up to the business date immediately
prior to the date of the 1st anniversary (“Anniversary”) of the
Listing Date, the grantee may exercise up to 1/5 of the
options granted to him on or after the date of the 1st
Anniversary. In the event that the grantee does not cease to
be a Participant up to the business day prior to the date of
the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th Anniversary, he is entitled to
exercise an addition of up to 1/5 of the options granted to
him on or after the relevant date of Anniversary respectively.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is HK$2.20 per share representing
approximately 37.1% discount to the international offering
price (assuming the offer price is the maximum of HK$3.50
per share).

Payment on acceptance of option

A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant of an option is required to be paid by each of the
grantee upon acceptance of the granted option.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Plan have no remaining life as no
further options may be granted but the provisions of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme shall in all other respects remain in
force and effect and options which are granted during the life
on the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may continue to
exercise in accordance with the respective terms of issue.

On 16 May 2007, the Company granted 9,070,000 options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No further options
would be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
on or after the listing date of the Company i.e. 8 June 2007.
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(f)

(9)

(h)
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The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The major terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme adopted on
16 May 2007 ("Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were summarised
as follows:

(a)

(b)

9

Purpose of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contribution of the participants. The Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme will provide the participants an opportunity to have a
personal stake in the Company with the view to achieving the
following objectives:

° motivate the participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

° attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going
business relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.

Participants of the Scheme

Participants of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme include (i)
eligible employees (whether full time or part time employee
including any executive Director) of the Group and any
invested entity; (ii) any non-executive Director (including
independent non-executive Directors), any of its subsidiaries
or any invested entity; (iii) any suppliers of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any invested entity; (iv) any
customer of the Group or any member of the Group; (v) any
consultant, advisor, manager, officer or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the
Group or any invested entity.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

RS

Total number of Shares available for issue under the
Scheme

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all option to be granted under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue at the date of approval of the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme (i.e.16 May 2007). The Company
may seek approval of the shareholders in general meeting to
renew the said 10% limit such that the total number of Shares
in respect of options that may be granted under the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of approval to renew the limit.
Notwithstanding the above, the maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 30% of total number of Shares in
issue from time to time.

As at 31 July 2016, the total number of Shares available for
issue in respect thereof is 63,056,000 Shares of the Company,
representing approximately 7.24% of the issued Shares as at
the date this report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period must not exceed 1% of the total number of
Shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of options
in excess of the said 1% limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant and his or
her associates abstaining from voting.

Timing of exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and in any
event such period shall not be longer than 10 years after the
date of grant of the option.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

RS

The subscription price per Share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is such
price as determined by the Board of the Company at the time
of the grant of the options, but in any case the subscription
price shall not be lower than the higher of:

° the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date on which the options are offered, which must be a
business day;

° the price being the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of the options; and

. the nominal value of a Share on the date of offer.

Payment on acceptance of options

A non-refundable sum of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant of an option is required to be paid by each of the
grantee upon acceptance of the granted options.

Duration of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from its adoption date (i.e.16 May 2007).
However, the Company may terminate the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme prior to such period and in such event no
further option may be granted but options granted prior to
such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

On 27 April 2016, all outstanding Shares in respect of which options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme have been cancelled, thus no outstanding
share option as at 31 July 2016.

The other principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus of the
Company.
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Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

BRAERERROFBENT

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
("Share Option Scheme 1")

EpNGE R B
(TPERcHERt 211 )

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

("Share Option Scheme II-First Grant”)
BRAFEERERETE

([EERRAERTEI - BB E D)

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

(“Share Option Scheme II-Second Grant”)

BRAFRBEERBRETS
(ME MR EI11- 8 /R D

16 May 2007

—ZEZELFRA+RAE

24 December 2009

—ZEEAF+-_A=+mWMA

11 January 2011

—F——F-At+-H

The following table disclosed movements in the share options
during the period:

08.06.2008—
15.05.2017

24.06.2010-
23.12.2019

11.07.2011-
10.01.2021

BRENIANEEE TRIE

HK$2.20
22087

HK$0.96
0.96 7% 7T

HK$1.05
1.05%87T

Directors/Ex Directors
¥3/Es
Huang Sheng-Shun Share Option Scheme | 550,000 - (550,000) - 0 08.06.2008-
BBR Je 2l 15.05.2017
(resigned on Share Option Scheme II-First Grant 376,000 - - (376,000 0 24.06.2010-
21/4/2018) BRE 8- ERE 23122019
(R=Z2—1& Share Option Scheme II-Second Grant 330,000 - - (330,000) 0 11.07.2011-
WMAZTLARHE) BREHII-E-REL 1001.2021
0
Huang Te-Wei Share Option Scheme | 230,000 - (230,000 - 0 08.06.2008-
ERH S iE 8l 15052017
Share Option Scheme II-First Grant 300,000 - - (300,000) 0 24.06.2010-
JE B B B 23122019
Share Option Scheme Il-Second Grant 260,000 - - (260,000) 0 11.07.2011-
BRET 8- SRt 1001.2021
0

RAEEZERERRA
TE-REFER

220
096

1.05

2.20
096

1.05

QE)



Wong Tak Leung

BER

(resigned on
21/4/2016)

(RZZ—RF
WA=+ BFHE)

Wu lh Chen

(resigned on
271412016)

(R=Z2—7%F
MAZT+HEE)

Kirk Yang

hER

(resigned on
21/4/2016)

(RZZ—RE
MAZTLHEE)

Jou Yow-Jen

A%

(resigned on
21/4/2014)

(RZZ—REF
WA=+ BFHE)

Hsieh Yu

(resigned on
21/4/2016)

(RZF—1%
WA=+ RET)

Share Option Scheme |

2l

Share Option Scheme II-First Grant
JERiER - SR

Share Option Scheme II-Second Grant

JEIRIEE I8 RE

Share Option Scheme |

BRE

Share Option Scheme Il-First Grant
BIRE BN BRI

Share Option Scheme Il-Second Grant
BB E R

Share Option Scheme II-First Grant
JRiER - SR

Share Option Scheme II-Second Grant
BIRE B ERE

Share Option Scheme II-First Grant
BIRE SN BRI

Share Option Scheme Il-Second Grant
BRI R
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275,000 (275,000 - 0
600,000 - (600,000 0
260,000 - 260,000 0
0

455,000 (455,000 - 0
375,000 - (375,000 0
330,000 - 330,000 0
0

100,000 (100,000 - 0
0

46,000 (46,000) - 0

0

100,000 (100,000 - 0
46,000 (46,000) - 0

0

08.06.2008-
15.05.2017
24.06.2010-
23.12.2019
11.07.2011-
10.01.2021

08.06.2008-
15.05.2017
24.06.2010-
23.12.2019
11.07.2011-
10.01.2021

24.06.2010-
23.12.2019

11.07.2011-
10.01.2021

24.06.2010-
23.12.2019
11.07.2011-
10.01.2021

2.20

096

1.05

2.20

0.96

1.05

096

1.05

0.96

1.05



Yeung Chi Tat Share Option Scheme II-First Grant 100,000 - - (100,000) 0 24.06.2010- 0.96

B BIREST 8- ERE 23122019
Share Option Scheme II-Second Grant 46,000 - - (46,000) 0 11.07.2011- 1.05
BRESEI-E R 1001.2021

0
Total for Directors/ 4,779,000 - (1,802,000) (2,977,000) 0
Ex Directors

B2 /MESH

Employees

E&

Employees Share Option Scheme | 2,515,000 - (2,515,000) - 0 08.06.2008- 2.20

E& fiREstal 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme II-First Grant 2,245,000 - (702,000) (1,543,000) 0 24.06.2010~ 0.96
BRE 8- R 23122019
Share Option Scheme II-Second Grant 2,031,000 - (746,000) (1,285,000) 0 11.07.2011- 1.05
BRE I SRR 10.01.2021

Total for Employees 6,791,000 - (3,963,000 (2,828,000) 0

EEE

All Categories Share Option Scheme | 4,025,000 - (4,025,000) - 0 08.06.2008- 2.20

FRER iR E 15.05.2017
Share Option Scheme Il-First Grant 4,196,000 - (902,000) (3,294,000) 0 24.06.2010- 0.96
BB B BRI 23122019
Share Option Scheme l-Second Grant 3,349,000 - (838,000) (2,511,000) 0 11.07.2011- 1.05
BIRE 8- EREL 10.01.2021

Total 11,570,000 S BTS00 (5805000 0

by

Notes: et -

1. The vesting period of the Share Option Scheme | is from the date of 1. BRETE BB RRE B RETERMSG
grant until the commencement of the exercise period. EH-

2. The vesting period of the Share Option Scheme II-First Grant is from 2. BER#EEI-EARENRERARLEEHE
the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise period. IR E A -

3. The vesting period of the Share Option Scheme lI-Second Grant is 3. B ERTEI-E R HOEB R ARE A

from the date of grant until the commencement of the exercise ZITRHMREH ©
period.

During the year, no share option was granted under the Pre-IPO  R&R « EREE X AFEERBRET S &
Share Option Scheme and Post-IPO Share Option Scheme. BRAFEERERERT 8 E i AE -

REEBRRARAT g
—ENEER



INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 July 2016, so far as is known to the Directors, the following
persons have an interest or short position in the Shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and are recorded in the register kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and Underlying Shares

FERROER

R-B-RFLA=+—08 SESEHRM UT
ATRARB RO SARBR D HHREBE SR
BEPIEXVEE 2R3N MRERMAR R HE
KRR 5 R B E IR0 % 336 (R AL BN AR F
FENELMPHERIOAR

R RAERROH R

Lyton Maison Limited Interest of controlled 436,540,400
corporation
REHZBER
Shi Qi Beneficial owner 436,540,400
i) ERBEA
Notes:

(1) Based on 784,728,000 Shares in issue as at 31 July 2016.

(2)  Lyton Maison Limited, a limited company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, solely owned by Ms. Shi Qi is interested in 436,540,400
Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 July 2016, the Company was not
notified by any person (other than Directors and Chief Executive of
the Company) who has an interest or short position in the Shares,
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or
the chief executives of the Company or any of their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party and
in which a Director of the Company had material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during
the year, nor had there been any contract of significance entered
into between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the
Company during the year ended 31 July 2016.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
which he/she may incur or sustain in or about the execution of the
duties in his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group
during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
above, no equity-linked agreements that have, will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that have, will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at 31 July 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 July 2016, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 July 2016, in so far as the Directors were aware, none of
the Directors or their respective associates had any interest in a
business that competed or was likely to compete with the business
of the Group.

EFBBRHRBFOER
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EETWE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company's issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group, and to review the Company’s annual
report and half-yearly reports to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board. The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. Pak
Wai Keung, Martin (Chairman), Ms. Zhang Lijuan and Mr. Yeung Chi
Tat, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's annual results for
the year ended 31 July 2016 in conjunction with the Company’s
auditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the "CG Code”), Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules during the year, except Code Provision A.2.1 and
C.1.2. Details are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 36 to 66 of this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 July 2016, the Group entered into
transactions with related parties, details of which are set out in
Note 46 to the consolidated financial statements. None of these
related party transactions constitutes a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction of the Group as defined in and
required to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine members who are entitled to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 15
December 2016, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 13 December 2016 to Thursday, 15 December
2016, both days inclusive, during which period, no transfer of shares
can be registered. All transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch
Share Registrar and Transfer Office, Union Registrars Limited at
Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King's
Road, North Point, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
12 December 2016.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 July 2016 have been audited by
Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, who will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2016 AGM.
A resolution will be proposed at the 2016 AGM of the Company for
the re-appointment of Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Shi Qi
CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Hong Kong

21 October 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B 2 AR S

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

fekPia

Shine‘ZOing

TO THE MEMBERS OF TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ta Yang
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set
out on pages 92 to 209, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 July 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagements, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AR A Gl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 July 2016, and of their financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Kit

Practising Certificate Number: P03224

Hong Kong
21 October 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
e BRmA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 HZ —ZE—XF+tA=+—HItFE

2016 2015
—NE —T—HhF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FTHERT T
Revenue & 9 386,516 426,242
Cost of sales SHE A (317,802) (376,124)
Gross profit EF 68,714 50,118
Other operating income H At 2 = A 9 19,500 15,528
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBEY (27,869) (44,807)
Administrative expenses 1ITER S (104,660) (103,930)
Other expenses Hif 11 (27,495) (75,700)
Share of results of joint ventures FElLE S hERNES - 629
Share of results of associates JE(REE N B ELE (507) (468)
Finance costs BB KA 12 (701) (729)
Loss before tax A A E 18 (73,018) (159,359)
Income tax credit (expense) FrisfisE e (%) 13 768 (23)
Loss for the year FERNEER 14 (72,250) (159,382)
Loss for the year attributable to: N TATREIEFAEE :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIEZZ DN (71,304) (156,335)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R M = (946) (3,047)
(72,250) (159,382)
Loss per share BRREE 16
Basic (HK cents) AR GBI (9.12) (20.08)
Diluted (HK cents) 38 GBI (9.12) (20.08)
92 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

4= A

iy 3

B M E AL 2 E W

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

2016 2015
—E-XEF —T—hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAxT
Loss for the year FEREE (72,250) (159,382)
Other comprehensive income Hb2mEmA
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently TEREERENSEEEEN
to profit or loss: HH
Gain on revaluation of properties e AR g 9,325 7,684
Gain on revaluation of prepaid lease payments  FETEERKIE & (HUE 8,290 1,565
17,615 9,249
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently AIREGEHHDEEEEMNER :
to profit or loss:
Release of exchange reserves upon HUH LB A B AR R
deregistration of subsidiaries BE 5 R (2,846) =
Release of exchange reserves upon S BB A RIS BRI TE S
disposal of subsidiaries 59 -
Exchange differences arising on translating BREBINEFEAERIE R 258
foreign operations (19,989) (482)
(22,776) (482)
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESmERE
Net gain (loss) arising on revaluation of FRNEHAIHREESHREE
available-for-sale financial assets for the year ELRWES (ER) F58 4,943 (5,402)
Reclassification adjustments for impairment STAREIBRRARERERN
loss included in the consolidated statement BN ORARE
of profit or loss 667 3,458
5,610 (1,944)
Share of other comprehensive expenses of JEREE AR REEDEN
associates and joint ventures H 2 E R X
Share of exchange difference of associates JE(EEEE N B RIE K =58 (95) (71)
Share of exchange difference of a joint venture B/ —E AL MEMEN =58 - (629)
(95) (700)
Other comprehensive income for the year FAEMBERA 354 6,123
Total comprehensive expense for the year, FALHEMX L (HBRASHE)
net of income tax (71,896) (153,259)
Total comprehensive expense for the year, IANTATEEFAZERS L5
net of income tax, attributable to: (BRFT1S i)
Owners of the Company RABHER A (70,949) (150,231)
Non-controlling interests FEFER R & (947) (3,028)
(71,896) (153,259)
NFEEEZERARAR 93
ZE-RNEFR y .



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

AS AT 31 JULY 2016 R—ZE—X~F+HA=1+—H

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZE—hfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt THERT FAT
Non-current assets FEMBNE EE
Property, plant and equipment e YN 19 68,927 100,085
Intangible assets B EE 20 - -
Construction in progress EETRE 21 - -
Prepaid lease payments AT ERIE 22 7,107 10,840
Investment properties wEME 23 89,935 54,647
Available-for-sale financial assets AIEHESREE 24 24,539 19,596
Interest in a joint venture R—Aa & hENER 26 - =
Interests in associates &R AR 27 2,916 =
Deposits for acquisition of U B + b (F AARER IR &
land use rights 28 12,066 13,163
205,490 198,331
Current assets MENVEE
Deposits for acquisition of properties WY ENIES 29 41,469 -
Inventories FE 30 29,809 62,172
Trade and other receivables FEUE SRR E A
FE W RIE 31 111,014 150,930
Prepaid lease payments TR EFRIE 22 232 321
Amount due from an associate U — Bk & & R 3038 32 65 -
Income tax recoverable CIEEEE T 4 -
Held-to-maturity investments BEZRIEHEE 25 - 43,442
Held-for-trading investments BIEEEKRE 33 3,668 9,120
Structured deposits with banks EIBIEIRITIEX 35 17,261 =
Short-term bank deposits RERRITER 36 4,640 86,298
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRIR S 36 154,094 103,556
362,256 455,839
Current liabilities nBBE
Trade and other payables JER B SRR KR HAb
ANE ] 37 77,780 97,612
Derivative financial instruments TTESRIT A 34 11,753 17,017
Amount due to a joint venture et —fE& & EFRIE 32 - 202
Amount due to an associate JE 1<) — Bt & R B R0E 32 538 -
Provision for restructuring BEARE 38 - -
Income tax payable B PTSHL 20,747 22,376
Secured bank borrowings BIEMRITER 39 33,282 33,282
144,100 170,489
Net current assets mBEEFE 218,156 285,350
Total assets less current liabilities EEMAERRDERE 423,646 483,681
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR SRR

AS AT 31 JULY 2016 R=F—~&FtA=+—H

2016 2015
—ZT—RF —T—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
HtaE FHExT T
Capital and reserves BARf#E®E
Share capital &N 40 78,473 77,892
Reserves fEfE 332,036 397,769
Equity attributable to owners of RABHEA AR
the Company 410,509 475,661
Non-controlling interests FEIZ R R o 653 =
Total equity R 4ATE 411,162 475,661
Non-current liabilities FERBERE
Deferred income EIEWA 41 3,668 3,946
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBAE 42 8,816 4,074
12,484 8,020
423,646 483,681

The consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 209 were 92 B EF 209 BN E M BEHRERNCESTSRN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21  ZZF—XF+ A=+ —BHufE RFETE - W H

October 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: THEERREE :
Shi Qi Huang Te-Wei
ik HER
Director Director
EF EF
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At 1 August 2014 RZ2-RENA-R

Lossfor the year FREE

Other comprehensive (expenses) — FAEM 2 (F3) WA :
income for the year:

Exchange differencesarisingon ~ HEBSERELS
tranlating foreign operations ~~ EXEE

Gain from revaluation of properties  #1% RBMHEFA
and prepaid lease payments Eihs

Net loss arising on revaluation of ~ FRERFAHHELR
avalable-for-sale financial assets ~ AEELABETE
for the year

Reclassification adjustments for s AGABERHBIE
impaiment lossincluded inthe  BEMENAEAE
consolidated statement of
profit or loss

Share of exchange differenceof  EEBEAFHESL 28
associates

Share of exchange differenceof  FEfE—AZLEH
a joint venture EfER

150,780

501)

m

(629)

217

(5402)

3458

9,249

628,907
(156,33

(501)

9,209

(5,402)

630426
(159,382)

(482

9,249

(5402)

3458

m

(629)

Total comprehensive (expenses) A2 (F) WA &5
income for the year

Exercise of share options (Note 40)  {(5RiE(#40)

Acquisition of additional interestin  E—FA3E2 EHEA TR
anon-wholly owned subsidiary ~ ENER (M 4)
(Note 44)

Forfsture of share options REERE

(1.201)

(1.944)

9,249

(150,231)
39

(33%)

(153.259)
39

(1,885)

A3 dy 2015 R-2-FELA=1-A

149,519

9,249

475,661

475,661
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At August 2015 R-2-15N\A-B

Lossfor the year EREE
Other comprehensive (expenses)income  ERE2E () WA :
forthe year:
Exchange differences arsing on BEESRELNES 28
translating foreign operations
Release of exchange resenvesupon R RMBATRER

deregistration of subsidiaries EibE

Release of exchange resenesupon £ EMBATERRER R
disposal of subsidiares

Gain from revaluaton of properties and ~ 1£REREEFE
prepaid lease payments EfihE

Net gan arising o revaluation of ERBHAHHESHER
available-for-sale financal assets EAETE

forthe year
Redlassfication adjustments for AR BERNBEEEN
impairment loss included in EfpRAR

the consolidated stetement of
profitorloss
Share of exchange diference of associates E(EBEARNELZE

149,519

(19.988)

(2,846)

59

99)

m

4983

667

475,661
(71,304)

(19.988)

(2846)

5

17,615

4983

667
95)

(946)

Ul

475,661
(72,250)

(19,989)

(2,846)

5

17,615

4983

667
(%5)

Total comprehensive (expenses) income  £M2 7 (Bx) KAEE
forthe year

Capital contribution from non-controling A
interests

(22,870)

5610

(70,949)

5797

(947)

1,600

(71,89)

1,600
5797

Exercise of share options (Note 40) R0
Forfsiture of share options RuERE

Cancelaton of share options e

31 Juy 2016 RB-RELAZT-H

126,709

6,383

410,509

653

e
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T REER
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Notes:

a)

98

/

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between the capital
contribution received from (paid to) a non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary and the increase (decrease) in its shares of net asset value
of that subsidiary.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the
shares repurchased which has been paid out of the distributable
reserves of the Company.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), the Company'’s subsidiaries established and operated in the
PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit (after
offsetting prior year losses) as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory surplus reserve
until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a
dividend to equity owners.

Legal reserve

In accordance with Macau Commercial Code, the Company's
subsidiary incorporated in Macau is required to appropriate 25% of
its net profit to a legal reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches
50% of the subsidiary’s registered capital. Legal reserve is not
distributable to shareholders.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BE—_Z—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2016 2015
—REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEY
Loss before tax KR A E 18 (73,018) (159,359)
Adjustments for: AT SIEER TR -
Allowance for inventories FERE 1,967 380
Amortisation of deferred income R AEY AL B (24) (25)
Amortisation of intangible assets A - 359
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments SCENEEN-C/O st $ 243 351
Depreciation of property, Y - BB RBETE
plant and equipment 13,817 17,218
Dividend income A 2 A (902) (806)
Fair value loss (gain) on derivative PTESRITAENTE
financial instruments BB (as) 4,052 (2,458)
Fair value loss on held-for-trading investments HIEEBERE N T EERE 1,076 7,533
Fair value loss on investment properties HEYENTEEE 601 2,246
Finance costs LRI 701 729
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries BUEEMH S 2 ek (2,846) =
Gain on disposal of financial asset designated HEIEE R A FESIR
at fair value through profit or loss IETE SN B IE A
ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ - (70)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ’i[ﬁ% GIl & (1,534) -
Government grants BB E (124) 271)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of e U —FE B 2 A R FUR
amount due from an associate R REEE - 178
Impairment loss recognised in respect of At E S MAERDR
available-for-sale financial assets ER E R IE 667 3,458
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B EEMRN
intangible assets DENIEN SR - 5,155
Impairment loss recognised in respect of LI NI X
interest in an associate ERRBEERE - 580
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Eﬁﬁﬁﬂ}f”ﬁl RIETE R
other receivables BIEEE - 3,710
Impairment loss recognised in respect of VX - B MR
property, plant and equipment HER B REE 1B 4,097 34,138
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLIE U E 5 AR FRAERR
trade receivables BIEEE 1,059 560
Interest income FEMA (4,844) (5,700)
Investment loss from derivative financial MTESRMTAKRERE
instruments 10,333 6,236
Loss on disposal of an associate & — R = N EEE - 861
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEECREE
financial assets &8 - 125
Loss (gain) on disposal of held-for-trading HEFHIEESFREEIE
investments (Yras 1,130 (2,672)
Loss on disposal of interest in a joint venture HER—EaEREN
R EE - 63
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BFE REHD
plant and equipment 518 3,218 13,396
Provision for restructuring BHEBE - 15,044
Reversal of allowance for inventories BEFERE (5,221) (6,905)
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in 12 [0 H A JE W R IR
respect of other receivables R ERSE (1,116) -
Reversal of impairment loss recognised in %@Fﬁ}?@i%fé%ﬂ%%\
respect of trade receivables ERRBEEE - (902)
Share of results of associates FE1i A5 X =] ) 248 507 468
Share of results of joint ventures JEIE & &R EREE - (629)
Waiver of amount due to a joint venture RN —HAELEN
I8 (202) =
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 808 -
Write-off of trade receivables JEUE 5 BR Fh 6 4,877 -
KEEBMERERET oo

INFEEFH
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE_ZT—~FtA=1+—HILEE

DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2016 2015
—E—RE —T R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Operating cash flows before movements in EIEE BRI
working capital REWENE (40,678) (67,009)
Decrease in inventories FERD 32,370 17,779
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEW B 5 B 3% I EAth
FEW FRIE R 29,405 14,695
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables  JEfHE S8R & E A
JE - FRIE OR A>) 18 0 (14,084) 16,112
Payment on provision for restructuring EFEER AN - (22,555)
Cash generated from (used in) operations KE (AR &L TEFNEREE 7,013 (40,978)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBMED (464) -
Taiwan Profit-Seeking-Enterprise Income REIAEEHEETFN
Tax refunded - 22
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB MG (4) (94)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RE (AR EEFHH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEeFE 6,545 (41,050)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Advance from a joint venture RE—EEERENRK - 202
Advance to an associate m) — B & IR e AR (65) (146)
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties W B £ RIR S (42,935) -
Dividends received from available-for-sale B A S S 5 A& EUERR
financial assets RS 659 542
Dividends received from held-for-trading BREEEREWERIRE
investments 243 264
Interest received BEFHE 5,263 6,835
Investment in an associate RS R AR E (3,518) =
Investment paid for derivative financial ENfTESmIANIRE
instruments (19,649) (6,236)
Payment for construction in progress RTINS - (4)
Placement of short-term bank deposits RHSRITIE K (4,804) (140,950)
Placement of structured deposits with banks BRI (17,871) =
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—fEBE N EH
FT1S5K18 - 900
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale HERMHELESREEN
financial assets FT{S k18 - 1,890
Proceeds from disposal of financial asset HEEEEAFET R
designated at fair value through profit or loss WAz NERIEH) & &l
BERFTSHIE - 3,788
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading HERFEEERENANE
investments TRIE 3,246 109,291
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - HER&HER
plant and equipment FT1S kI8 4,739 5,829
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HEHE A R8PS 5RIE 2,357 =
Purchase of held-for-trading investments BERIEEERE - (108,134)
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments BEERERIIERE - (88,975)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYZE - BENEE (14,227) (7,026)
Redemption from held-to-maturity investments & [@4%55 £ | HHIRE 43,442 45,253
Settlement from a venturer —ZEETRER - 6,147
Withdrawal upon maturity of short-term RS HASR 1717 2k B HE RS 12 EY
bank deposits 83,998 126,541
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) E (BR) BEEHH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B4 FE 40,878 (43,989)

100 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

DATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RESEE
Advance from an associate RE—EHE QBB 538 =
Capital injection from non-controlling interest — 1Bt B & R FE IR R i 2 A
of a subsidiary FE 1,600 -
Cash received from government grants BB R BIER & 124 271
Interest paid EfTFE (701) (729)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1TE B REPTIS N IE 5,797 379
Repayment of secured bank borrowings BB ITERER - (12,384)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING RE (AR BETEHN
ACTIVITIES HE T8 7,358 (12,463)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND HERBESEEYEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS OR2) F8E 54,781 (97,502)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FINRERACEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 103,556 200,111
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE Exemse
CHANGES (4,243) 947
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNRESRAESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR, represented IRTTRESBRRIA R 25
by bank balances and cash 154,094 103,556
ANEEEERAERAT 101
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GENERAL

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of the Annual Report. The Company and its
subsidiaries (hereafter collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of silicone
rubber and related products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“"HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC, Macau and Indonesia whose
functional currencies are Renminbi (“RMB"), Macau Pataca
("MOP") and Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR") respectively, the
functional currency of the Company and its other subsidiaries
is HKS.

At 31 July 2016, the directors of the Company consider the
ultimate holding company of the Company to be Lyton
Maison Limited which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI").

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

("HKFRS(s)")

The Group has consistently adopted the HKFRSs, which
include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs"), amendments and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") which are effective for the Group's financial year
beginning on 1 August 2015.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs
Amendments to HKFRS 2
Amendments to HKFRS 11
Amendments to HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments®

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Leases*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle'

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions®

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations'

Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers®

Disclosure Initiative'

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants!

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
> Effective date not yet been determined.

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results
and the financial positions of the Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to
bring into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting
that will allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in the financial statements. A finalised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 to incorporate all the
requirements of HKFRS 9 that were issued in previous years
with limited amendments to the classification and
measurement by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement category
for certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS 9
also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2. APP

LICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss
was presented in profit or loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting for
an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial assets
and commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS
39 for the recognition of credit losses. Under the
impairment approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised. Instead, expected credit
losses and changes in those expected credit losses
should always be accounted for. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition and, consequently, more timely information
is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk
component can be identified and measured and does
not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk
management purposes as a basis for hedge accounting.
Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and
compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39 using
metrics that are designed solely for accounting
purposes. The new model also includes eligibility
criteria but these are based on an economic assessment
of the strength of the hedging relationship. This can be
determined using risk management data. This should
reduce the costs of implementation compared with
those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces
the amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken
only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application

permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of

HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on

amounts reported in respect of the Group's financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities,

it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that
effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS 15
introduces a model that applies to contracts with customers,
featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of transactions to
determine whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer;
(i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
(i)  Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

(v Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in
the financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has
a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which
consists of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability, plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, the initial estimate of restoration costs and any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and
impairment expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be
charged to profit or loss following the requirements of HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on
lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations when it
becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing their impact on the consolidated financial
statements of these requirements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
until the Group performs a detailed review.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from one
of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or disposal
through distribution to owners) to the other should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no
interruption of the application of the requirements in HKFRS
5. Besides, the amendments also clarify that changing the
disposal method does not change the date of classification.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and
arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement
in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional
disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides,
the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in
relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
are not required in the condensed interim financial report,
unless the disclosures provide a significant update to the
information reported in the most recent annual report.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of
high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the
currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that
currency, government bond rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements 'if not disclosed elsewhere
in the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34
clarify that the required interim disclosures must either be in
the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements and
wherever they are included within the greater interim financial
report. The other information within the interim financial
report must be available to users on the same terms as the
interim financial statements and at the same time. If users do
not have access to the other information in this manner, then
the interim financial report is incomplete.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining what information as
well as where and in what order information is presented in
the financial statements. Specifically, an entity should decide,
taking into consideration all relevant facts and circumstances,
how it aggregates information in the financial statements,
which include the notes. An entity does not require to provide
a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if the information
resulting from that disclosure is not material. This is the case
even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements or
describe them as minimum requirements.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

BRAMIREETHEEMERS
HA((FEMBEREEN ] @

EEMBHRELEN T -——_F2=F
—MEENEEIE (E)
BEGTEFE19RNET AR AEL
REEFHNTISREDREENFEESE
MIFREEMERRK TG - WEHEEER
SEARBFAERATS - BIAERK
FHEZFROFIR ¥ A -

BEGTENFEMRREERET RIS
WARMT P RE (L BN P RS E M
WHERENER - BESERFE 345
BE AT AR HE L B AR TE 1R e PR RS BR A R0
R TS R R E I SO B P I TS R
RZEEE2RAN R B AE KK HE
BmES - DMK RE NN EMERA
kP RRAARNFRE - WRAER
BREEERESH - MEMEBER LD
FABMEMER - RIF B BERERE

SR .

E=EN ERATAEMBHRELEN _F
— R _ZE-MFERNFELSERE
ENRBEIRTEUARERZ ST BR
RERBEAZE -

EBITENE 1R REE | HE
I

B BRIE AT BA e 5 B 1 B R A B S K A
REBEFBERRZINNEH - UREHR
MEFNBEHEERF - FRIE BEEME
HAEERERE  BEREREHEENMG
REMBERERANER (BEME) - W&
BUBHRELNREABKENERL T
EZ REREARARAEIELERK
B BERERREER BN RELE
AlEE —RIBEERI T RRIEER
HER ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

SN pGETE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

Besides, the amendments provide some additional
requirements for presenting additional line items, headings
and subtotals when their presentation is relevant to an
understanding of the entity’s financial position and financial
performance respectively. Entities, in which they have
investments in associates or joint ventures, are required to
present the share of other comprehensive income of
associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method, separated into the share of items that (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the
understandability and comparability of its financial
statements when determining the order of the notes;
and

(i) significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. Earlier application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group's consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The
amendments do not prescribe a specific method to fulfill the
new disclosure requirements. However, the amendments
indicate that one way is to provide a reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances for liabilities arising from
financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 7 will become effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with early
application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
Amendments to HKAS 7 in the future may have significant
impact on presentation and additional disclosure of the
Group's consolidated statement of cash flows. However, it is
not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect
of Amendments to HKAS 7 until the Group performs a
detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-
based depreciation methods for property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38
introduce a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-
based amortisation methods for intangible assets is
inappropriate. This presumption can be rebutted only in the
following limited circumstances:

(i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

(i)  when a high correlation between revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group uses straight-line method for depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, the directors of the Company
do not anticipate that the application of the amendments to
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRS(s)") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its joint
venture and associate. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that constitutes or contains a business to a joint
venture or associate in full. An investing entity is required to
recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that does not constitute or contain a business to a joint
venture or associate only to the extent of the unrelated
investors' interests in that joint venture or associate.

The effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
has not yet been determined. However, earlier application is
permitted. The amendments should be applied prospectively.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the amendments in the future may have a material impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group's consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
the amendments until the Group performs a detailed review.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain investment
properties and financial instruments that are measured at fair
values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3— Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares
its financial statements using accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting
policies.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's
returns. When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, power over the investee may be
obtained through: (i) a contractual arrangement with other
vote holders; (ii) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group's voting rights and potential
voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above, based on all
relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss
has been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a
joint venture.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control of those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method. Under the equity method, investments in
associates and joint ventures are initially recognised at cost.
The Group's share of the profit or loss and changes in the
other comprehensive income of the associates and joint
ventures are recognised in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income respectively after the date of
acquisition. If the Group's share of losses of an associate or a
joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or
joint venture, which determined using the equity method
together with any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or joint
venture, the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are provided for, and a
liability is recognised, only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

If an associate or a joint venture uses accounting policies
other than those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’s or joint venture’s accounting policies conform to
those of the Group when the associate’s or joint venture's
financial statements are used by the Group in applying the
equity method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment, any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate or joint
venture is recognised as goodwill and is included in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the investment is acquired.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s or joint venture's losses (if any), the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to its investment in the associate
or joint venture. Goodwill that forms part of the carrying
amount of an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
not separately recognised. The entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate or
joint venture. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the investment ceases to be an associate or a joint
venture upon the Group losing significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
discontinues to apply equity method and any retained interest
is measured at fair value at that date which is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in
accordance with HKAS 39. Any difference between the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of a part interest in the associate or joint venture
and the carrying amount of the investment at the date the
equity method was discontinued is recognised in profit or
loss. Any amount previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that investment is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained earnings on the same
basis as it would have been required if the investee had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group's ownership interest in an associate or a joint
venture is reduced, but the Group continues to apply the
equity method, the proportion of the gain or loss that had
previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest is reclassified
to profit or loss if that gain or loss would be required to be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate or joint venture are recognised in
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.
The Group's share in the associate’s or joint venture's gains
or losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold and services rendered
in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales
related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all

the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and buildings

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and buildings (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans/state-managed
retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service
is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the
expected manner as to how the property will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property when there is a change in use, as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
The properties revaluation reserve in respect of that item will
be transferred directly to retained earnings when it is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, amortisation is charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss over the period of the rights using the straight-
line method.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above.

Deposits with a maturity over three months that are not
readily convertible into known amounts of cash are defined as
short-term bank deposits in the consolidated financial
statements.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains
or losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

FESBE®

TRMITA#E)

TREE
AEENEREED AR (BEEATE
FIBRI R R AR IR ([ R A FETIRIL
BEANREDNESREE  BERREBYEHK
B BERIBRERAHEESREE)
Z— o DHEETERMEENMEEMAR
RUTHEREEE - TEEHBERLE
SREETIER S B EERER LA LR o

EMEES N E IEEANECREE -
A B 455 A 1R B3R5 HOBS RESR
REGETE

IR

BERMEFETDFEEE TANDHERA
Koy AR BE R SR ARTE - BEF
KRR T ERRIZER T RNE FH
B AR EE IR - EHERE IR A ET R RER
ERA(BEMEBERERERNENEN
HEWBERARNKZE XHKNAREM
HERITE) EREFENNEK -

BH T ABM S A TR E BRI R LA
B ERES BRI AFEYIRLAERR
MEEN S B EERRIN - A B AG
AIBEFER ©

B FESRI 1S 58 NEE IR ) 2 B
BAFEIIREERENRENSREE
DRME BEFEEENSREERR
ML ERRFIEERRATFESIRLAERR
NEENTREE °
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont

inued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Finan
Finan

Afina

cial assets (Continued)
cial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

ncial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

Finan

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

cial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with

changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The

net g

ain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any

dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is

included in the other operating income or other expenses.

Fair value is determined in the manner described in Note 8.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amount
due from an associate, short-term bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Group’s management has the positive intention
and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets
relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading
of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and
other receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on AFS equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investments
revaluation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
amounts due to an associate and a joint venture and secured
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form as integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise
under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the
part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss
allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

136 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2016

FESBE®
BREEREFEERNRERSE (&)

MERBEORERSE  AIEREE (KRS
EAEMN)MREESEEETNMHE TR
Bl &5 - R NRAREENSBRRK
ZEE(IRSEEEN) NBEFELE
ERAREBEREBEENREE - REFRE
BB AR HERR A IRA -

EaEMNNRNPERNRRS
RTEENBRE
EESHNRBEEO A FESRATX L BRE
RIEL BN AFEEE  IREBEHRA
NEBEX S #m (BRiERE) Ted
FEE N -

AEEERREMRETEERARKE
BOBREHE WM -  REGEREER
HAERETNEE (W) @ ERENE
B UL RFRAXRREETNGEE - B
BRI EELARRAE -

RITEEREER - AERBEOE R ERHER
MEESBRARMNEE - NBRENRE
B R B M I R B B DR BETT(E
AR R EREREANSESERE
REHEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

SN pGETE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group's investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors of the Company have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is rebutted.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Impairment of AFS financial assets

The Group classifies certain investments in listed securities as
AFS financial assets and recognised movements of their fair
values in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investments revaluation reserve. For AFS equity investments,
a significant or prolonged decline in fair value of the securities
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment. As at 31 July 2016, the carrying value of listed
securities classified as AFS financial assets is approximately
HK$24,539,000 net of accumulated impairment losses
recognised of approximately HK$9,757,000 (2015:
approximately HK$19,596,000 net of accumulated impairment
losses recognised of approximately HK$9,090,000) with
reference to quoted market prices of the listed securities in
an active market. No accumulated impairment losses
previously recognised is released to profit or loss upon
disposal during the year ended 31 July 2016 and 2015.

For the AFS financial assets not quoted in an active market
and measured at cost, the management uses its judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique. Valuation
techniques commonly used by the market practitioners are
applied. The carrying amount of the Group’s unlisted equity
investment is nil, net of accumulated impairment losses
recognised of approximately HK$11,610,000 (2015: nil, net of
accumulated impairment losses recognised of approximately
HK$11,610,000) are valued at net asset value of that unlisted
equity investment.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into
account their estimated residual values. The determination of
the useful lives and residual values involves management’s
estimation based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of the relevant assets of similar nature and
function. The Group assesses annually the residual value and
the useful life of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate, such a
difference may impact the depreciation in the year and the
estimate will be changed in the future period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and prepaid lease payments

The Group tests annually whether property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets and prepaid lease payments
have suffered any impairment in accordance with relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates such as the future
revenue and pre-tax discount rates. As at 31 July 2016, the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, prepaid
lease payments and intangible assets are approximately
HK$68,927,000, HK$7,339,000 and nil respectively, net of
accumulated impairment losses recognised of approximately
HK$112,884,000, HK$2,010,000 and HK$6,720,000
respectively.

As at 31 July 2015, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment, prepaid lease payments and intangible
assets are approximately HK$100,085,000, HK$11,161,000 and
nil respectively, net of accumulated impairment losses
recognised of approximately HK$108,787,000, HK$2,010,000
and HK$6,720,000 respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 July 2016 at their fair
values of approximately HK$89,935,000 (2015: HK$54,647,000).
The fair value is based on a valuation on the properties
conducted by an independent firm of professional valuers
using open market value by reference to comparable market
transactions which involve certain assumptions of market
conditions. Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the
Group's investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of loss reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Allowance for inventories

The Group makes the allowance for inventories based on
assessments of the net realisable value of inventories. An
allowance is applied to inventories where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower
than the costs of inventories. The identification of obsolete
inventories requires the use of judgement and estimates on
the conditions and usefulness of the inventories. Where the
actual outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
inventories and allowance write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed. As at 31 July 2016, the
carrying value of inventories is approximately HK$29,809,000
(net of accumulated allowance of approximately
HK$4,574,000) (2015: HK$62,172,000 (net of accumulated
allowance of approximately HK$8,226,000)).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables
The Group’s management determines the provision for
impairment of trade receivables with the accounting policy
stated in Note 3. Such provision for impairment is established
if there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Management reassesses the adequacy of any
such provision on a regular basis. As at 31 July 2016, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is approximately
HK$96,486,000 (net of allowance for doubtful debts of
approximately HK$1,748,000) (2015: the carrying amount of
trade receivables is approximately HK$130,803,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of approximately HK$947,000)).
During the year ended 31 July 2016, impairment loss and
write-off of trade receivables amounting to approximately
HK$1,059,000 (2015: HK$560,000) and HK$4,877,000 (2015: nil)
have been recognised respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments and
structured deposits with banks

The management of the Group uses their judgements in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for derivative
financial instruments and structured deposits with banks. For
derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made based
on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of the
instruments. If the inputs and estimates applied in the model
are different, the carrying amount of these derivatives may
change. The estimation of structured deposits with banks
included some assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. As at 31 July 2016, the
carrying amounts of derivative financial liabilities and
structured deposits with banks are approximately
HK$11,753,000 (2015: HK$17,017,000) and HK$17,261,000
(2015: nil) respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of short-term bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, secured bank borrowings
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. The directors of
the Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As a part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issue
and the issue of new debts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

&MITR
TR T AR

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Financial Assets cREE
Fair value through profit or loss BATEYBRI RS as A T
Held-for-trading investments BIFEERE 3,668 9,120
Structured deposits with banks ERMIRITER 17,261 =
Held-to-maturity investments FEZIHKRE - 43,442
Loans and receivables (including bank BN ERZIE (B
balances and cash) RITHEHBEIRS) 262,258 326,022
AFS financial assets AEHESREE 24,539 19,596
Financial Liabilities cRIBE
At amortised cost T2 88 5 Ak 2N 96,374 117,450
Fair value through profit or loss BRAFEYRI IS N2
Derivative financial instruments PTEeRmIT A 11,753 17,017
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7. HMERREEARRIE

AND POLICIES

The Group's financial instruments include held-to-maturity
investments, structured deposits with banks, AFS financial
assets, derivative financial instruments, trade and other
receivables, held-for-trading investments, amount due from
an associate, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, secured bank borrowings, amount due to a joint venture
and an associate and trade and other payables (including
trade and bills payables, accrued expenses and other
payables). Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

AEENERTASESAZIHRE -
EBURTESR AHEESREE 17
AR TA  BKE SRR EMEUR
B BEEERE  BK—REBEQER
B EHRTER  ROTEHERE - F
ERRITRER BN —HAEEER—FH
BE N R FRNA R ENE SRR K E M E
NHE(BREENESERRENRE &
AR REAMENTIR) c ZEF 2R T AR
FHIENSEEMERE - TXH#IEZE
@ T AR R R R K R F R R
WEE - BEEEEEREEZERR - N
FECR AT I B R 78 Rt BREGE & 5 7E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

SN pGETE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 7.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by several
subsidiaries of the Company in currencies other than those
subsidiaries’ functional currencies. In addition, certain portion
of the amounts due from/to joint ventures/associates, AFS
financial assets, held-to-maturity investments, derivative
financial instruments, held-for-trading investments, trade and
other receivables, short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and secured bank
borrowings are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the entities to which they relate.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

MIEREEEERRBE#)

a
1\

5 [ B

AEEREHRZELRR - EERKRIRES
ARABZHEHBRATINE AN REEEE L
SN E M EITH S E SRR o AN B
W e EhE BERRKNKE A7
HEESHEE FEZRIHEE T4
EHMTE FHIEEERE BRESFIEXR
MEMEWTRIA - BEIRITER - RITE
BRIEE  BNE SRR EMEMNRIE
AR BIRIFRITERPEE T2 T A
FAERE SN EEETE -

\

AEBUINEHENEERBBERHRSEH
HigBRmEE D

Assets Liabilities
BE =F

2016 2015 2016 2015

ZE-XRE —ZZT—hF ZB-XRE —T—1F

‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Fx Tz T Tz

United States Dollars (“US$") =7t ([ZET]) 11,808 13,314 6,378 7,905
Euro (“EUR") Bt (T8oT)) 385 411 - =
Japanese Yen (“JPY") HE(THE]) 230 1,551 - =
New Taiwan Dollars (“NTD") # & ([#F4%]) 119,993 120,089 150 625
RMB AR 35,709 84,013 - 1,520

The Group has mitigated the currency exposure against the
foreign currencies by using foreign exchange forward
contract. Moreover, the directors of the Company
continuously monitor the related foreign currency exposure
and will hedge significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

AEECD ERERHINESQREEEEHIH
WEER - I AR B EFEHEERMA
FSNE R - AN ERERERINER
BETTH o

RNFESEEZERBERAR
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in
US$, EUR, JPY, NTD and RMB.

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%)
increase and decrease in functional currency of the relevant
group entity (i.e. mainly HK$, RMB and IDR) against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated items and adjusts
their translation at the year end for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates an

MIEREEEE R R

B EE(#)

BRED

AEBEEAXET BT BE - #b
BERAREHNRBOTE -

TRV EEEEEERNIEE (Blx
BAEBTT  ARERIEE) HAEREINER
PE R FH sk % 5% (2 — R 4F - 5%) B 8%
B o5%(ZF—HF 5% BRAEEE
B A B 1E L A EPHNES R B B 3R B AT A RO 8K
RELE  WAEBEEHERLSIEALE
FHTE c MEAESMERFBEAINE EE
RAREREER  WHINEERHS%(ZF
—RF 5% ) BB FARFENFTRANSE -
TRAEEE T EER BRI LS 5 A8
BEBAES)(ZZT—RHF  5%) KAy

increase in loss where respective functional currency MEFE - WA e EE AR SRR E
strengthens 5% (2015: 5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% (ZZF—FR%F :5%) @ QI FEEERE
5% (2015: 5%) weakening of respective functional currency R ERAERERERNZE - M X
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and HERAIREH -
opposite impact on the loss for the year and other equity, and
the balances below would be negative.
Us$ EUR JPY NTD RMB
EYH BT H el AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT T FHET FHT FABxT
Loss after tax BrivizETIE
— 2016 — —T—RF 1,371 164 1 1,498 2,071
— 2015 ——Z—HhF 2,137 175 5 1,553 5115

In view of the pegged rate between HK$ and US$, the
directors of the Company do not expect there is a material
effect by any changes in movement in value of US$ against
HKS.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to its variable-rate deposits with banks and secured bank
borrowings and is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to its fixed-rate short-term bank deposits for the
year ended 31 July 2016. To mitigate the impact of interest
rate fluctuations, the Group continually assesses and monitors
the exposure to interest rate risk.

The Group's exposure to interest rates on financial liabilities
is detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point (2015: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is
used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates have been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$340,000 (2015: HK$146,000).

MIEREEEE R E )

FIZREB
BE-Z-AELAS+—BLEE &
EEHET R RTERRARRRTER
AERESRENRAR - FHE LEHR
FERAZATENRER - AREFE
WE O E AR T R B R A
F TR AR -

AEENSEEENERBRAMNMTRE
BEeRRER —Hizr o

BRESN
TXHBREE ST IIRIEIESTAE T AR R
EHARNFERRETE - BESMEER
RBEHRANAEEERTARNEEFE
HREE -SOEEZE(ZT—RF : 501
B2 #ENsR S ARAEBEREABEL
REBF R R EREFFTIRA - WAEEE
A RE I g B AT ©

A= 38 TB S0 EES (— B —HF
S0 EEZY) - mATE S EHFTE - Al
REBFANBEB SR, 15 N4 340,000
BIL(ZZT—FRF : 146,00087T) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed AFS financial assets and held-for-trading
investments. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. In
addition, the Group has appointed a special team to monitor
the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective equity securities have been 5%
(2015: 5%) higher/lower:

— loss for the year ended 31 July 2016 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$183,000 (2015:
HK$456,000) as a result of the changes in fair values of
held-for-trading investments; and

— investments revaluation reserve would increase/
decrease by approximately HK$1,227,000 (2015:
HK$980,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of
listed AFS financial assets.

Credit risk

As at 31 July 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group does not provide
any guarantees that would expose the Group to credit risk.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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7.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 51% (2015:
53%) of the total trade and bills receivables as at 31 July 2016.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as nil (2015: 12%)
and 41% (2015: 53%) of the total trade and bills receivables
are due from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The credit risk on short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and held-to-maturity investments is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants. The
following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

MIEREEEE R R

RBESER (&)

Total
contractual
undiscounted
cash flows
due on
demand or
within Carrying
one year amount
RERS
R—FREIRH
EHARTHRRS
BT BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
At 31 July 2016 RZE—RELtHA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities EPTAESRmBERE
Trade and other payables FE 1< & 5 BR 3R K H A FE 1~ 5KI8 62,554 62,554
Amount due to an associate FE — B & A RI5RIE 538 538
Secured bank borrowings BHEIPRITE 33,344 33,282
96,436 96,374
Derivative financial instruments TTHESRTE 11,753 11,753
At 31 July 2015 RZZE—AFLtA=+—H
Non-derivative financial liabilities EPTAESRmERE
Trade and other payables B E SR S E e A 83,966 83,966
Amount due to a joint venture A —fEa & hERIE 202 202
Secured bank borrowings BEIPRITE 33,336 33,282
117,504 117,450
Derivative financial instruments TSR T A 17,017 17,017

Secured bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “due on demand or within one
year” time band in the above maturity analysis. At 31 July
2016, the carrying amount of these bank borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$33,282,000 (2015:

HK$33,282,000).

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is
determined as follows:

— the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets is determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively;

—  the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding held-for-trading investments, AFS
financial assets, derivative financial instruments and
structured deposits with banks) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments; and

— the fair value of held-for-trading investments, AFS
financial assets, derivative financial instruments and
structured deposits with banks is calculated using
quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, use
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using the
applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or short-
term maturities.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring

basis

Fair value hierarchy

eI RAMXFE R

BEEUHEENRNFETENSIEE
TREEREREENAFE

DNFEER

Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEHRLE
BRAEEMN
CREE
Held-for-trading investments BIEESRE 3,668 - - 3,668
Structured deposits with banks £ 1 R17775 - - 17,261 17,261
Available-for-sale financial ARHESREE
assets
Listed equity securities FHRAES 24,539 - - 24,539
28,207 - 17,261 45,468
Financial liabilities SRERE
Derivative financial instruments TESBmTE - (11,753) - (11,753)

150 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring
basis (Continued)

EMTRMXFE @)

BREBHEENATEFENEAEH
TREERTREEN D FE®RE)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DNEEBR(E)
31 July 2015
“T-REtA=1+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—IE FE_= F=IE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBIT FHBIT FHBT FHIT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFERILTE
BEAEEN
SREE
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE 9,120 = = 9,120
Available-for-sale financial AHHESREE
assets
Listed equity securities ERRAES 19,596 - - 19,596
28,716 - - 28,716
Financial liabilities A =L
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4& @ T A = (17,017) = (17,017)

There are no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during both
years.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 8.

The valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 1, 2 and 3
fair value measurements of financial instruments are set out

Fair value
hierarchy

AHEER

Level 1

éﬂlﬂ
=i

Level 1

Level 3

L

Level 2

NEEH=T—HIEFE

eI RAMXFE R

DREERE)

™

Valuation technique(s)
and key inputs

REAERETERALE

Quoted bid prices in active markets

ERTEREAE

Quoted bid prices in active markets

AR REAE

Discounted cash flow. Structured deposits
with banks are valued with reference to
the embedded interest rate to discount
the future income of structured deposits
into present value.
@Efﬁfﬁﬁﬁi © BRERITRHEERARAAE
BEBLERNAREARR ERERITHE -

Discounted cash flow. Forward contracts
are valued with reference to the "US$ and
RMB" forward rate extracted from
Bloomberg and adopted the US
Government bonds rate to discount the
future income of forward contracts
into present value.

ERMIAEE—[E -

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTURRRE

N/A

Tam

N/A

TR

Discounted rate

BEE

N/A

TRASRE - EBRONSERSNTEY (18  TER

ARE] BEERME YRAXARRESFZEX

HERCHNRRRATEER(E

8.
(Continued)
Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring
basis (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
below:
Financial assets/ Fair value as at
financial liabilities 31 July 2016
—E-RE
tA=1-H
SREE/SRAR WATE
Listed equity securities classified HK$24,539,000
as AFS financial assets in the (2015
consolidated statement of HK$19,596,000)
ﬂnanda\ position
FREBRRRDEATMHLE 24539,000%7
ﬂﬂ!ﬁﬁﬁ’]hﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ% (Z%-1%:
19,596, 0003&7T)
Listed equity securities classified HK$3,668,000
as held-for-trading investments (2015:
in the consolidated statement HK$9,120,000)
of financial position
FRUBRARDRRRIE 3,668 0007
ﬁETxﬁE’]imHﬂm (ZZ-1%:
9,120,000387t)
Structured deposits with banks HK$17,261,000
in the consolidated statement (2015: nil)
of financial position
FRUBRARANEREILRTER 17,261, 00087
“Z-R%: %)
Foreign currency forward contracts Liabilities:
classified as derivative financial HK$11,753,000
instruments in the consolidated (2015;
statement of financial position HK$17,017,000)
TRIBRARA BATESR AE:
Iﬁaﬁﬁ\\%%ﬁém 11,753,000 7%
(Z2-1F:
17,017,000%7)
152 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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¥

Relationship of
significant
unobservable inputs
to fair value

EATTRRRSR
APENBE

N/A

TiEH

N/A

The estimated fair value
would decrease if the
discounted rate is
higher.
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9.

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9.

Revenue represents fair value of the consideration received or

receivable and for goods sold in the

business to customers, net of discounts and sales related

taxes.

Revenue and other operating income recognised for the year

are as follows:

normal course of

Wra B HftaE = A
WatEE Wk B ERER EEKBRE
FREFHEEMNKENATE {1k
Pk sHEARRETIA -

A ERER MU Es M B AL W AT

2016 2015
—E-AF —T—hfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Revenue Weas
Sales of goods HEEm 386,516 426,242
Other operating income HAb & WA
Interest income MEKA
— Bank deposits — RITIFK 3,493 5,026
— Held-to-maturity investments —RAERIHKRE 1,244 674
— Structured deposits with banks — M IRITIF 107 =
Total interest income F B A 42%E 4,844 5,700
Dividend income AR B A 902 806
Fair value gain on derivative financial MTESRTEAEMQTFENE
instruments - 2,458
Forfeiture of deposits from customers BRWEBFiRE - 251
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries BUH T B A 5 /U e 2,846 -
Gain on disposal of financial asset B SR EIRAFEYRIAE
designated at FVTPL BRENEENS REE S - 70
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HERIEEBERENRE
investments - 2,672
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 45) &I E R al et (A1 45) 1,534 -
Government grants NEgERN ke
— Amortisation of deferred income for — — ERIEEU A S (HfaE41)
the year (Note 41) 24 25
— Grants related to expenses recognised — ERFER A H A E & U A HY
as other operating income (Note b) Fx BRI FEBN & (fiEb) 124 271
Net rental income (Note a) He WA FHE (Fita) 7,110 2,417
Sundry income £ 1,914 858
Waiver of amount due to a joint venture #AGER —f4& & EMNFIE 202 -
19,500 15,528
FEE E R /NG
AIRECETRRR 1%
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9.

10.
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REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 9. ISERHEMEEZTWRA &)
(Continued)
Notes: Btst -
(@)  Ananalysis of the Group's net rental income is as follows: @) AEEBESKAFEOSTEOT :
2016 2015
ZEBE-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Gross rental income iR N 8,086 2,642
Less: Outgoings incurred for investment B NERNEERSBAR
properties that generated rental WEMERS R
income during the year (976) (225)
Net rental income HeW A FaE 7,110 2,417

(b)  For the years ended 31 July 2016 and 2015, the amounts
represent unconditional grants from government for
subsidising the operations of enterprises in the PRC.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments
to be identified on the basis of internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
chief operating decision maker (“CODM") (the chief executive
officer) in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance.

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to a single
operating segment focusing on the manufacture and sale of
silicone rubber and related products. This operating segment
has been identified on the basis of internal management
reports prepared in accordance with accounting policies
which conform to HKFRSs, that are regularly reviewed by the
CODM. The CODM monitors the revenue from manufacture
and sale of silicone rubber and related products for the
purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. However, other than revenue
analysis, no operating results and other discrete financial
information are available for the resource allocation and
performance assessment. The CODM reviews the profit for
the year of the Group as a whole for performance assessment.
No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the CODM.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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10.

b) BEZ-—RER-T-AFLA=1+—
HILFE - BEFERBAREERTE
TEZENEGEHYE -

SEEE

FEMBMELEANEST [KREDH] B
NEBLERERE (TTBRAR) REDBME
BIR DB KA RIS P E M2 506 78
AEBEAFINABBREELEELED
ERHYEAE o

AEEREEHREE—RKEDH  ZD
MEINXRERHEYBREBER ° %
REDF IR B EERREMEHEM
REFEEBAMBREENN S BERM
REMAMERRERELER - BRE
BORELRERFERR  TEEER
REERKARERHEYB RIBBER
MU ER o AT - BRIRER D ATIN - BB EE
EEREMERNOMBEEMTHARER
DERKRIRFHE - TELERREFHA
SEEBNFEREMAFNGRR - BRL
BEEHRNIBLEERRERUIBEENL
DERBENDN - ML EELIRRZS o
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from major products

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its

major products:

. BEEH =)

FEEMNRE

AEB T BEMAmROWESTAT -

2016 2015
—EB-RF “Z—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHTT

Consumer electronic devices HEBETREREEM
peripheral products 175,054 222,581
Keypads for computers and notebooks [ & 25 50 7 B s R4 58,828 88,057
Lifestyle products EIEEm 37,799 38,321
Mobile phone peripheral products FHEEEM 9,948 7,855
Automotive peripheral products B ERE M 31,509 34,589
Chemical products LE2ER 43,487 =
Other products HiES® 29,891 34,839
386,516 426,242

Geographical information

The Group's operations are principally located in the PRC and

Hong Kong.

Information about the Group's revenue from external
customers based on the location of the customers and
information about its non-current assets by geographical

location of the assets are detailed below:

b 188 &
AEENZEIBURTEREE -

REBERZTFAENE D 2 RBINEEF
MREE R RIREEMEE D 2 IFRE
BEERHIINT -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REPBEF kS FkRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
At —T—hF b A —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T THERT T
The PRC 2]

(excluding Hong Kong) (BHBBRIN) 176,541 212,843 159,301 155,208
Hong Kong BB 71,492 98,457 8,825 9,021
Other Asian countries Hfth Z5 M B =X 73,670 39,225 12,825 14,506
America ES 43,519 67,565 - -
Europe BN 21,294 8,152 - -

386,516 426,242 180,951 178,735

Non-current assets exclude AFS financial assets.

FERBEEL TEEAIREESHEE

K WA A
—E-AEER |00



10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
sales of the Group in both years are as follows:

10. ZEEH (&)
ETEEFEHR
RMEFEE REGAKEHEARR
10% M E PR ESIE T

Customer A EEH
Customer B BB,
Customer C BFEA

43,487" N/ANER?
N/ATER? 59,4113
N/ATER? 53,376%

156>

Sales are derived from the sale of chemical products.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Sales are derived from the sale of consumer electronic devices
peripheral products and automotive peripheral products.

Sales are derived from the sale of keypads for computer and
notebooks.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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11. OTHER EXPENSES 11. HftiBAX
2016 2015
—E-AF =T hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Exchange losses bE 5 s 1R 2,321 1,329
Fair value loss on derivative financial ST ANRA T EEE
instruments 4,052 -
Fair value loss on held-for-trading FEEEREN A TAERIE
investments 1,076 7,533
Fair value loss on investment properties &% &% A L (EEE
(Note 23) (Kt5£23) 601 2,246
Impairment losses recognised in respect of: #t LA T & B HE R HY R (B B 18
— amount due from an associate — JEUR—REI B R B R 0E - 178
— available-for-sale financial assets — O EsREE 667 3,458
— intangible assets — BV EE - 5,155
— interest in an associate (Note 27) — R — A E AR R (AiE27) - 580
— property, plant and equipment — W BENERE 4,097 34,138
Investment loss from derivative financial 74 &gt T AKEEE
instruments 10,333 6,236
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEHEECHEENEE
financial assets - 125
Loss on disposal of held-for-trading HEFIEEBRREMNER
investments 1,130 -
Loss on disposal of interest in a joint HER—HEECEMNERNER
venture - 63
Loss on disposal of interest in an associate H &R — @& A 5] A= H ET1E - 861
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE KR ENEE
plant and equipment 3,218 13,396
Others Hib - 402
27,495 75,700
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. MERE
2016 2015
—E-AF — s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Interest on secured bank borrowings BHEARITERAF S 701 729
KERBERARAT 15y

o SN

4
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE

13. FiRIR(ER)MAX

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&T
Current tax BNEARR I8
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B RPTIS A 8 29
(Over) under provision in prior years BEFERE (BRE) T2
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EAERH (4) 65
Deferred taxation (Note 42) EIERIB (Hat42)
Current year REFEE (772) (71)
(768) 23

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 July
2016 and 2015 as the Group did not derive any assessable
profits.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision for Indonesia Income Tax for the years ended 31
July 2016 and 2015 has been made as the subsidiary
operating in Indonesia did not generate any assessable
profits in Indonesia.

Ta Yang Group (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited is
incorporated as a commercial offshore entity in Macau and is
exempted from Macau Complementary Income Tax.

No provision for Taiwan Profit-Seeking Enterprise Income Tax
for the years ended 31 July 2016 and 2015 has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits in Taiwan.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards. Accordingly, provision for PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25% of estimated
assessable profits for both years.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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HRAEEHEE T A"ER_F—AF
A=t —HALFELEELEFAERN
A WA AR M IFRERAELFEH
SR -

RIFFERE MEER LSRRI X
B AEEBAGNHEHEREBR K
HEERMAEHR -

HRENELENH B R RLEENEE
EEMERTGEN BRI EABE-F
—RNERE-AFEA=THLFE
TEHENEPTS M B

RASECRMBEFAERS) BRARRE
RFEMARL AR ARERGEE - BR
RARRPIFTISH TR ©

HRAEEEE T A"EFR-_F—A0F
TtA=+T—HLEFEYERGEELEWM
FERTOE A - Rt EEHE 8B ENEE
FRS B o

REBFEPERMAEEA(TREMFIHIAZD)
RBFEREEAERIGD - B EA R
R-ZZBZENF—H - HENRER25% -
Bt - o BB 2 A B o B 4 2 P S A 23
142 A% P I8 5 5 B9 fify 51 B SR 5004 ) 9 25%

NP
ETE o
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 #Z —ZE— X "F+tA=+—HItFE

13.

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (Continued) 13. FAifRIR(ER)AX (&)
The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be FAMGEH (L) Ax REaBmR i
reconciled to the loss before tax per the consolidated BIBRT AT BB ERRIAT -
statement of profit or loss as follows:
2016 2015
—RE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Loss before tax BRI AR 1R (73,018) (159,359)
Tax credit at rates applicable to loss in  ZERAN A M)A E EREEIBH
the jurisdictions concerned MEGFENRBER (8,727) (20,304)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BAERRAN TS &
tax purposes (3,260) (3,018)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TRINB AR E
for tax purposes 3,033 10,404
Tax effect of share of results of associates 7 HE 4% N B E 4TS 5 2 84 77
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B A EE T EERN R SERE
recognised (301) 7)
(Over) under provision in prior years WA FEREE (B T2 (4) 65
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERHEE BN EE 8,407 12,806
Income tax (credit) expense for the year  FARFTSH (%) FHAX (768) 23
Details of deferred taxation are shown in Note 42. EL RS A SIS S KT EE42 o
NAFESEZERBR AR

—T—AFER

159
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14.

160

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at
after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Current year
Over provision for prior year
Allowance for inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Amortisation of intangible assets
(Note 20)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
(Note 22)
Costs of inventories sold (Note)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 19)
Directors’ emoluments (Note 18)
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of other receivables
Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade receivables (Note 31)
Payments under operating leases in
respect of land and buildings
Research and development costs
Reversal of allowance for inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Reversal of impairment loss in respect
of other receivables
Reversal of impairment loss in respect
of trade receivables (Note 31)
Share of taxation of an associate
(included in share of results of
associates)
Staff costs (excluding directors’
emoluments) (Note 17)
Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Write-off of trade receivables

14. EREHR

FABETEMNR GEA) A TRIA

SR I =
REE
BEFEBERE
FERE GEAHERAE)

B EEBE (K 20)
BNEEFREH (i 22)

BEEFERAN(HT)
ME - BB RREITE (Fa19)

BEME (E18)
L EL At B UR TR B RERR A BB 5 18

FIEWE 5 ER
(KtaE31)

AR RIEFEEE
TEE TR

T EE X AN

BEEFE

REVRIEREE

SR (G ASHE R AR)

B[O A R E R OB R R E S 18
B O BRIEKE S ERNRE
E518 (f1aE31)
SE—FE A QR E GEA
FEMEEEE DN EIES)
BTN (TEEEENE)
(Btiz17)

FEME (G AEERAE)

FEUE 2 AR K A 5

2016 2015
—nE —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,270 1,260
- (213)

1,967 380

- 359

243 351
320,248 382,649
13,817 17,218
5,292 4,650

- 3,710

1,059 560
9,968 7,216
2,195 4,380
(5,221) (6,905)
(1,116) -
- (202)
- (46)
154,590 196,502
808 -
4,877 -

Note:

Cost of inventories sold includes approximately

HK$112,239,000 (2015: HK$148,869,000) relating to staff costs,
depreciation expenses and operating lease charges which
amounts are also included in the respective total amounts

disclosed separately above.
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15.

16.

DIVIDENDS 15.

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
July 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting period (2015: nil).

B2
RBE_T-—R"FLtA=T—"BHLFEY
B NSERIRBEEMRE - BREHRK

AR IR B MRS (ZF—RF
&) -

LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREBIR
(@) Basic (@) EHAR
Loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss FRBBEIEMEFERRBEE A
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted JE(E BB R A B BT @ AR A9 hnE -
average number of ordinary shares in issue during both HRGTE -
years.
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—TF
Loss for the year attributable to owners KA BB AFEEFEEEE
of the Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) (71,304) (156,335)
Weighted average number of ordinary & %17 8@ A% 89 INHEF 192X
shares in issue ('000) (F8%) 781,747 778,546
Loss per share (HK cents) SEE OB (9.12) (20.08)
(b) Diluted (b) #F
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—HF
Loss for the year attributable to AAREA ANEIEFEEEE
owners of the Company (HK$'000) (F#7T) (71,304) (156,335)
Weighted average number of ordinary B 817 & R H) IIHEF 5
shares in issue ("000) (Fh%) 781,747 778,546
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary E 1T B A A A B RS
shares derived from exercising e E S
of share options 360 127
782,107 778,673
Loss per share (HK cents) FREEE GBI (9.12) (20.08)

NFEEEZERARAR
ZE-RNEFR 161
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17. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

17. RIBF(FEBEEEH:)

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Salaries, allowances and other benefits He RN EAMET 136,547 168,414
Staff redundancy cost ESA= 179N - 15,044
Severance payment BENE 5,638 =
Retirement benefit schemes contributions & (K18 K| 5H& 4t 2% 12,405 13,044
154,590 196,502

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance which are available to qualified
employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the subsidiaries in independently administered
funds. Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries are
calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under the relevant
requirements, with maximum relevant income level for
contributions of HK$30,000 monthly.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this country participate
in respective government retirement benefit schemes (the
"Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to
contribute to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
the eligible employees. Contributions made to the Schemes
are calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC.
The relevant authorities of the PRC are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to the retired employees.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes
is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Schemes.

Employees employed by the Group's operations in Macau
Special Administrative Region (“MSAR") are members of
government-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the MSAR government. The MSAR operations are required
to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits schemes
operated by the MSAR government is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

162 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BB ARREESRGERTESET
ElEpl e EREE R TR -
ZEFENEERBYEEESEA &
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B ARNE T E D sz HE R TR
B ) [E E SRR VR R o R B U A
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RETEERERNRL  ARENER
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17. STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’

18.

V%5 R B Rt

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZ—=F—

+=—=

EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

The retirement benefit schemes contributions represent
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC, the retirement scheme
operated by the MSAR government and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong and Taiwan.

ANELA=4 HIEEE

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in Note 43.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s

emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the sixteen
(2015: nine) directors and the chief executive officer are

as follows:

For the year ended 31 July 2016

17.

18.

RINF(FEEEEH:) @

RARBNF RS EARERNTEERE
BRI MZETE  RPIRRBUTRLA
RARFHEIRNEE R & &R E RN
TR AR -

ARABEFAEEEEBBRENFBIRN

Fi3E43 o

EERTTHARMNE

(a) ESRTHEHENE
ENKEMTAB(ZE—RE: A
Z)VEE(BETHER) &£ANEE
HINAT -

BE-_Z—XREtA=1T—HLEE

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
2 RS- 311 BB
he REMEF BiEfa HE (58 by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Executive directors HiTES
Shi Qi (Note i) 5 (i) - 800 67 6 873
Xu Chendi (Note i) SR (i) - 667 55 6 728
Qiu Yonghao (Note ) B2 (Wieti) - - - - -
Huang Sheng-Shun (Note ii) EBR (it - 900 75 13 988
Huang Te-Wei HER - 857 70 18 945
Wong Tak Leung (Note ii) =ER (K2 - 581 48 14 643
Kwok Yiu Kai (Note iv) PRE (W) - 540 45 14 599
Non-executive directors FHTES
Han Lei (Note ) BE (Wi - - - - -
Gao Feng (Note i) B3 ) - - - - -
Wu lh Chen (Note ii REAMEN) 124 - - - 124
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Zhang Lijuan (Note i) RNB(HZin) - - - - -
Yeung Chi Tat BEE 165 - - - 165
Pak Wai Keung (Note iii) R{&ER (i) 47 - - - 47
Kirk Yang (Note ii BRE®(ti) - - - - -
Hsieh Yu (Note ii) Hi (Wiatii) 90 - - - 90
Jou Yow-Jen (Note ii) B9Y (i) 90 - - - 90
516 4,345 360 A 5,292
EEERRAERAR
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18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

18. EERITHERME =)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive officer’s () EBRTHAHINE (&)
emoluments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 July 2015 BE-Z-AFftA=+—HLEFE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
e 2 BINEA
e REMEF Bfs7Ea HEa it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
THL T T T THr
Executive directors HITER
Huang Sheng-Shun =R = 1,200 100 18 1,318
Huang Te-Wei BER = 866 70 18 954
Wong Tak Leung BER - 756 63 18 837
Kwok Yiu Kai (Note iv) PRE(Wrativ) - 122 49 18 789
Non-executive director FHTES
Wu Ih Chen REH 180 135 10 7 332
Independent non-executive directors BUkGTES
Kirk Yang BrER - _ _ _ _
Yeung Chi Tat BEE 180 - - - 180
Hsieh Yu Bl 120 S = = 120
Jou Yow-Jen By 120 - - - 120
600 3679 292 79 4,650
Notes: Hiat -

(i) Appointed on 6 April 2016.
(i) Resigned on 27 April 2016.
(i) Appointed on 27 April 2016.

(ivy  Appointed on 1 August 2014 and resigned on 27 April
2016.

Huang Te-Wei acted as the chief executive officer of the
Company until 5 April 2016. With effect from 6 April
2016, Shi Qi is appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company. Their emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by them as the chief
executive officer.

No directors and the chief executive officer waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during both years.

The bonus for both years represents one month salary
at discretionary of the Board, taking into account of the
Group's profitability and director’s performance.
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(i) RZZE—R"FEASNHERE -
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T RNFEMNA=F+LHEHE -

HE_Z-R"FUARR  &FEE—
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

18. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFF
(b)

ICER’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Senior management’s emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, four (2015: four) were directors including
chief executive officer of the Company whose
emoluments are set out above. The emolument of the
remaining one (2015: one) individual is as follows:

18.

EFRTTHARME @)
(b) REEEWNE

=)

AEBERAESFALH Tz (=
TR Of) REAARER (B
TTRAEE)  BENMESERN X -
BT (ZT—RF: —f)e
L

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits %4 - 284 & E thEF| 921 832
Retirement benefit schemes R FIFT B
contributions 18 18
939 850
The emolument is within the following band: ENFATER :

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,00078 7T

No. of individuals

A
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hEF
1 1

NFEEEZERARAR
ZE-RNEFR 165/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR TS HRR IR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 HZ —ZE—XF+tA=+—HItFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. ¥ WERRME
Properties Furniture,
held for Motor Plant and fixtures and Leasehold
own use vehicles machinery equipment  improvements Total
b3 B 2B
BRNE RE BEREES Rk AENERE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL
COsT R&E
At 1 August 2014 R=E-mEN\A-H 110,743 7479 340,135 83,117 89,786 631,260
Exchange realignment 5% 131 4 170 17 (17 305
Additions RE - 3% 3,636 1,764 2,312 7,741
Transfer from construction in progress EREERIR(WH2)
(Note 21) 162 - 63 - - 225
Revaluation for items transferred to BEBRERAMENER
investment properties 10,312 - - - - 10,312
Transfer to investment properties (Note 23~ ERZEREWE (/3£23) (27,206) = = = = (27,206)
Disposals e (3829 (786) (50,271) (14,676) - (69,55)
At 31 July 2015 RZE-1FtA=+-H 90,317 6,132 293,733 70,222 92,081 553,085
Exchange realignment i A% (3,707) (346) (18463) (3,938) (5,787) (32.241)
Additions NE 1,266 112 7,05 1932 3192 13,558
Revaluation for items transferred to EERERANENER
investment properties 12,548 - - - - 12,548
Transfer to investment properties (Note 23) BB TR EME (H:223) (48,954) - - - - (48,954)
Disposals e = (1,198) (66,404) (17,835) (3,962) (89,399)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARRE S
(Note 45) (Hizt4s) - - () 78) (114) (197)
At31July 2016 RZF-~E+A=1-A 51470 5,300 25917 50,303 85410 408,400

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND ZHFERHE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 August 2014 W=Z-mENA-H 64,101 5122 248,129 71,469 69,312 458133
Exchange realignment [ 5 % b 2 ®) 26 (40) (14)
Provided for the year (Note 14) ERBE(HEM) 2,884 306 12452 476 1,100 17,218
Impairment loss recognised in profitorloss — PMERREAMHESE 5832 23 21132 1,870 5,081 34138
Transfer to investment properties (Note 23) ~ BBEREME (H23) (6,142) = = = = (6,142
Eliminated on disposals HERHE (3,157) (660) (34,621) (11,895) - (50,333)
At 31 July 2015 RZE-RE+A=1-H 63,524 4,993 247,084 61946 75453 453,000
Exchange realignment Rk (2.907) (268) (15,767) (3331) (5,263) (27,536)
Provided for the year (Note 14) EnEBHit ) 846 2% 6,707 1424 4,584 13817
Impairment loss recognised in profitorloss — IMERREAMHESE 274 14 2048 388 1,373 4097
Transfer to investment properties (Note 23) ~ BEZRENE (H#23) (22292) = = = = (22.292)
Eliminated on disposals HEB L - (1,143 (59,599) (16,738) (3962) (81,442)
Elimination on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA R

(Note 45) (Hist45) = = @ (53) (114) (1m)
At 31 July 2016 RZE-~FtA=t-H 39,445 3,852 180,469 43,636 72,071 339473
CARRYING VALUES RAE
At 31 July 2016 R=E-7~&tA=1-A 12025 1,448 35,448 6,667 13,339 68,927
At 31 July 2015 RZE-1%tA=1-H 26,793 1,739 46,649 8276 16,628 100,085
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BTSRRI A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. MK - BER®RM &)

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives less residual values as follows:

Properties held for own use situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease
and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

Estimated useful life

A EWE - BB M REBEB AR AR IA
TEET AR FRRRSREET BT E

ME L FRHFE R R AREROE
H R B 5+ AT 2 PR 4F HA (SR B HIR 50 4F
M) HEEENE

Residual value

fh 5T AT 6E A S 58 NerEE
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%
TE 5%
Plant and machinery 10 years 10%
i K28 104F
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
Bt - RERRE 5%
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the lease term and 5 to 10 years -
HEWEEE HEARSZE104F - ARG E RAE

During the year ended 31 July 2016, the Group had
continuously suffered from operating loss. As a result of the
adverse operating environment and the change in market
conditions, the directors of the Company conducted a review
of the Group's property, plant and equipment and
determined that a number of those assets were impaired.
Accordingly, impairment loss of approximately HK$4,097,000
(2015: HK$34,138,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.
The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment have been determined by an independent
qualified professional valuer, BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI")
and determined based on their value-in-use calculation. The
pre-tax discount rates in measuring the amounts of value-in-
use range from 20.30% to 20.74% per annum in relation to
property, plant and equipment (2015: range from 21.06% to
23.45% per annum). There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in prior year.

REBE-_ZT—X"FtA=+T—"HLFE "
REBEEHRBKCEHE AREEIRE
RIEERTRES  ARREFLHAEEDN
ME - BELREBETER  UETZS
BEREAETEHRRBE - Bt - ERE
= PP AR (B JE5 18 49 4,097,000 T (==
— R4 :34,138,000/87T) - WE - BE K&
BENTINESEIIHBLAEREEM
BRI R FABETEBRAR([HRFMFABE])
RIBFEAEENEEE - TEVE - BE
K EFEAEEMRANRATRIRF RN
T2030%FE2074%(ZF —RHF: N F
21.06% 2= 23.45%) ° Fii{# B & {5 (B 5 0%
EEMR -

K WA A
—EAEER O\



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE_ZT—~FtA=1+—HILEE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. Y%  -BERBEME &)
(Continued)
The carrying value of properties held for own use shown PR EE BYENFRERSE
above comprises of:
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Medium-term leases FEIRE
— in Hong Kong — IR ER 7,875 8,110
— outside Hong Kong — BB AIMBE 4,150 18,683
12,025 26,793
As at 31 July 2016, land and buildings located in Hong Kong 7\5’3:2*/\_\%"1}? =+—R KREE ?’7
under medium-term leases with carrying value of 7,875,000/ 7L (= F — F 4 : 8,110,000/
approximately HK$7,875,000 (2015: HK$8,110,000) have been )RR B ARR o B L A A+ SR
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. FETFEM  ERAKBRAERRTER
EVFELR o
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. MiELRE
HK$'000
FHETT
COST BAE
At 1 August 2014 and 1 August 2015 RZZE—MENA-—B R
—E—RFENA—H 7,440
Exchange realignment M 3 78 (480)
At 31 July 2016 RZE—R"FLtA=1+—H 6,960
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT 2B RAE
At 1 August 2014 RZE—MENA—H 1,962
Charged for the year (Note 14) FRIBR (K1t 14) 359
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss R8N R AR EE R 5,155
Exchange realignment HE 3 (36)
At 1 August 2015 R=ZZE—RFNA—A 7,440
Exchange realignment M 3 B (480)
At 31 July 2016 RZZE—RF+LH=+—H 6,960
CARRYING AMOUNTS FREE
At 31 July 2016 RZE—R"FLtA=+—H =
At 31 July 2015 RZE—hFLtA=+—H =
168 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

21.

During the year ended 31 July 2015, the Group had
continuously suffered from operating loss in paper packaging
business which is the principal activity of a subsidiary, Harbin
Ta Yang Development Trading Company Limited (“Fa k& A
FEEE SBRATR") (“Harbin Ta Yang”). In view of getting
further adverse operating environment in the year, the
directors of the Company ceased the production and
business operations of Harbin Ta Yang, Harbin Ta Yang
became dormant as at 31 July 2015. Accordingly, impairment
loss of approximately HK$5,155,000 had been recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 July 2015.

20. |ixEE (&)

BE_T-AFtA=1T—HIEFE K
SEREP-—RNBLARREABENFER
BHARAR([MBERNFEMEEXR
MEBREBHERSLEER - ANF
NHEERRTE— B ARAESCE
BRIFMBAERNFNEEREBEE -1
BAAR_T-—AFEA=T—"HREEE
¥ ot BHE-ZT—RAFELA=1+—
HIEFE R EaPERREBRELY
5,155,000 7T °

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 21. E2IE
2016 2015
—E-ARF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHETT
At 1 August VAV Rl = - 728
Exchange realignment BEE 3¢, 58 - S
Additions NE - 4
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE  BERRE
equipment (Note 19) (KtaE19) - (225)
Transfer to prepaid lease payments EEREFRNMEERE (M7 22)
(Note 22) - (512)
At 31 July REA=+—8H - =

K BB ERA
—EpEEm O



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE_ZT—~FtA=1+—HILEE

22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 22.

The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use rights
in respect of land located in the PRC held under medium-
term leases, on which the Group's factory plants and staff
quarters are built. During the year ended 31 July 2016, certain
lands were transferred to investment properties. The
remaining period of the land use rights of the Group ranges
from 35 to 42 years (2015: 36 to 43 years).

AAHERRE

FENAERBERIEE BN R EiEF A
ERFENLH(REEEZE L E2EM|
ENEIFES)MN T BAEKRKE - &#HE
—EAFLAST-ALFEE BEFTL
WEEBREILE Y - ANEE L (F AE
HRRIGHIBR N T ERF(ZE—FHF
36E43F)NE -

2016 2015
—E—RE —ET—hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
COST RAE
At 1 August RNAA—H 15,719 17,647
Transfer from construction in progress BEZIIREE (Mat21)

(Note 21) - 512
Revaluation for lands transferred to BHEREREMEN LM

investment properties 11,156 2,100
Transfer to investment properties BT IREWE (M1 23)

(Note 23) (14,713) (4,551)
Exchange realignment PE 5 FE % (892) M
At 31 July RntA=+—8H 11,270 15,719
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION RETBHERRE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 August ®RAA—H 4,558 4,651
Charged for the year (Note 14) FAH (T 14) 243 351
Transfer to investment properties EREREYE (F7F23)

(Note 23) (590) (443)
Exchange realignment b H 32K (280) (1)
At 31 July RtA=+—H 3,931 4,558
CARRYING AMOUNTS fREE
At 31 July REBR=+—H 7,339 11,161

170 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

22. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

23.

22. RAFEEREAE)

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEEELH B DT
2016 2015
= —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Current assets mENE 232 321
Non-current assets RENEE 7,107 10,840
7,339 11,161
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 23. |{EYE
HK$'000
FABT
FAIR VALUE AF¥E
At 1 August 2014 RZZE—MENA—H 31,868
Transfer from property, plant and equipment A% BE NS EEE (FF19)

(Note 19) 21,064
Transfer from prepaid lease payments (Note 22) B ¥a R & R OEE R (ffE22) 4,108
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RERERN R FEZE (FaF11)

(Note 11) (2,246)
Exchange realignment ERz Ik (147)
At 31 July 2015 and 1 August 2015 R-ZZE—HFt+tA=+—H

E=Z—hFNA—H 54,647
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B - BENREEERE (KT 19)

(Note 19) 26,662
Transfer from prepaid lease payments (Note 22) B ERIRE R (Mt 22) 14,123
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIERERN AN EEE (HaE11)

(Note 11) (601)
Exchange realignment PE N FE 2 (4,896)
At 31 July 2016 R=—B—<EtA=+—~ 89,935

RAFEBMERARADR
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23.

172

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The investment properties shown above are situated in the
PRC and held under medium-term leases.

The properties with its respective prepaid lease payments held
for own use locating at Huzhou in the PRC were reclassified as
investment properties during the year upon the
commencement of the leases. These properties and prepaid
lease payments were revalued by BMI, an independent valuer,
resulting in revaluation gains of approximately HK$12,548,000
(2015: approximately HK$10,312,000) from properties (Note 19)
and approximately HK$11,156,000 (2015: approximately
HK$2,100,000) from prepaid lease payments (Note 22). The
revaluation gains have been recognised in properties
revaluation reserve for the year ended 31 July 2016.

As at 31 July 2016, the fair value of the investment properties
amounted to RMB77,530,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$89,935,000) (2015: RMB44,070,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$54,647,000)) was valued by BMI. The
valuation approach takes into account of the aggregate
amount of the value of the land for the existing use or a
notional replacement site in the same locality and the new
replacement cost of the buildings from which appropriate
deductions may then be made to allow for the age, condition,
economic or functional obsolescence and environment factors.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is its current use.

Details of the Group's investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 July 2016 and 2015 are as
follows:

REME

Investment properties

23. HEMER2)

e -

(a)

AEERKLHEEREANRRESHE
REENPEMERSHARFERAF
& WO BRARIIEREDE -

A LR ARER BEERE LR E
REME% -

FRN - ARPEBMNFIEE ARNYERE
FEMEMEERENBHRRERENS
HAREME - 2ESMEREMNHEERE
HBMEERMPMBEETREE  DER
BEAAERESNELAETEHRED
12,548,000/% (2T — 1 F: 4
10,312,000/ 7T) (M5 19) K49 11,156,000
B (ZE—RF : 492,100,000 7T) (K
$22) c BEHEGBKRFERBEE-_Z—X
FHA=t+—BUEFENMESEHRHER
TR ©

E/\ '7' /\i‘tﬂ ‘f‘ =1 TXQW%EU
/AJ?{E;%/\E%W&O,OOWEMH*‘“EMZU

89,9350008 L) (ZE—HF : AR
44,070,0007C( 48 & M %)54,647,000 %
J0))  TyER R AP EE AT o ZIEfEAAT

KT iERE REe EEXARMLRANSR
EEEMRNEERSERWRTHMA
R BRI - KR BB
ERE AL RRFEE R EEHEE A

BEFEPTAEETT AL BN - G
AREMENDTER  ZEVENRD
REERETIE B AR -

R-E—AFR-F—HELA=+—
A AREMBREDEFEREWATE
BREOERIT :

Fair Value
AFE

2016 2015
— N —T—AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&xT FAT
(Level 3) (Level 3)
(£=8) (=)
89,935 54,647

There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 for both years.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

MREFEE AL KRB EREEEE=E -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BTSRRI A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

23. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 23. BEYE©)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (&)
® (Continued) ® (&)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of RZB—RNER=ZTE—AFtA=1+—
investment properties as at 31 July 2016 and 2015 is as follows: H A@KRENEE=—"ELTEFTENE
BT
Valuation Significant Relationship of unobservable
Asset technique unobservable input input to fair value
BE fh{ET & EXFAERHIE FABRHEEAFENREAR
Investment Depreciated Market unit rates of land A slight increase in market unit rate
properties Replacement Cost (per square meter (“sgq.m.")) of land will significantly increase the
Approach are in a range from RMB266 fair value.

to RMB380 (2015: a range
from RMB252 to RMB360)

BEME TEEEXRAE TR TSEAER(BFHK) LTS ELEREM T
NFARB 266 TEARK3B0T HESAFEREL -
(ZF—R%F : NTARE2527T

= AR 3607T)
Current construction costs for A slight decrease in construction cost
building (per sq.m.) are in a will significantly decrease the fair value.

range from RMB1,100 to
RMB1,494 (2015: a range from
RMB1,137 to RMB1,535)
BFHNE AEERER (FFE5K) BERAEMTIE - KL AFEAE T -
NFARE1,1007T
ZEARE1,4947T
(Z2—01F : NFARK1137 T
ZAR¥1,5357T)

Depreciation rates (per annum) A slight increase in depreciation rate
are in a range from 18% to 24%  will significantly decrease the fair value.
(2015: a range from 15% to 21%)

FEXR(FF)NTF18%E24% PEXREY LT $ESAFERE K-
(ZZ—0F  NFI15%E21%)

K WA A
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

24. MEHEEMEE

174/

2016 2015
—RE —E—RE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FTHET FET
Listed equity securities: EHRARES
— Listed outside Hong Kong, — EBRBLAIMER
at fair value m - RAFE (@), (b) 24,539 19,596
Unlisted equity securities: FEETRAE S
— At cost — RAKAE (c) 11,610 11,610
— Less: provision for impairment  — & : A BB
loss (11,610) (11,610)
(d) - =
24,539 19,596
Notes: et

The fair value of the above listed equity securities is
determined based on the quoted market bid prices available
on the relevant stock exchange. During the year ended 31 July
2016, significant decline in the fair value of the securities below
its cost is noted and an impairment loss of approximately
HK$667,000 (2015: HK$3,458,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Included in the above listed equity securities are investments in
Formosan Union Chemical Corp. (“Formosan”) of
approximately HK$13,510,000 (2015: HK$10,369,000). Formosan
is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and the
director, Huang Sheng-Shun, has control of the Company and
is a key management personnel of Formosan. The director was
resigned on 27 April 2016.

Also, as at 31 July 2016, there are investments in United
Performance Materials Corporation (“United Performance”) of
approximately HK$2,825,000 (2015: HK$1,313,000). United
Performance is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
and the director, Huang Sheng-Shun, has control of the
Company and is a key management personnel of United
Performance. The director was resigned on 27 April 2016.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

it FTRAES A FETIEREBER
SHAEHTSEEAREETE - REE=
T—XRNFLtA=1T—"HILEE BHEHA
FEKENREEAEKARE - F R4
ARBERERREEBIEL 667,000 T (=
T — R : 3,458,000/87T) °

il FTRAESFBERMEC BT ¥R
MDBERAR ([ J)Eﬁ&ﬁimssmooo
/%71( Z— A4 10,369,000/ 7T ) °
HwR— %Fééﬁ#x%ﬁﬁimﬁﬁ@?
BEEBRIEGAAG BEAMBZHNEE
IEIE/\ED ?§$7J¥/\\7 /\i@ﬂ
—++HEE -

o RZE—RELA=+—H " 7F
REBEXERNARA R ([BE ) 8IRE
#92,825,000% 7t (ZF — A4 : 1,313,000
BT BBE-RNAERELFXSME
MEATE - EEEHFAEGI AR E B A
HBHEIEERBAR - ZEER_FT—RX
FHAZ+EBBE -
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 #Z —ZE— X "F+tA=+—HItFE

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

The unlisted equity securities are issued by a private entity
incorporated in Taiwan. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of each reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimate is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably. The directors of the
Company had reviewed the carrying amounts of the unlisted
equity securities, accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$11,610,000 (2015: HK$11,610,000) had been
recognised in prior years in light of the operating loss of
investee and the market conditions.

Included in available-for-sale financial assets are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate.

24. MEHEEMEE (@)

e -

(c)

(&)
FEETRAESBESEEMAZALA
BT - ZEFLFNEERE PRLK

AR ERTE - WIHRZSEHRENESE
@$ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁv$®7§$ RAH
AP EEEARMGE - ARRIEFES
%#Lmk$ EEHEEE  WENEE
HEREEALEBRRMSGMRN  RBEF
EHERZ5HRERE411,610,0008 (=
T—A4F 1 11,610,000587T) °

AfthESREERFE TIAEREEE
B EE AN EEIENESHE -

2016 2015
—RE —T—hHF
‘000 ‘000
T T
NTD Fatk 98,156 75,369
25. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 25. BFREEIMKRE
Held-to-maturity investments comprise: FEZIPREBRE
2016 2015
—NE —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FBT
Unlisted debt securities I ETERBES
— Fixed-rate — EERx - 43,442
Notes: Kzt
(@)  The fixed-rate unlisted debt securities carry interest at 3% per @ EEAEIEEHEREFIEIENFRE
annum and have been matured in July 2016. TR AEEFER T "FL AT -
(b)  Included in held-to-maturity investments are the following b) HEZIHREBETIINEEEHER

amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate.

MINEE B AN BB FIER 5 o

2016 2015

—~E —E-RF

‘000 ‘000

FTx P

RMB AR# - 35,034
RFEEBEERARAR 175
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26. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 26. R—HSELENER

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FET

Unlisted shares, at cost EEMRG - EREAE - 6,808
Share of post-acquisition results and DU RS S E R E R

exchange reserves - (5,008)

- 1,800

Impairment loss recognised E R ERE - (1,800)

Carrying amounts FREE - =

At 31 July 2016 and 2015, the Group had interest in the

following significant joint venture:

Form of
Class of business
Name of company sharesheld  structure
RAER FERAER  FHREEL

Ocean Genius Group Limited ~ Ordinary
Ocean Genius Group Limited LRk FEA AL

Note: Ocean Genius Group Limited was deregistered on

September 2015.

176 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Incorporated  Hong Kong

Nominal value of

R-TE—ANER-_FT-—AF+tA=+—H8"
ARBERUATEESE P EE R -

Proportion of nominal

issued and fully paid  value of issued capital
share capital

BRORARRE
W

HK$10,83,000
10,836,000/ 7

25

held by the Group Principal activities
ARERENEERT
RAE B TEEH
2016 2015

Z%-RE I
- 50% Investment holdings
KRR

H#z% © Ocean Genius Group Limited EIA—Z—H
FNAZTRABEER °
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27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

ANELA=4 HIEEE

27. REIELFIMNER

2016 2015

—E—XE —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETMARD - A ANE 4,743 2,503
Share of post-acquisition results and DR & S48 I B

exchange reserves (1,247) (162)

Impairment loss recognised (Note 11) ERRREEE (M 11) (580) (580)

Disposal & - (1,761)

2,916 -

Details of the associates at 31 July 2016 and 2015 are as

follows:

Form of business

Name of company structure
NREH ERRERA
BiOcean Holdings Limited Incorporated
BiOcean Holdings Limited 174
Biomar Industries Sdn Bhd ~ Incorporated
Biomar Industries Sdn Bhd 174

Ta Yang UDE Limited (Note)  Incorporated
NEERERRAR (M) i1
REEFBRREBRAT  Established

(
RERAREBEARAR KU
.

Place of

incorporation/  Registered/paid

operation
R/
ok

Hong Kong

Malaysia
SRER

Samoa

BT

The PRC

e

up capital
/&
RRE

HK$2,500,000
2,500,000 7

MYR400,000
400,000 5%

US$1,010,000
1,010,000 7T

US$1,000,000

1,000,000% 7T

Note: During the year, the Company set up an associate with an
investment cost of approximately HK$3,518,000 (equivalent to
US$454,500). The incorporation date was on 2 December 2015.

R_E—RER_ZT—RAFLtA=+—H
o)/ NCI S = N

Proportion of ownership
interest and voting rights

held by the Group Principal activities
AEESENEREES
RRFELA TEXH
2016 2015
“B-xE  CZZ-1%
49% 49% Investment holdings
REZR
49% 49% Trading of chemistry oil
LEHES
45% - Investment holdings
REZR
45% - Manufacture of silicone rubber
EEYR

Kt R ARRK —MHBE AR - REK
7N %9 53,518,000 7% Tt (48 & 7 454,500 3
L) o MK BBA—T—RF+=_A
—Ho

NAFESEZERBR AR
ZE-RNEFR 177/
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27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 27.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, SiTY Silcum & Ta Yang
International GmbH (“SiTY") was the only material associate
of the Group for the period up to its disposal on 23 January
2015. Summarised financial information of the Group's
material associate is set out below, which represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

REZEATMHER 2)

hE R RN E R Mg SRR AR
FEARR e ARREFRAR BE_ZT—1
F—AZ+=BHERHAM - SITY Silcum
& Ta Yang International GmbH ([SiTY]) %
REER-FBAME QT o NEHE AR
ERRNMBERBEEIIN X - BlZ
Bt N AR REB BN B R EEREN
R APIRE S -

2015

— T

HK$'000

T

Current assets MENE -
Non-current assets FREBEE -
Current liabilities mENEE -
Net assets BEFAE -
Revenue Wz 4,337
Loss for the year FAEE (336)
Other comprehensive income for the year £ RE b2 U A 33
Total comprehensive expense for the year 4 A2 R X 448 (303)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented above to the carrying amount of the interest in
SiTY is as follows:

EX 2508 E R E R SITY # s R E
EMHRMT

2015

—T—hfF

HK$'000

FHETT

Net assets of SiTY SITY & EH#E -

Proportion of the Group's ownership REERSITY R

interest in SITY HE #2 H9 Eb A5 -

Carrying amount of the Group's ANEER SITY iR NREE

interest in SITY

178 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

On 23 January 2015, the Group disposed all of its 50% equity
interest in SiTY to another significant shareholder of SiTY, an
independent third party, at a consideration of EUR100,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$900,000). The loss on
disposal has been recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(M E

Consideration
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in SiTY

REBR SITY Frig s r AR (E

27. RBELTIMER (@)

R-ZZE—AFE—A=-+=B ~X&£EM
STYWSIIN—BEERR(ABIE=F)
HEHEMNSITYH 2 EE50% I Az - R fE
/%100,000 X 7T (78 25 72 #9 900,000 % 7T ) ©
ERBEmPREIANLEBERNT

2015
—ET—hF
HK$'000
T

900
(1,761)

Loss on disposal of an associate

& — B R R R E TR

(861)

The financial information and carrying amount, in aggregate,
of the Group's interests in associates, that are not individually
material and are accounted for using the equity method are
set out below:

The Group's share of loss AEBEDLEIE

The Group's share of other comprehensive KN&EES(hEMEERY
expense

The Group's share of total comprehensive ZR&EE 5 (L& H R 4258
expense

Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's 7ZN£2 @R JE & KB & 2 7]
interests in immaterial associates ERNAREE

AEBENMER T E L TEABRAERE
ABR OB R O 1 o B BE AR B 1S5 B R %
FREE#HIIOT

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
507 300

95 87

602 387
2,916 =

The directors of the Company reviewed the carrying amount
in the equity interest of the associates as at 31 July 2015 and
2016. In view of the recurring operating losses of associates,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
recoverable amount is less than its respective carrying
amount, accordingly accumulated impairment loss of
HK$580,000 (2015: HK$580,000) was recognised in prior years.

RAAREER_ZT—HFR T —RFL
A=1T—HRHNE L RARNRAERDN
FRE(E - BB R RISSRHBLLEE -
ARABEFR/AWESFEREZEH
REE AMERNBEFERERZME
/548 580,000 7 7T (==& — A £F : 580,000
)

RNFESEEZERBERAR

e LY/
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28.

29.

30.

180

4

DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE 28. WiELtERENERE
RIGHTS
The deposits of approximately IDR21,938,000,000 (equivalent #921,938,000,000 EN/E & (FHE 7247 12,066,000
to approximately HK$12,066,000) (2015: IDR21,938,000,000 BI0) (ZZ— A © 21,938,000,000E0E /& (18
(equivalent to approximately HK$13,163,000)) were paid by BN #13,163000/8 7)) iR & AN EE
the Group to an independent third party for acquisition of —HRBE = RIEREE S R EE
pieces of land located in Indonesia. A revised agreement was R L o IR HERN =T —"F/\A—H
signed on 1 August 2016. The acquisition is expected to By - AHKREEN T —tF A5
complete in January 2017. The deposits are interest-free and ZERE RS TEER -
unsecured.
DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTIES 29. Izf§¥¥mix®
The deposits of RMB35,749,000 (equivalent to approximately REEGKECNFEERE=5m =10
HK$41,469,000) were paid by the Group to an independent DREERRKEERENMNEREEES
third party for acquisition of four hotel buildings located in T — 2B 8 =% e AR 35,749,000
Sanya Yalong Bay National Resort District, Sanya City, Hainan TL(AEE R 441,469,000 7T ) - ZFHE &
Province, PRC. The deposits are interest-free and unsecured. REBRERR - BHKEEN _T—+
The acquisition is expected to be completed before FE+— AR -
November 2017.
INVENTORIES 30. ¥R
2016 2015
—E-AF TR
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T
Raw materials R HE 13,356 26,749
Work-in-progress TR 7,526 9,722
Finished goods R 8,927 25,701
29,809 62,172
During the year ended 31 July 2016, there has been an REZEZT—"FtA=+—"HIEFE "

increase in net realisable values of raw materials and finished
goods since the inventories were sold with prices higher than
their carrying amounts. Reversal of allowance for inventories
of approximately HK$5,221,000 (2015: HK$6,905,000) has been
recognised for the year ended 31 July 2016.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31. BB BERE R MEKRREA

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Trade and bills receivables FEMWE 5 8RR B R 4%
— from third parties —EWE=F 98,234 131,750
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B MEWE = THERE SRR
recognised in respect of trade and ENE BERHN RERE
bills receivables from third parties (1,748) (947)
96,486 130,803
Deposits and prepayments e RIERNFIE 7,555 14,762
Other receivables (Note) H W R (ffaE) 6,973 5,365
111,014 150,930

Note: As at 31 July 2016, the carrying amount of other receivables
has been netted off with accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$2,594,000 (2015: HK$3,710,000). The amount
impaired relates to value-added tax receivables and
miscellaneous other receivables. The directors of the Company
assessed the recoverability of these other receivables is remote
and impairment loss has been recognised accordingly. During
the year, the Group recognised a reversal of impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,116,000 (2015: nil) relates to the recovery
of other receivables.

The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods
ranging from 30 to 135 days which are subject to periodic
review by the management.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills
receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition date.

Bt - R—ZE—ARELA=1+—0 HtEKRX
BENEAEC BRI REBED
2,594,0007% 7T (—Z — F4F : 3,710,000/
TL) © LA & 5 EE R O E R R H (b RETE
MEWIBERRE - AR R EETEWE
i At EGRIER AT BRI s - L E R
RREEE -  ANFE - AEERERBEE
BAlEEmERRENREBED
1,116,0008 T (ZZE—R4F : &) o

REEW R A SRR A EAE AR -

AEE—RAETEXFPNTF0HZE135H
MNEEH mMEEREBeEHRTEBEE
gq °

RBERR - MBEREREBROERE S
ERRRRERZEERR(EAEZENHK
SR B8 R DM 25T

2016 2015

ZE-ARF A

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

0-90 days 0ZE90H 82,240 99,786
91 days to 1 year NBE—F 14,246 31,004
Over 1 year to 2 years — U EEMF - 13
96,486 130,803

K BB ERA
B L
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31.

182

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

31. BB BERE R MEKRRE (&)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade FEWE SRR RRBEESEUOT
receivables is as follows:
2016 2015
—B-AEF —T—AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
At 1 August KRNAA—H 947 2,092
Exchange realignment PE 3 FH = (93) 1
Impairment loss recognised (Note 14) EERBEEE (Kt 14) 1,059 560
Reversal of impairment loss recognised [0l 2 fE 2RI (E 518 (K15 14)

(Note 14) - (202)
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries & M B8 A R o] (165) -
Amounts written off as uncollectible ESRNEIN N dE ok €0 ] - (804)
At 31 July ntA=+—H 1,748 947

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts recognised are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of approximately HK$1,748,000 (2015: HK$947,000).
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to
customers that are in financial difficulty or of poor credit
history. During the year ended 31 July 2016, write-off of trade
receivables amounting to approximately HK$4,877,000 (2015:
nil) has been recognised.

At 31 July 2016 and 2015, the analysis of trade and bills
receivables that are past due but not impaired are as follows:

Total

st
HK$'000
THET

31 July 2016 —E-RFtHA=t—H 96,486
37 July 2015 “Z-hftH=1—H 130,803

EERARKBEERIREHEEEL1,748,000
BT (ZZE—RF ¢ 947,000 7T) AT
BB FEUE 5 8RR - B E 5 E FE W RUE
FTEEEMHFRREX EELHETIRNR
FEE -MREBE-_ZT— X E+tA=+—H
HFE EEABRKESZEREAMELNS
4,877,000/8TC (Z T —H4F : ) o

R-E—AREFEF_FT—HFEA=1+—8 "
B HR I ERE R W E 5 BR 3 K% B UK

SENDOT
Past due but not impaired
S EYEREE
Neither past Over 90 days
due nor Less than but less than 1
impaired 90 days year
3 4% 360 3R 90 H M £
TR RE D90 H BIR—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
84,653 10,050 1,783
102,375 21,846 6,582

Trade and bills receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
is no recent history of default.

Trade and bills receivables that are past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track payment record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no allowance for
doubtful debts is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

b 4 780 5 71 428 Ok (6 B B W2 5 AR R % B LR
SRV EEREHENEEELERH

£ 781 B8 30 SR (B #O B M E 5 AR SR e JE
RIRENEEZ 2B RN RSN B
BEFPAM - - REBEERLR ANEEEER
W EEAE B R AARRDBAR AR AR
WEE EREBANZ S AMREDRIRRE
=



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AR

SN pGETE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

31.

32.

33.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 31. ERESRERREMERRIE 2
Included in trade and other receivables are the following FEUS'E 5 AR 50 B2 H th FE UK IB B 15 T 51 A
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional HEEEEENNEEE AN EETIE
currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate: &R
2016 2015
—E-AF “F-hF
‘000 ‘000
T T
Us$ =S 7.721 10,952
NTD etk 9,745 6,015
EUR BT 264 338
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO AN ASSOCIATE/A  32. Bly 'EBfi—MBEAF —M&
JOINT VENTURE ELEREA
The amounts due from/to a joint venture and an associate are FEW N —MAEhER—MBEAR
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. IR R - R R RIRERER -
HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 33. HFEHERR
2016 2015
—E—XE —T—RHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Equity securities at quoted market prices &7 % (R THIHHME)
— listed in Hong Kong —REABLT 1,648 4,172
— listed outside Hong Kong — RBEBIBEINETH 2,020 4,948
3,668 9,120

Included in held-for-trading investments are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate:

jiir
3 m

£
s

BREBRTINEEEEERDY
PSR B DI (B R 288 -

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—RE

‘000 ‘000

T Tt

NTD =k 8,082 19,031
NAEEEERERAA

—T—NEEH
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34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments fTEEmI A
Current liabilities mBAE

— Currency structured forward
contracts

— BN EBILERS

#

. TESmMTR
2016 2015
—nE —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
11,753 17,017

The total notional principal amounts of the outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

RREHER  AFRINERBANNEE
ARNEMBEWT

2016 2015

—RE —T—AF

US$’'000 US$'000

FEx FE=1

Sell US$ for RMB HEEZTHRIRAREK 2,163 82,007
At 31 July 2016 and 2015, the fair values of currency structured RZZE—RFRZZE-—RFtA=+—8"
forward contracts were determined based on the estimated ERARERBENNRAFETIRES

fair value provided by BMI.

Included in derivative financial liabilities are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate:

FBMIREM A A HEREE -

TELRABERRETINEEEEERDY
WEERB AN ERIEN SR

2016 2015

—NE —E—RF

‘000 ‘000

T Tt

US$ e 1,519 2,199
184 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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34. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

The major terms of the derivative financial instruments as at
31 July 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

Notional amount 1

EHEHE

US$1,000,000

1,000,0003& 7T

US$1,000,000

1,000,0003& 7T

US$1,000,000

1,000,0003& 7T

US$500,000

500,000 7T

Notional amount 2

ZxeH2

US$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

US$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

US$2,000,000

2,000,000 7T

US$1,000,000

1,000,000 7T

Forward rate

RHER
RMB6.205/US$ or

RMB6.17/US$

ARKE6.2057TT,/ =TT,

ARE6ITTT/ET

RMB6.225/US$

ARME6.205T /ETT

RMB6.1/US$

AR 1T,/ ET

RMB6.111/US$ or
RMB6.05/US$

AR 6111 7T,/ F T
AR¥E6057T,/ETT

3

4. TEEMT R (#)

JiN

ANZE—RERZ
P

-z
ASMTANE

Settlement date

RERH

Specified date in each
month between

18 June 2015 to

16 June 2017
R=ZZ—RF~A+/\AR
EE S AV AN =
2 EEGAREERH

Specified date in each
month between

29 April 2015 to

27 April 2017
R-Z—RFMA
—thHE-Z—+F
WAZ++AZHEAEAM
Y€ B H

Specified date in each
month between

4 March 2014 to

2 February 2016
RZZE—NE=ANAZE
“E-RNE-A-RAZE
FHOETERH

Specified date in each
month between

10 February 2014 to

11 January 2016
R-F-ME_A+AHE
BN R =]
28 ANEE RS

F-AELA=T—H -

R

=

Note
B &

This contract is
outstanding as at

31 July 2015 and
2016

RZZ-hEK
—E-A"5tH
=+—B  Zatihk
TE

This contract is
outstanding as at

31 July 2015 and
2016

RZZ-hFEK
—ZT-RFtH
=+—B  Zatihk
TE

This contract is
outstanding as at
31 July 2015

RZE—HF+A
=+—8 ' ZAHNE
e

This contract is
outstanding as at
31 July 2015

RZE—HF+A
=+—8 ' ZAHE
g

NFEEEZERARAR
ZE-RNEFR 185/
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35. STRUCTURED DEPOSITS WITH BANKS 35. BWERTER
The structured deposits with banks are placed with banks in HEBIERITERFRN R B RIT - R
the PRC and they are designated as financial assets at FVTPL SHERBIETE AN EY BRI EBRA
at initial recognition. At the end of the reporting period, the EENSRMEE NI|MEHR - SHEER
structured deposits with banks are stated at fair value based TERREASFARREZHERATE
on the valuation provided by respective counterparties. FIER o A FEFIBHNHIES o
Details of the fair value are set out in Note 8.
36. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK 36. MHIMITHER RITHEBRREL
BALANCES AND CASH
Short-term bank deposits EHRITERK
Short-term bank deposits with original maturities of more FREHEA=EA N EEHRRITFERIR
than three months carry interest at fixed rates ranging from NF215EES10E(ZFE—HF : 205F
2.15% to 5.10% (2015: 2.05% to 7.00%) per annum. Z7.00FE)NEEFFEFTR -
At 31 July 2016, conversion of the Group'’s short-term bank MNZZT—ANEtA=1+—8 BEEBEMN
deposits denominated in RMB amounted to RMB4,000,000 ANREFENEHRRITERARSE
(equivalent to approximately HK$4,640,000) (2015: 4,000,000 7t (48 & 7 494,640,00055 7T ) (=
RMB23,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$28,520,000)) T—FRF : AR¥ 23,000,000 T (F8ERL
into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign 28,520,000/ 7T )) K # & SN 7R 52 Hp B A
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of EERKYREE SERNEEERT
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange PR o
Regulations.
Included in short-term bank deposits are the following RERITEREE T NBREE TR
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional EEEE AN BT ER SR -
currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate:
2016 2015
—EB-AF —ThF
‘000 ‘000
T T
RMB AR - 46,595
Bank balances and cash RITERERE
At 31 July 2016, bank balances and cash comprise of cash MRZZB—RFELA=+—H8 RITEKRK
held by the Group of approximately HK$153,847,000 (2015: ReBEAEEFBAREN TSN ETR
HK$103,165,000) at prevailing market rates. The maturities of A IE & 49 153,847,000 7 ( ZE — A F -
bank balances are within three months. 103,165,000/ 7T) ° % FRITHBN=MEH
RE|HR o
Bank balances and bank deposits with maturities within three =18 A A 2 B SR 1T 48 8k MR 1T 17 3R
months carry interest at average market rates of 0.99% (2015: 0ONE(ZZE—R%F :079F) TS
0.79%) per annum. FREGHR o
186 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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36. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH (Continued)

Bank balances and cash (Continued)

At 31 July 2016, conversion of the Group's bank balances and
cash denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB42,594,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$49,409,000)
(2015: RMB57,363,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$71,131,000)) into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the relevant group entity to which they relate:

us$ VI
EUR BT
JPY HIE
NTD ek
RMB AR

36. EHIBRTTHR BITHERRAS

(%)

RITHEBRRIRS (#)
RZZE—RNELA=1+—R0 EXxE=FI
AREAENFRITEGRESHARE
42,594,000 7T (F8E 7 4949,409,00078 7T ) (=
T—AF : AR¥57,363,0007T (FBERL
71,131,000/ 7T ) ) .32 A& SN EE 78 5 B AN
BTG RAETE « SERMESERTE
FrBR °

RITERRASBRETIINEREEER
IR EE UM ERIIEN SR

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—AfF
‘000 ‘000

Fr FIT
4,087 2,362

121 73

230 1,551
4,010 19,674
35,709 2,384

K BB ERA
B LY
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37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 37. EFREZERRREMEMNSRE
2016 2015
—RE —E—RE
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Trade and bills payables B E ZERR L EMN R 27,734 31,952
Accrued expenses e 31,725 39,150
Other payables (Note) H b RS 5K (i aE) 1,988 12,698
Other tax payables HpERFIE 7,456 7,442
Deposits received B Wiz & 8,877 6,370
50,046 65,660
77,780 97,612
Note: Included in the amount as at 31 July 2015, approximately M - R=ZZT—hFLtA=1T—HHEBEFR ' &

RMB5,685,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,050,000)
represents part of consideration received from an independent
third party for disposal of certain property, plant and
equipment. In August 2015, the buyer terminated the sales
transaction and the Group refunded the received deposit in full
amount accordingly.

An aged analysis of trade and bills payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AR 5,685,000 7T (2 477,050,000 7
TL) BB EE TYWE « BE RS EKE
—BBUE=FNHLNRE -R=F—H
FNA  ZEBEFRIEZBALERS A%
B A mE2ERE B KIES -

RBEHR  BNEZEARENRER
HZAHRRESIT2700

2016 2015

—RE —ZET—RHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHTT

Within 1 month or on demand — @ AR EKEE 11,238 15,144

More than 1 month but less than 3 months  —{& A FHELR=1EA 13,551 13,567
More than 3 months but less than =EAAREBDR+={EA

12 months 1,463 1,473

More than 12 months +@AMUE 1,482 1,768

27,734 31,952

The average credit period on purchases of goods is ranging
from 30 to 90 days. The Group has financial risk management
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within
the credit timeframe.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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37. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Included in trade and other payables are the following
amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional

37. B RBEREHMEMNKRE @)

FE A 58 5 B 3 e L b JE A5 SR IR B 48 T B A
HEEEERNDEERUINEEE

currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate: &R

2016 2015

—E—XRE —E—HF

‘000 ‘000

T Tt

US$ ETT 559 1,406
RMB AR - 1,520
NTD ek 150 =

38. PROVISION FOR RESTRUCTURING 38. EHiR(R

HK$'000

TET

At 1 August 2014 RZZ—mMENA—HB 7,51
Provision charged during the year F S 15,044
Paid during the year RERXL (22,555)

At 31 July 2015, 1 August 2015 and 31 July 2016

R=E—RHAF+tA=+—8"

—F-HE\A-AR=F-—AE
+tA=+—H —

The restructuring provision refers to the restructuring plan
launched during the year ended 31 July 2014. The provision
was recognised when the Group had developed a detailed
formal plan for the restructuring and had raised a valid
expectation in those affected that it will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing
its main features to those affected by it. The restructuring
provision includes the direct expenditures arising from lay off
of redundant staff. The restructuring plan was completed
during the year ended 31 July 2015.

EARREEE_TNOFLtA=1T—8H
IFFEAMRERNEATE - BRABEEB
RAKEREANEFELAGE B3
BEMETAHEHMRZEA LR E
MEBRFMERSHAEBRETEMRE
ERRTAMRER - EARB BRI
BEMEANERMAX - SHEFIERNEE
“E-hAFEA=T—HIEFEREK -

K BB ERA
e LY/
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39.
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SECURED BANK BORROWINGS

39. FEMMITER

2016 2015

—nE —T—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FET

Carrying amount repayable on demand & ZEK(EEMNRMEIE 33,282 33,282
As at 31 July 2016 and 2015, the Group borrowed two secured RZZE—R"ER=ZT-—RFtA=+—H"

bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
amounting to US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,740,000), and US$3,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$25,542,000) respectively. These borrowings
carry variable interest rate at 1.75% over Hong Kong Inter-
bank Offered Rate/London Inter-bank Offered Rate or the
Lender's Cost of Funds per annum, whichever is higher and
are repayable on demand. The effective interest rate on the
borrowings is 2.09% (2015: 1.94%) per annum. During the year
ended 31 July 2015, a borrowing of US$1,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$12,384,000) (2016: nil) has been settled.

As at 31 July 2016, land and buildings located in Hong Kong
under medium-term leases with carrying value of
approximately HK$7,875,000 (2015: HK$8,110,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

Included in secured bank borrowings are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity to which they relate:

US$ X7

AEBEAMERBIREREEKINE
HIFIRITIEF - © %5 541,000,000 7T
(FEE R 497,740,0007% 7T ) & 3,300,000 % 7T
(FHE M 4925,542,00078 70 ) ° ZEE KR
EBRITRERE MRBERITRZERE M
175 BRI 2B FF L REANE SRA (BA
BEEAE)HE  WERENREE - ER
NEREMRE209E(ZT—HF :1.94
B) HE-_ZT—HFELA=+—HILHF
E 'LéOOOOO%EiE(*HNAﬁ“%712384000?5
T (ZE—RF : D)WERELE -

R-E—RELA=+—8B EEEY
7,875,000 7T ( — = — 7 £ : 8,110,000/5
T NRBBIRETBRREERFN L RIE
FEFHER  EAAEEMERRITEER
HPEIR o

EEMRTERBETIINEREEER
IR EE UM ERIIEN SR

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
‘000 ‘000

Tt Tz
4,300 4,300

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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40. SHARE CAPITAL 40. B&x
Authorised and issued share capital EEREBITRA
Number of shares Share capital
R EE [
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZBE-RXE —T-RF ZB-XF "T-hF
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FH& FTERT FAET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each  BMREE0.1 B THEER
Authorised: ERE
At beginning and end of the year RFEH] K F K 20,000,000 20,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHR
At 1T August RAA—H 778,923 778,541 77,892 77,854
Issue of shares under the RBEARA B R 2
Company'’s share option BIIRMG
schemes 5,805 382 581 38
At 31 July REtA=+—AH 784,728 778,923 78,473 77,892

Note: During the year ended 31 July 2016, options were exercised to
subscribe for 5,805,000 (2015: 382,000) shares in the Company
at a consideration of approximately HK$5,797,000 (2015:
HK$379,000) of which approximately HK$581,000 (2015:
HK$38,000) was credited to share capital, approximately
HK$1,984,000 (2015: HK$127,000) was debited to the share
options reserve and the balance of approximately
HK$7,200,000 (2015: HK$468,000) was credited to the share
premium.

Hiat - BE_ZT—A"FtA=+—HLEE 7
2 885,805,000 ( = ZF — A 4 : 382,000
f&%) AR B D B BB AR EIE T - REBEX
/55,797,000 7T ( — & — 7 £ : 379,000

BT

& 4)581,0008L(ZE—RF :

38,0007 7T) E T AR » %71,984,000 7%
T(ZZT—H%E : 127,000 7T) B R B
AP B -+ R 35K47,200,0007%8 T (=
T— A : 468,000/ 7T ) BIst AR EE

F o

RNFESEEZERBERAR

—T—AFER
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41.

192

y

DEFERRED INCOME 41. BIEWA
2016 2015
—E—XF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
At the beginning of the reporting period A& 247 3,946 3,971
Exchange realignment PE W FH = (254) =
Credited to profit or loss (Note 9) st A8z (ffaE9) (24) (25)
At the end of the reporting period RIBEFR 3,668 3,946

In 2009, the Group received a government grant (“Grant A”)
of approximately HK$1,049,000 from 7T A 48 75 7 2 [ B 12
Z B for the acquisition of prepaid lease payments. The
amount is recognised as other operating income over the
unexpired lease term of prepaid lease payments. During the
year ended 31 July 2016, deferred income of approximately
HK$24,000 (2015: HK$25,000) has been recognised for Grant
A in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 July 2013, the Group received a
government grant (“Grant B") of RMB2,400,000 or equivalent
to approximately HK$2,962,000 from Rzem B2 iTH for
the development of high resolution flexible circuit board
technology. The amount will be recognised as other
operating income upon the completion of patents registration
of such technology. No deferred income has been recognised
for Grant B in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for

the year ended 31 July 2016 (2015: nil).

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

R-ZZETNE  AEERBAEMSHEER
BREHTANEEREREEZE SR
THBFHEBE ([H#BhEH 1) 491,049,000
BIL 2 BN BNAEREN KRR RA
HAERAEMEERA - REBEE=Z
—A~"FtA=+—HLEE BEREEE
7 N Bh & PR R R iR B IR A 49 24,000
BT (ZZE—RF : 25000#7T) °

REBEE-_T—=ZFtA=Z+—HILEFE "
AEERERD D PHETEE KRB
BREMRERENHLS T AR 2,400,000
7 (BLHEE T 4 2,962,000 7 7T ) BY B 76 B
([P ]) - RERZERIMAEF
Bk ERASBEBERBEMEEIRA -
HE-_ZT—RFtA=+—"HILEE" I
B|NGREABRRARAE S L BERIELER
ANZZE—RF &) -
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42. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities

42, BRERAAR

AEERBEFECERNEZELHRE

recognised and movements thereof during the current and (BE)BEREZHNT :
prior years:
Deferred
Unrealised Change in income
(profits) loss ~ Accelerated Estimated  fair value of arising from
on tax tax investment  government
inventories  depreciation losses properties grants Total
B8
FENASR MEBIE fhithiE  RENEN EEW
(M) B8 g BB ATESD BEEWA st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL FHET THT THEL THL
At 1 August 2014 RZZ-mEN\A—H 420 132 (132) 1636 (992) 1,064
Exchange realignment XA ) - = (16) = 22)
Charged (credited) to WEZME GEA)
profit or loss (Note 13) (His#13) 484 132 (132) (561) 6 7
Charged to other REM2E KRR
comprehensive income - - - 3,103 - 3,103
At 31 July 2015 RZZ-RFtA=1-H 898 264 (264) 4162 (986) 4,074
Exchange realignment 0 i s ) = = (466) 63 412)
(Credited) charged to ER (GEA) 11k
profit or loss (Note 13) (Hiz£13) (628) 2 ) (150) 6 (772)
Charged to other REME ERES
comprehensive income nk = = = 5926 = 5,926
At 31 July 2016 RZZ-~EtA=1+-H 261 266 (266) 9472 917) 8816

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of temporary differences attributable to the profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$4,680,000 (2015: HK$5,769,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

BEBECEMEHE  PEMNBRARHE-Z
TN\F— A —BRRARATHGFE R AR
BHMENE - REBIWEREE VT
HMEPHRPBENE QR EFATE S
A= 58494,680,000/8 L ( —E—F4F ¢
5,769,000 7% 7T ) T IRIEIE R IE# S - RE
A 7 E8 [B) B S 2R Il 48 B T B M 2 EE A0 RS
M BZSERMEEZBBTIRAERA R
A o

K WA A
N B\
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42,

43.

194

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$390,291,000 (2015:
HK$357,349,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$1,615,000 (2015: HK$1,603,000) of such
loss. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the remaining losses of approximately HK$388,676,000 (2015:
HK$355,746,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. At 31 July 2016, approximately HK$54,989,000,
HK$137,690,000, HK$43,683,000 and HK$21,600,000 (2015:
HK$49,119,000, HK$56,653,000, HK$137,996,000 and
HK$45,537,000) included in the above unused tax losses will
expire after the year of assessment of 2017, 2018, 2019 and
2020 respectively. Other estimated tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

As at 31 July 2015 and 2016, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to deductible temporary differences
derived from property, plant and equipment and trade and
other receivables as it is not probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed on 16
May 2007, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Option Scheme”) and a Post-IPO share
option scheme (the "Post-IPO Option Scheme”) whereby the
directors and eligible employees of the Group were given the
rights to subscribe for shares in the Company subject to the
terms and conditions stipulated in two schemes.

During the year, the shareholder made a mandatory
unconditional cash offer for all the issued shares and to cancel
all outstanding options on 29 February 2016. The offer started
on 29 February 2016 and closed on 27 April 2016.

TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

42.

43.

RIERBERR (4

RFEBRR AEBESNADHARE
& 18 47390,291,0008 T(Z & — & ¢ :
357,349,000 7T) + Al ¥ SH R 2B Al ©
A RAEEA)1,6150008 T (—F— 3i¢
1,603,000/ 70 ) IERIEERIBEE - AR
ReeEar R R &M= MERBKT
/&5 18 49388,676,000/8 ;L ( — T — F 4 ¢
355,746,000 7 70 ) ERIEEFRIEEE - N =
TE—RNFELA=+—0 Ll EASHR
TA JE5 48 EL 7R 454,989,000 7T ~ 137,690,000
Y& T+ 43,683,000/ 7T K& 21,600,000 70 (=
T — F4F 1 49,119,000 JT * 56,653,000
JC ~ 137,996,000% 7T & 45,537,0007% 7T )
“EIJ%HEA:?*JCE CZE-)N\F - ZE
—NERZE_EFIAHFERIN - &
i FT A TE RS 18 AT R HR S 82 o

R=F-—AFF=—F-NFLtHA=1+—8"
RN K AT BE /G 8 SR A5 g A1) RJ B AR B R 4
B R IEERRIEE R W ERYE - W
5 e 5% g DA B e WA B8 5 iR ook I L At e Wk
TR EE AE HY R HIRL E B 1 BRI IE B IR

RERR4ERTE
BER-ZEZ+FAA+HBBHEE
EERZER  ARRHEMNERAREESH
FERREETEI([ B R AR SR EREE])
kERAREEEERESESI(TERARA
BERBRRESE] Bt FAEENE
BEUAREGEREBERAREARRT RN
BRI - MR M EET BIET A A KR R
IREFRR -

FA - Hﬁ%?ﬁ%*ﬁa%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ{’ﬁﬁj%ﬁ%lﬂ'&
BEERSELN IR ZT— X F_HA
ZHNBEEEMEERITEERE - 24
RZE—RNFE-_A-+tHhBRBER=-Z
—RNEMA-Zt++HER -
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 43. MEBRHEEE(2)

At 31 July 2016, the total number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under
the schemes was nil (2015: 11,570,000), representing nil (2015:
1.49%) of the shares in the Company in issue at that date. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the two schemes is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The number of shares issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company'’s share.

MZZ—XRNELtA=1+—8 Z5#HET
ER LA M ARITEBRENS KR D B2
AE(ZZT—A%F : 11,570,000/%) - HHER
AABZBERTRNMT(ZZE—AF:
1.49%) ° TEAREB AR A IR F kit
AT - ZERTE T A] TR LB RERTS
NN 42 BN 15 B B AN A B (A B FE Y
EEITRM10% - ERMEAAGRRE
EHERT REMFEREMNALTELER
Al iR RO BB AR AE P8 MM B B 1T IR 1D X
BB RBBAR GRS D ZET’RD
1% MEZREIBILIERITESELMN
BERHE W BB AR AR AR 0.1% K [BER B
5,000,000/ 87T * MAEMEARAGREEL
HEAE ©

TEERANARESERE - A2 ER A
BEERE) () AR ERD PR E B
ME: (RORERR L BT AEE %
HEFHWTHE  Ri)ARBRNDOEE

K EEERERAT
SEAEER O\
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

196
4

Pre-IPO Option Scheme

G

IRAFIEEER
Rt &l

Post-IPO Option

G

Scheme 1 — Lot 1
IR AR ERBRE
FrE—— it

Post-IPO Option

G

Scheme 1 — Lot 2
IR AR ERBRE
8l ——F Tt

Post-IPO Option

G

Scheme 2 — Lot 1
IR AR ERBRE
HE=-—5—#t

Post-IPO Option

G

Scheme 2 — Lot 2
IR AR ERBIRE
sE=-—F 48

TA YANG GROUP HOL|
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Date of grant
R AH

16 May 2007

—ETLF
A A+NH
24 December 2009

—ETNEF
+=—A=+m\A

24 December 2009

—ETNEF
+=—A=+m\A

11 January 2011

—E——%F

—A+—#
11 January 2011

—E——%F

—A+-A

DINGS LIMITED

Vesting period
BES

One to five years
commencing from
8 June 2007
H-ZTAF
NANBREET
1EE5F

0.5 year

0.5%F

1 year

14

0.5 year

0.5%F

1 year

14

43. MEBRIEETE(2)

FEERRIBEAENFBIT -

Exercise period

1TES

8 June 2008 to 15 May 2017

—“EENFANBE
—ET—t+tFRA+THA

24 June 2010 to

23 December 2019
—E-EFA-F+mHE=E
—E-hF+ZA=+=H

24 December 2010 to

23 December 2019
—FFTFTZAZtHmAZR
—E-NF+ZA=+=H

11 July 2011 to

10 January 2021
—E——FtHA+—HE
—F-_—%—AtH

11 January 2012 to

10 January 2021
—F-ZF-AT—HE
—F—_—%—A+H

Exercise price

TEE

HK$2.20

2.2078 7T

HK$0.96

0.967 7T

HK$0.96

0.967 7T

HK$1.05

1.05/87T

HK$1.05

1.05/87T



43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

43.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s
share options held by directors and employees during the
year:

For the year ended 31 July 2016
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MRz et ® (o)

TREBHEERERFANARTBB
R E R %

BE-_ZE-X"FLtA=t—HLEE

Outstanding Exercised Forfeited Cancelled  Outstanding
at 1 August during the during the during the at 31 July
2015 year year year 2016
R-Z2-1F R=B-R%
NA—H tA=1+-H
e RATE FRTE FRRK FREHE e RATE
Pre-IPO Option Scheme  ERARIHE R E
BE 4,025,000 - (160,000) (3,865,000) -
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 E R AR E14M R 1E
— Lot 1 HE-——F-H 1,182,000 (819,000) (5,000) (358,000) -
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 E R AR S48 R 1E
— Lot2 AE-—Fit 3,014,000 (2,475,000) (5,000) (534,000) -
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 # R AR E148 R 1
— Lot 1 HE-—F—Ht 1,674,500 (1,255,500) (93,000) (326,000) -
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 # XA R E14 8 R 1
— Lot2 EZ—FH 1,674,500 (1,255,500) (93,000) (326,000) -
11,570,000 (5,805,000) (356,000) (5,409,000) -
Exercisable at the end of ~ ATAERITE
the year -
Weighted average exercise J#EFI77{F(E
price HK$1.42 HK$1.00 HK$1.56 HK$1.86 -
RFEREERERBRAA

ZE-RNEFR 197/
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
For the year ended 31 July 2015

43. FERRHEETE (&)
BE-®-HAFtA=t+-ALFE

Outstanding Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
at 1 August during the during the at 31 July
2014 year year 2015
—T—[E 0%
NA—H +A=+—AH
W ARTTE FRITRE FRRK W ARTTE
Pre-IPO Option Scheme BRAFEEAE
PiEst2 5,045,000 - (1,020,000) 4,025,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 EV NG
— Lot 1 B — S 1,545,000 (99,000) (264,000) 1,182,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 1 BAAREERER
— Lot 2 RstEl——F 8 3,759,000 (163,000) (582,000) 3,014,000
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 BAAREERER
— Lot 1 BatE - — 4t 2,144,500 (60,000) (410,000) 1,674,500
Post-IPO Option Scheme 2 BAARAEERER
— Lot 2 BitEl——F 4t 2,144,500 (60,000) (410,000) 1,674,500
14,638,000 (382,000) (2,686,000) 11,570,000
Exercisable at the end of A RERTTE
the year 11,570,000
Weighted average exercise INEFTTRE
price HK$1.41 HK$0.99 HK$1.46 HK$1.42

In respect of the share options exercised during the year
ended 31 July 2016, the weighted average share price at the
dates of exercise is HK$1.29 (2015: HK$1.53).

198/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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44. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTEREST IN 44, EFGEEFRGERTIEE—RN

A SUBSIDIARY WITHOUT CHANGE OF
CONTROL

On 29 May 2015, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a share transfer agreement with a non-
controlling equity holder to acquire 13.4% equity interest in
Harbin Ta Yang, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
with a total consideration of RMB1,520,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,885,000). The acquisition of additional
interest in Harbin Ta Yang has been completed on 31 July
2015. The ownership interest in Harbin Ta Yang of the Group
increased from 86.6% to 100%.

The difference between the fair value of consideration paid
by the Group and the decrease in non-controlling interest
after this transaction amounting to approximately
HK$3,394,000 is recognised by the Group as other reserve.

As at 31 July 2015, the consideration to be paid by the Group
was recognised as other payables and the amount was fully
settled during the year ended 31 July 2016.

PHEATIMEMER

RZZ—AFRAA=+IB A5E—H
2 EM B A R IR R AR UE
RIERBERF (BAEBERNIEZENBAR)
13.4% AR F] R D 8 E s - BR(E
A AR #1,520,000 7T (#8 & 7 471,885,000
BIL) o WIERMEBRE X ENEIMERSER
—T-AFtA=t—HEK - AEER
RRBERNFNEEE#ZBB6.6% AR
100% °

AEEPZANRENRFERR HEE
22 i e 2 A ) 2 BB 4D 3,394,000 TT R AR
SERERSEMHERE o

R-ZZE-—AFtA=1T—B AEBEEH
RERRREMRENRIE - BZFKERE

;Zt:g NFEELA=1T—HIEFERESE

K BB ERA
B LY/
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45. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 45. HERB AT

In November 2015, the Group disposed of its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Fame Well Development Limited and its
subsidiaries, RE==MEIZEEHERAR] and I REMEIEE
S8PR/A 7] at a cash consideration of HK$2,500,000. The net
assets of three companies at the date of disposal are as

RZZE-—AF+—A xEELEAR
% 2 & B 2 7] Fame Well Development
Limited REMBARIR=ZMRIEESE
BRARKRIERENEZESZERAA - ]
& RE/52,500,0008 7T - AHE BB =

follows: HMARIBEFENT :
HK$'000
FH&T
Consideration RE 2,500
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which REEFIENEEREBEDIN
control was lost
Property, plant and equipment W% - WER&RE 26
Inventories FE 243
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 8RR N B At e IR 1,305
Bank balance and cash RITHER LI ® 143
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 8RR B At e A~ 5RIR (810)
Net assets BEFE 907
Release of exchange reserve FRIREE S 59
966
Gain on disposal (Note 9) & s (M et 9) 1,534
HK$'000
FHET
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HEMBARREENBE SR T
subsidiaries
Consideration B 2,500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B RNHERNRERREEEY (143)
Net cash inflow WEmAFEE 2,357

The disposed subsidiaries contributed revenue of
approximately HK$518,000 and net loss of approximately
HK$84,000 to the Group for the year ended 31 July 2016.

During the year, the disposed subsidiaries paid approximately
HK$501,000 net operating cash flows and had no cash flow in
respect of investing activities and financing activities.
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46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

financial statements, the Group entered into the

following transactions with related parties during the 5
year:
Name of Company Nature of transaction
NEBHE REMHE
SiTY (Note i) Sales of rubber keypads
SITY (ff7ti) HEW Bizg
Formosan (Note ii) Dividends received
s (Hatii) AR
United Performance (Note iii) Dividends received
B8 (22 i) AR
REE{EF (Note iv) Sales of rubber keypads
RERF (Hativ) HEW Bizg
Purchase of rubber keypads
BEY RS
Sales of property, plant and
equipment
HEWE - BB LRE
Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group disposed of all its interests in SiTY on 23
January 2015.

Formosan is a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange in which the director, Huang Sheng-Shun, has
control of the Company and is a key management
personnel of Formosan. The director was resigned on 27
April 2016.

United Performance is a company listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange in which the director, Huang Sheng-
Shun, has control of the Company and is a key
management personnel of United Performance. The
director was resigned on 27 April 2016.

Z2{EFis an associate of the Group.

These transactions were carried out at terms determined
and agreed by the Group and the respective related
party.

46. REFX S

(@ B

AWK

SERBEES R

FA AEBEEBETFILATR

st -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

2016 2015
—AE —
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
- 2,031

475 493

64 48

13 -

760 -
215 -

REER-ZT—RFE—A-+=H
HEERNSITY )2 S0k -

iﬂj I %F\D/%u“%xg]ﬁﬁim
MAR BEEEBREGHARQ
ﬁ’ﬁﬂ S EEERAS - Eié?}?
T RNFOAZTtHHEHE -

R —RNAEES X%ﬁﬁiﬁ

HRTE  BEBEEBRITHIAR

ﬁﬂ?vimIEMIEAE° ?§$BA
T NFMHA =+ HEHE -

REBFRAREN —FBE AR -

ZERSNIEBASEES B HE
T EEE RIBE ZIGHHEST o

K RELHAR AT
—=—rarm 20



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE_ZT—~FtA=1+—HILEE

46. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and

46. MEH XS (&)
(b) FEEEASRMH
RER - ARRAEERABERER

other members of key management during the year is B B RIFBAT
as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—hfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Short-term benefits SRR 6,025 5,256
Post-employment benefits B R R 109 120
6,134 5,376

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key
executives is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

ARREBFEREBITERABHFNTY
MEFHEESLE BENALHRR
TS BEMEE

47. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 47. BEKIE
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Capital expenditure contracted for T3 &IERE 48 MK
but not provided for in the PR A SRR BERN
consolidated financial statements BARRES :
in respect of:
— Acquisition of property, plant and — KREBYE - BB LRE
equipment 1,558 1,357
— Acquisition of properties — WEmE 373,217 =
— Acquisition of land use rights — U BE + (s R 4,775 4,775
379,550 6,132
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BTSRRI A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

48. COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES  48. {#EHEXIE

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year is
approximately HK$7,110,000 (2015: HK$2,417,000). The
investment properties are expected to generate rental yield
of 7.9% (2015: 4.4%) on an ongoing basis. The investment
properties held have committed tenants for the next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:

REBERHEA

FAMERS WAL A7,110,0008 (=
T—AF : 2,417,000 7T) - TEARRE W
B ESRT79% (B —FE : 44%) T
COHME - FREMERRFEFHAP
A o

RBERR - AEEER TIIRKKIER
ERIREEPRTA -

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—AfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Within one year —FE R 1,790 1,077
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EENF (HARMEBREEN) 96 =
After five years AFLAE 285 -
2,171 1,077

The Group as lessee AEBER/EEA

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases for its factories, offices and staff quarters. The leases
were negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years, with
the options to renew the leases when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

AEERBEEHEREETHERER
B BWRAERBIBSE - ZSHENLH
BEMNF—=1F  YAGEEERR
ERMAGRREOTENREE - ZSHER
EeFEAEE -

MEREHR - REBIRB A BEEEEH
EAR T BB R ESERE
SRIEAREWT

2016 2015
= —T-h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET

Land and buildings: T BT
Within one year —FE R 1,472 4,619
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERF(BREMEREERN) - 372
1,472 4,991

NFEEEZERARAR
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE_ZT—~FtA=1+—HILEE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. ELFIHMBERAE
THE COMPANY
2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ktat FHT FET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Plant and equipment R R %1 227 -
Investment in a subsidiary R—FEHE R RN E 124,149 104,149
124,376 104,149
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables B fE W kIR 795 174
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULH B A B2k I8 (a) 2,778 641,472
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 17,543 603
21,116 642,249
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables H A FE A FRIA 3,755 2,905
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHT B A B 518 (a) 19,888 342,533
Amount due to a joint venture FEN—RIA & EFIE (a) - 3,104
23,643 348,542
Net current (liabilities) assets mE (AR EEEE (2,527) 293,707
Total assets less current liabilities ~ AELER TS EE 121,849 397,856
Capital and reserves B f# R
Share capital &N 78,473 77,892
Reserves i (b) 43,376 319,964
Total equity TS HARE 121,849 397,856
204 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

4 ANNUAL REPORT 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR BTSRRI A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2016 BZE—_ZT—~F+tA=1+—HILEE

49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 49. EAFTHMBRRAE &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)
(@) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries and a joint () EW EFAHBAEIR—EEE
venture BERIE
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and FAREAEER 2B RIEEKRE
repayable on demand. & o
(b) Reserves (b) fEE
Share Capital
Share options  Accumulated  redemption
premium reserve losses reserve Total
BREEE BRERE RitER  EARERE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TAL TAL TATL TAL TATL
At 1 August 2014 RZZ-MENA-A 633,786 11,692 (320,535) 2420 321,363
Total comprehensive expenses
for the year FREERLEE - - (7,740) = (7,740)
Forfeiture of share options Rk R = 2.275) 2.275 = =
Exercise of share options TEERE 468 (127) = = KA

At 31 July 2015 and 1 August 015 R =F—AE+A=F—H

kZZ-0§/\A-H 634,254 9,290 (326,000) 2420 319,964

Total comprehensive expenses
for the year FRRERYER - = (281,804) = (281,804)
Cancellation of share options ~ FF$RER IE = (6,966) 6,966 = =
Forfeiture of share options UG - (340) 340 = =
Exercise of share options e IRE 7,200 (1,984) - - 5216
At 31 July 2016 RZE-~EtA=1-H 641,454 - (600,498) 2420 43,376

A EE AR AR AT
e
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. EEMBELF
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company at RMEHER ARAFENETEWBE AR
the end of the reporting periods are as follows: BT ¢
Place of
incorporation/ Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary establishment Class of shares held Issued share capital/registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
WEARERE HRRY/ RIS FERGER BRARA/EMEE rRBEERSEE  TERE
2016 2015 2016 215
ZE-RE “3-RfF Z8-xF -T-If
Ta Yang Silicone Rubber Industrial ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Trading of silicone
Company Limited rubber
RAPEBIXARAR B4 ERR 1,000,00057 1,000,000/ 70 100% 0% EEVE
Chief Ocean Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HKS1 HKS$1 100% 100%  Provision of
management
services
WEERAT B TRR 18T 1A 100% 100% sRftEE R
InnoLIMS Global Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$4,000,000 N/A 60% N/A " Investment holdings
ERRRARLT B4 ERR 4,000,007 ER 60% NER RERR
Ta Yang Medical Investment Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$20,000,000 N/A 100% N/A " Investment holdings
Limited ("Ta Yang Medical")
(Note a)
RABRRAERAA e 3l 20,000,000 %7 )il 100% R RERR
([RHER)) (Wita)
Ta Yang Group Limited (Note a) BVI Ordinary shares 11,930,811 shares 11,930,811 shares of 100% 100% ~ Investment holdings
of USS1 each US$1 each
KAEEERAR (Hita) ABRTHE 3l 1M930811RER  11901KRERAE 100% 100% RERR
HE1ZTHRSG 1ETRRA
Top View Investment Holdings BVI Ordinary shares 1 share of US$1 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100% ~ Investment holdings
Limited each
BERAZRARAA ABRTHE 3l 1REE1EH 1B 1% 100% 0% RERE
v i3
Ta Yang Group (Macao Commercial ~ MSAR Ordinary shares 1 share of MOP 1 share of MOP 100% 100% Trading of silicone
Offshore) Limited 100,000 each 100,000 each rubber
ArEE(RPEREERS) RPER EER 1R 100,000 11k 100,000 100% 100% EEYE
BARAR ARBHRG RFBHRE
Dongguan Ta Yang Silicone Rubber ~ The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$86,000,000 HK$86,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Industrial Company Limited silicone rubber
REAFHEERARAT lei BAER 86,000,000 70 86,000,000/ 70 100% 100% BiEYB
Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic The PRC Contributed capital ~ US$38,000,000 15$38,000,000 100% 100% Manufacturing of
Technology Company Limited silicone rubber
ANAFETRIERAA G HAER 38,000,000 %7 38,000,000 70 100% 100% EEYE
206 TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

50. EEMBLT (&)

Place of
incorporation/
Name of subsidiary establishment Class of shares held Issued share capital/registered capital
WEARER AL/ RIS FERGER BRRA/REE
2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-1f
Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber Plastic ~ The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$8,000,000 HK$5,000,000
Industrial Company Limited
RERFBELRARAT e BAEX 8,000,000 5,000,000/ 7%
Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber Plastic ~ The PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$70,000,000 HK$70,000,000
Industrial Company Limited
REAFBERRARAT e BAEX 70,000,000 % 75 70,000000% 70
Bei Liu Jin Gu Electronic The PRC Contributed capital HK$23,000,000 HK$23,000,000
Technology Company Limited
e A FHEERAR e BAEXK 23,000,000% 7 23,000000%7
Harbin Ta Yang (Note b) The PRC Contributed capital RMB30,000,000 RMB30,000,000
REENE (Hifb) e BAEK AR%30,000000% AKX 300000007
RERZETREARAT The PRC Contributed capital ~ RMB5,600,000 N/A
RELETFHRARAT ket BAEXK AR#5,600,0007 Ol
NE (80 RREZER The PRC Contributed capital ~ RMB150,000,000 N/A
BRAR
A (80 BREXER GilET BAEXK AR¥150,00000077  7ER
BARAR
Notes: Bzt -
(@)  Except for Ta Yang Group Limited and Ta Yang Medical, all the (@)
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.
(b)  For the year ended 31 July 2015, the Group acquired 13.4% (b)

equity interest in Harbin Ta Yang from the non-controlling
shareholder. Accordingly, Harbin Ta Yang became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Details are set out in Note 44.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affect

the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

Attributable equity
interest of the Group

AEEEERTER
2016 2015
ZB-xE T-n%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
60% N/A
60% oyl
100% N/A
100% Qi

BAFEEERA R RAFERI

Principal activities

B3 3

Manufacturing of
silicone rubber
HEYE

Manufacturing of
silicone rubber
2EYB

Manufacturing of
silicone rubber

REYE

Inactive
TEex

Manufacturing of
silicone rubber
yEE

Inactive

IEex

E

iR RIE AR RRERS -

BHE_ZT-—AFtA=+—RHILFE &
5 8 7 SE 22 AR A SR UK B 1 VB KU 13.4%
PeAtER - Fit - MEBEANFRAARER
2EMBAT - FFHIEHNHFE4 -

ERINFRARREERRIBEZELAEH
EEREBENAKBENBLRR - ARAE
ERRFAVNEMMBRRENSERRIE
BRIE -

A EBERARAT
T NGFER
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 50. EEMBAT (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other REEHAR - RAFEAMHE QR HARE
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of EYEWTEKN ZEWBARAITHSY
these subsidiaries are inactive or engage in investment EmEESANEREER - ZEMBE AR
holdings. A summary of these subsidiaries are set out as ZHHWT -
follows:
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FEXK FTEEEME MELRHE
2016 2015
= —F—h%F
Inactive BVI 1 2
Tmax RERVES
Indonesia 1 1
ENfe
The PRC - 6
H
Investment holdings BVI 1 1
REER RERVES
Hong Kong 1 1
e
Research and development BVI 1 1
fiff 2% EERZHFS
Trading of silicone rubber The PRC - 1
BEEWER ]
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding P ] 3 25 BA AR o R M8 48 5 A AR e BF )
at the end of both reporting periods or at any time during BEEFTE A R B IR ETNERES °
both years.
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51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 51. RERMEER

Acquisition of four hotel buildings at Sanya
Yalong Bay, the PRC

Pursuant to the Company’s announcement dated 20
June 2016, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire four hotel buildings at
Sanya Yalong Bay, the PRC on 20 June 2016. Based on
the amount of RMB21,500 (equivalent to approximately
HK$25,370) per square meter, the total consideration for
the acquisition of four hotel buildings is
RMB357,488,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$421,836,000), which will be paid by the Group's
internal resources, equity financing and bank
borrowings. The substantial shareholder of the
Company believes it can help the Group's long term
development and can diversify the income stream of the
Group into different business areas. Details are set out
in the circular of the Company dated 12 August 2016.

On 26 August 2016, the Group successfully signed a
bank borrowing agreement and received
RMB238,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$276,080,000) on 9 September 2016 to support the
acquisition.

As at the date of issuance of these consolidated
financial statements, the acquisition has not yet
completed and the Group has not obtained the title of
the four hotel buildings.

Completion of placing of shares

The Company and the placing agent, Zhongtai
International Securities Limited, entered into the placing
agreement on 16 August 2016 pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place up to
86,450,000 placing shares through the placing agent on
a best effort basis, at a price of HK$1.31 per placing
share to not less than six placees who and whose
ultimate beneficial owners are independent third
parties.

The completion date of the placing took place on 25
August 2016. Details are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 16 August 2016 and 25 August
2016.

U B R BR] = o0 o0 BE E 1Y IO ESE R
pEE
BEARBBHA T —NENA
“TRENAE  AEER-_T—AF
ANAZT BB E i AKE T E
— SR M IEEERE - RES
BETFHARARYE 21,500 (BHER
#9253707%70) 5T & -+ Wi BE MU 12 H I
EEMNBAREARAR357,488,000
TT(HEZE A 41421,836,00058 7T ) 1
HAAEEAZER - BAGE RIRTT
BRI - AAREBREIEEES
BASENRERE B EAEEA
LN ien NG E S F b o
HERARBBHA-ZT—NE/N\A
+—HABRK -

RZE—RENAZTRA  A5E
BRI RTRITIE R RN = — X
F A 1B U E A R 238,000,000
7T (18 55 174 49 276,080,000 7T ) AWK
RERIEREMES S -

NTBEZFRAMBREAE - WE
IR 8 R TERK R AN R B i) AR ERAS 7O 2
IR A o

52 Ak B & A 47

AR EHEFLERIEH BB EHBR
RERZB—RENATRBFILE
S Bt - ARFRIEBKRERE
FRRERIBRENELEUNGREE
ROINETHNEREERZ
86,450,000 Az AL & B fn T R DI 7<%
ABEA HRESKRBGEAALS
BIYE=T]

RERKABHA=-_ZT—X<FNA
Z+HH - FBERARRBEHAE=
E—RNENATRBEZZE—FREN
A-+HBMAE -

NFEEEZERARAR
ZE-RNEFR 209/



FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BFMHBE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 31 July
BEtLtA=t—HLEE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—T—F ZT—=fF ZTNFE Z—T-—hF ZB-XRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHETT FHTT FHET T
Revenue e 624,525 551,326 467,264 426,242 386,516
Loss for the year FAEE (78,090) (131,919 (220,358) (159,382) (72,250)
Loss for the year AT ATEEFA
attributable to: 18
Owners of the Company  AQFEAB A (78,090) (131,616) (216,563) (156,3395) (71,304)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3EfZ % %S - (303) (3,795) (3,047) (946)
(78,090) (131,9219) (220,358) (159,382) (72,250)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES FEEERAR
As at 31 July
REA=+—H
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
—B—F —T—= —T-mFE ZZT—RHF ZB-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FHETT FHTT FTHET
Total assets BERE 1,179,702 1,012,409 815,823 654,170 567,746
Total liabilities BEEE (171,813) (144,621) (185,397) (178,509)  (156,584)
Total equity L 1,007,889 867,788 630,426 475,661 411,162
Equity attributable to: AT AT
Owners of the Company AR AQal#EA A 1,007,889 862,928 628,907 475,661 410,509
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#ZRARAERS = 4,860 1,519 = 653
Total equity RS AEEE 1,007,889 867,788 630,426 475,661 411,162
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